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CORPORATE PROFILE
EXEHR

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries hereinafter referred to
as the “Group”) is the largest manufacturer and exporter of
longitudinal welded steel pipes and is engaged in property
development and investment in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The Company has been listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(Stock Code: 1938) since February 2010. The Group’s steel pipes
are mainly used for energy transmission including oil and gas
transmission pipelines, deep sea pipelines, city gas networks, and
petrochemicals, mining, infrastructure construction, offshore

engineering, steel structures and water utilities industries.

The Group’s production bases and offices are located in Panyu,
Zhuhai, Lianyungang, Nanjing, Hong Kong, Yunfu and Indonesia,
with five production lines for longitudinal submerged arc-welded
(“LSAW”), two production lines for spiral submerged arc-welded
(“SSAW”) and other production lines with a combined annual
production capacity of 1,800,000 tonnes as at 31 December 2024.

The Group is an industry pioneer, particularly strong in research
and development, holding 114 patents (including 51 invention
patents) and 19 international quality certificates and having a long
standing international and nationwide track record. Furthermore, the
Group is the first and only steel pipe manufacturer in the PRC to
manufacture and successfully develop deep sea welded steel pipes
for use at a water depth of 3,500m and a qualified supplier of
Petrobras and Petronas. The Group is a welded steel pipe
manufacturer in the PRC that has received various honours and
awards, including “Gold Cup Prize for Actual Quality of Metallurgical
Products”, “Superior Quality Award for Actual Quality of
Metallurgical Products”, “National Key New Products”, “Province-
recognised Enterprise Technology Centre” and “High and New
Technology Enterprise”, hosted a “Academician Workstation” and is
the main drafter of the national standard for longitudinal welded
steel pipes in the PRC.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNAEH

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

2/F., 3-5 Golden Dragon City

Yayun Avenue

511450 Panyu District

Guangzhou City

Guangdong Province

The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 605—606,

Tower Ill Enterprise Square

No. 9 Sheung Yuet Road

Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

CCTH CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Unit 1510-1517,15/F, Tower 2
Kowloon Commerce Centre
No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road
Kwai Chung

New Territories, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
1938

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.pck.com.cn

LEGAL ADVISERS AS TO HONG KONG LAW
Loeb & Loeb LLP

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China Limited

Bank of Communications

Bank of Jiangsu

China Bohai Bank

China Construction Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas
Steel Pipe Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | would like to present to you the audited
consolidated annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2024.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

In 2024, the global and Chinese economic situation was complex
and volatile. The ongoing Russia-Ukraine conflict and the tensions
in the Middle East have heightened uncertainties in the global
energy market. The Group’s international trade faces challenges
caused by persistent global deflation, continued economic
sluggishness in Europe, slowing growth in the US, the persistently
strong US dollar, and the weakening RMB. Notwithstanding the
above, as China continued to promote the adjustment of its energy
structure and pursue the “dual-carbon” goals, the construction of
natural gas pipelines has maintained a certain scale, presenting
development opportunities for the Group.

In the challenging environment, the Group has achieved satisfactory
results by virtue of its superior capabilities, leading edge in
technology and world-class welded pipe quality, reputation and
standing. The Group recorded sales of approximately RMB2,939.9
million (2023: RMB2,651 million), representing an increase of
approximately 10.9% over 2023. The Group recorded a profit of
approximately RMB212.7 million (2023: RMB183.8 million). Earnings
per share attributable to ordinary equity holders was approximately
RMBO0.21 (2023: RMBO0.18). The Board did not recommend the
payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Group delivered a total of 414,000 tonnes of steel pipes for
several important projects during the year and received orders for
272,000 tonnes of steel pipes, further consolidating the Group’s
leading position in the industry. The steel pipe projects received
include: Tieshan Port Natural Gas Branch Pipeline Project of
Guangxi Natural Gas Branch Pipeline Network Project, EL-FAYOUM
Gas Pipeline Project, Guinea Rio Tinto Simandou Port Project, Iseni
Gas Delivery Project, Mexico Spiral Pipe Project, Abu Dhabi
Structure Pipe Project and the Shell Offshore Platform Project and
other projects.

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

Among the newly received orders, there is a project for constructing
offshore platform structural modules. This project is jointly
developed by Shell Australia and its joint venture partner, SGH
Energy. The offshore platform structural modules are located at the
floating liquefied natural gas (FLNG) facility in the Crux natural gas
field off the coast of Western Australia. FLNG is an offshore
floating natural gas processing platform that integrates natural gas
processing, liquefaction, storage, loading and unloading. It is
generally designed in a ship-shaped structure, mainly consisting of
upper process modules, hull, riser, turret, and mooring cables, and
is used for the production and transportation of liquefied natural gas
(LNG). The Group provided approximately 30,000 tonnes of double-
sided submerged-arc longitudinal welded pipes with diameters
ranging from 700mm to 3,760mm and wall thicknesses from 15mm
to 100mm, and was specifically responsible for the procurement of
raw materials including the structural modules, as well as the
necessary manufacturing processes such as cutting, rolling, edge
preparation, longitudinal seam welding, and circumferential seam
welding, and transporting the welded pipes to the port.

The Group successfully won the bidding for the Middle East Wharf
Project of Daewoo Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd. of South
Korea ((EBIAF T2 AR — FRAEEIIE) with its strong product
strength during the year. Once completed, this Middle East Wharf
Project will become the largest port in the Middle East, completely
reversing the local shortcomings of a short coastline and poor port
handling capacity, and adding new impetus to the local economic
development. The construction of Phase | project of this port
includes infrastructure projects such as breakwaters, channel
dredging, five container berths (with a handling capacity of 3.5
million TEUs), and roads. The Phase | project will be completed in
2025 and will be able to accommodate the world’s largest container
ships. The Group provided spiral steel pipes for submarine piling
with a pipe length of 44-52m, a wall thickness of 25mm, and pipe
diameters of 1,420mm and 1,220mm respectively for the project,
with a total weight of approximately 68,000 tonnes. Spiral steel
pipes for submarine piling have higher strength, better toughness,
and excellent corrosion resistance. These characteristics make it an
ideal support material for marine structures and it is widely used in
fields such as offshore oil platforms, offshore wind power
generation, cross-sea bridges, port and terminals, and tunnel
projects. Meanwhile, taking into account the special nature of the
marine environment, the surface of the spiral steel pipes for
submarine piling needs to be coated with a high-performance anti-
corrosion coating to resist the erosion of seawater, salt spray, and
other corrosive substances. The products in this project were
coated with the external anti-corrosion technology of epoxy glass-
flake paint GREIFIE # H %) to ensure their stability and durability
in marine infrastructure projects.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

The Group was invited to participate in the TotalEnergies Supplier
Day 2024 held at the headquarter of TotalEnergies in Paris, France
during the year. It is the third supplier conference held by
TotalEnergies, one of the world’s top five international oil
companies. As one of the leading steel pipe manufacturers in China
and one of four suppliers, the Group was invited to share its
experience with its outstanding performance in the East African
Crude Oil Pipeline (EACOP) project. The Group mainly introduced
its experience of successfully supplying 1,500 kilometers of oil
pipelines in the EACOP project. The EACOP project in East Africa
has a total length of 1,540 kilometers and is currently the world’s
longest heated crude oil pipeline project. Once completed, the
project will connect Uganda and Tanzania, and vigorously promote
the rapid development of the economy in East Africa region. The
pipeline laying of this project needs to overcome challenges such
as complex terrain and high-temperature environments. The Group
has taken up this EACOP project with such strict technical
requirements from TotalEnergies, and has successfully completed
most of the deliveries.

At the end of June 2024, the Shenzhen-Zhongshan Link, an
important transportation project connecting Shenzhen and
Zhongshan, was officially opened to traffic after seven years of
construction. The opening of the Shenzhen-Zhongshan Link
indicates that the Group has once again successfully delivered a
national key super project after the Pingtan Straits Rail-cum-Road
Bridge and the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge projects. Relying
on its superior geographical location and rich experience in
participating in many national major projects, the Group successfully
became an important supplier for this major project and provided
high-quality pipes for the Shenzhen-Zhongshan Link. Since 2018,
the Group has continuously participated in several important
engineering bidding sections of the Shenzhen-Zhongshan Link, such
as the construction of the East Artificial Island and the main line
cofferdam section tunnel (Lot S03) and the main project of the
cross-river channel (Lot S09), providing a solid guarantee for the
successful opening of the Shenzhen-Zhongshan Link. 90% of the
pipes for the pile
Shenzhen-Zhongshan Link come from the Group. The steel pipes

steel foundation used in the
for the pile foundation are highly resistant to sea corrosion, which
increases the service life of the bridge by 30% and solves the
problem of easy fracturing of concrete piles. The smooth opening of
the Shenzhen-Zhongshan Link symbolises a further acceleration of
the integration process of the Guangdong — Hong Kong — Macao
Greater Bay Area and is another important milestone in the Group’s

development history.

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

In January 2024, the Group was awarded the Specialized and New
Annual Masterpiece (“F/E#48)%5”) case award by China Media Group
at the Innovation Leads The New Industrialization 2023 Specialized
and New«Manufacturing Power Annual Ceremony (“Al¥75|48%1A) T
(L2023 iE 55T - REsR B FE AL M), and outperformed among
the 12,000 Specialized and New Little Giant enterprises across the
country, showcasing the characteristics, highlights and
achievements of the development of specialized and new
enterprises in China. On the way of developing the enterprise’s
characteristic products, the Group attaches great importance to the
deep sea development strategy of oil and gas resources, and has
continued to develop deep sea and ultra-deep sea oil and gas
pipeline steel pipes for a long time: in 2012, PCKX65 LSAW steel
pipe was applied to the Liwan deepwater natural gas project in the
South China Sea of CNOOC, which enabled the Group to enter into
the advanced ranks of deep sea pipe manufacturing, and the
engineering application record was extended to a depth of 1,500
meters underwater. From 2019 to 2022, focusing on the
international engineering of deep sea and ultra-deep sea oil and
gas pipelines and the development of deep sea resources, the
Group successfully developed underwater oil and gas, clean energy
and resources pipeline transmission pipe up to 3,500 meters deep
water for the first time in the world, forming a set of steel pipe
manufacturing technology for 1,500-3,500 meters ultra-deep sea
pipeline in the world. The commendation from China Media Group
for the Group is a recognition of the Group’s past efforts and the
beginning of a new journey.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

2024 is the 30th anniversary of the establishment of the Group. In
March 2025, the Group was honoured to be interviewed by
Guangzhou Daily, with the headline Guangzhou-made “Steel Pipe
Dragon” Bravely Enter 3,500-metre Deep Sea-Guangdong
Enterprises Develop World’'s Deepest Submarine Oil and Gas
Transmission Pipeline Steel Pipe, which was a special report for the
National Two Sessions. The report pointed out how the Group has
broken the technological monopoly of Europe and the United States
in the past 30 years with a three-step process to produce the
world’s first 3,500-metre ultra-deep submarine oil and gas
transmission pipeline steel pipe, which can be sunk to the seabed
at a depth of 3,500 metres, and is resistant to low temperature,
high pressure and strong corrosion. The Group has adhered to the
glorious history of expanding and strengthening the main business
of steel pipes, continuing to cultivate deeply in the field of welded
pipes, and making unremitting efforts over the 30 years. Looking
forward to the future, all staff of the Group will continue to carry
forward the spirit of indomitable, exploit enterprising, make
continuous breakthroughs in technological innovation, and strive for
excellence in product quality and set benchmarks, forge ahead in
the market competitiveness and bravely scale new heights. The
bold spirit of creating one new product after another to replace
imports contributes more strength to the prosperity and
development of the steel pipe industry. The Group will follow the
national strategy, adhere to independent innovation, focus on
marine engineering, and use the “steel backbone” to support
China’s dream of becoming a maritime power.

PROSPECT

In 2025, the road to global economic recovery will remain
uncertain. The evolution of Sino-US relations, the strong position of
U.S. dollars, the depreciation pressure of Renminbi, the pace of
economic recovery in Europe, the direction of the Russia-Ukraine
conflict, and the situation in the Middle East will have a profound
impact on the global energy market.

12 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

In the face of the complex external environment, the Group will
continue to seek progress while maintaining stability, actively
responding to challenges and seizing opportunities. The Group will
continue to strengthen technology research and development,
actively participate in a number of major infrastructure and marine
engineering construction projects in China, vigorously expand the
international market, deeply participate in a number of “the Belt and
Road (—#
continue to provide high-quality steel pipe products,

—B&)” related infrastructure construction projects,
and be
committed to bring better services and solutions to global
customers. In the future, the Group will continue to uphold the
principle of quality first and customer first, actively participate in the
construction of more major national projects, and contribute to the
modernization of infrastructure. The Group firmly believes that more
development opportunities will be ushered in. From 31 December
2024 to the date of this report, the Group has repaid the bonds in
full with a view to lightening the load and achieving better results.

We believe that with the Group’s technical strength, excellent team
and sound business strategy, we will be able to overcome
challenges, achieve sustainable development and create greater
value for shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to thank all the staff for their
consistent professional ethics in such a challenging year. | am also
grateful to the shareholders for their continuous support and trust to
the Group to build strength for a bright future.

Chen Chang
Chairman

Panyu, Guangdong, China
28 March 2025
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fE - BAIES

BAEE  BRAKENRMESD - @FNEEMISE
MRS KM IRPE - BREER - BBRR
BEE AWER -

B

AANERRAEBERGB2RETEBEERMHIEN—
FMEEERERT - M RATARSSIRRERE

B RERE D ABERRRAA THRFEFNEE -
TiE

[C3=

TEEREER

—E-AF=AZ-1NH

BIAMAAREEZRERDE
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

RIFHEAE

I SRR

g
::..; 5 [l
1996

EREEEHER
(RREKBZER)

Guangdong Province
Outstanding New Product*
(The Economic Commission

of Guangdong Province*)

Tl bt ]
RIEESE B

1997

AREERBYERESHR

(FEASTHE)

Gold Cup Prize for

Actual Quality of Metallurgical Products*

(Ministry of Metallurgical
Industries of the PRC*

2001

15 3 52 9l 40 S PR T o
(BNTRERHERE)

Certificate for the Recognition of

High and New Technology Enterprises*
City Sci and T gy

bommiﬂee*)

FEENEEEEE

P

2 0 0 (Renewed in
2010/20144%)
BEREEAEHE
(RREIHTREER)
Guangdong Province

Famous Trademark*
(Guangdong Province
Bureau for Administration of
industry and Commerce*)

R
HEREER

ARsamEERSE,
ERETREPENE, AAREEY
EUTTT T T TP

s

2004

HEARERAEMREE
20045 + iR
(FEAANAREIREIRGE)

China Reserved Petroleum Pipeline
Manufacturing Industry — Top Ten
Enterprises in 2004*

(China Petroleum and Petro-chemical Equipment
Industry Association*)

2 0 0 (Renewed in
2011/2012/2015%%)
BREEREYEER

SR (EREIRE)
(FEBETEGE)

Gold Cup Prize for Actual Quality
of Metallurgical Products* — LSAW

(China Iron & Steel Association*)

2005 Sz

AEERBYNEESFE (BERE)

(PERMSETEBE)

Gold Cup Prize for Actual
Quality of Metallurgical
Products* — ERW

(China Iron & Steel Association*)

iE %

RS E XE NCAER
EEmEEEET Y

[RTT P NEPEE.
mama

2006

2005FEREEBEBEELE
(RREEBHWERR)
Leader in Quality Management in

Guangdong Province in 2005*
(Guangdong Provincial Bureau of
Quality and Technical Supervision*)

2007

BRXEEER
(RENE AT

China Torch Item*
(Science and Technology Department of the PRC*)

14
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

RIFHEAE

WO

FEESR™&

sranadinain

200 (Renewed in
2010/2013 %K)
EREEEER
(BEREERRMEER)
Guangdong Province Top Brand Product*

(Guangdong Province Bureau of
Quality and Technical Supervision*)

2007

2007 F EREXAH LR BETAER
(RREERBARRERORAFLHBEEERS)

Best Original Product of Innovative
Record for Guangdong Enterprise in
2007*

(Association of Enterprise in Guangdong
Province & The | ive Record of
Enterprise Approval Commission*)

refRsgaan -

2007

BEMNTREES —F%

(BEM T ARBUT)

First Prize for Sci-Tech Achievement in
Guangzhou City*

(The People’s Government of
Guangzhou City*)

BRRHREES R
CERBETERRE

(hERAHE)

International Exhibition of Inventions
Golden Awards* (Three-roller forming

technology and equipment*)
(China Inventions Association*)

2 0 0 (Renewed in

2011/20144)
190 7 5 9l 10 3%
(B 3R FHER 52 I~ TR 4 R B
ERBBEAREREHBR ERELFTHER)
Guangdong High and New Technology
Enterprise*
(Department of Science and Technology of
Guangdong Province*, Guangdong Province
Department of Finance*, Guangdong Municipal Office
of the State Administration of Taxation*, and
Guangdong Provincial Local Taxation Bureau*)

——
e

e ]

Bran wmee e

200 (zRot:g:;ed in 2013
BEREBHEMER
(BE 3R FHB 5 17 1)

High-tech Product of Guangdong Province*
(Department of Science and Technology of
Guangdong Province*)

| FRAYAE as I

2009

EREREFE

— CZBRETERRE
(EREAEBERERLARERER)

Guangdong Province Patent Excellence

Award*
(Three-roller forming technology and equipment)
&

2010 Sz

CEYRLE |
BE B M AM AR
(RENSEMPAESRMELAE L)

Key High and New Technology Enterprise

of China Torch Item*
(Torch High-tech Industry Development Centre of
i and Technology Department of the PRC*)

(Guangdong Provincial Bureau of P
Property Office of Guangdong Province*)

2010

Bl X 58 1b SE B AT D

(ARBRUEE  BEH - HEB  SHAE  ARIBAR)

National-recognised Enterprise Technology

Centre*
(National Development and Reform Commission*,

Science and Technology Department*, Finance Department*,

A of C , State A
Taxation*)

—EoEEEERE

WIARRAREEZRERAE
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

35 15 5150 38

Az

LU
L

e

B E B8 BEE aee 886 44

EABL EEsSEatE

mana BFERERARE
T e

2010

E+NnEZHEEH
RESHER — SEHEBARAEETESE
(PEIRAGE)

1st Runner-up of The 19th National Invention
Exhibition* Dual-drive push-press type steel
pipe expanding device*

(Invention Association of China*)

A rea
IBHEAERFEDD

2010

[ R & T2 B A % BA 3 P s

(EREMSBEWE EREARERNREZEE  ERELHE
SES®)

Technology Research and Development
Centre of Guangdong Province*

(Department of Science and Technology of

Guangdong Province*, Development and Reform

C issi of Province*, ic and
Trade Commission of Guangdong Province*)

o

BRARI WD e

FhdbRpn iRl

T

2011

EREAMER B
(RREANBRERR)
Intellectual Property Demonstration

Enterprise of Guangdong Province*
(Intellectual Property Department
of Guangdong Province*)

Fiasebin

2010

RRENSBEM—SR

(RREARBH)

First Prize for Sci-tech of Guangdong
Province*

(The People’s Government of

Guangdong Province*)

it $ .-
WP s
R R

2010

BN AR B3
(BNTRRBH AR E)

Innovative Enterprise of Guangzhou*
(Technology and City Enhancement

Steering Committee of Guangzhou*)

2011

ERE+EBEERE

(RRECXBEE MRECERBE)

Top 10 Original Brands of Guangdong
Province*

(Association of Enterprises of Guangdong Province*,

of Entrepi s of
Province*)

16 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

2010

RREBTANER

(RRENBEME RRARRNREZEY  RAEEHANER L
FEY RMAEUBE RAEAREER RRLEERMEER)
Indigenous Innovation Product of Guangdong

Province*

(Department of Sci and T y of

Province*, Development and Reform Commission of Guangdong
Province*, Economic and Information Commission of
Guangdong Province*, Finance Department of Guangdong
Province*, Intellectual Property Department of Guangdong
Province*, Administration of Quality and Technology
Supervision of Guangdong Province*)

i AL

Ly
RV A T

2011

F-TEZEARARTERR
— AMABIRRERE
(FERBHHR)

1st Runner-up of The 20th National Invention
Exhibition*

Five-electrode submerged arc welding
equipment

(Invention Association of China*)

Ei‘

2011

R+ THESE
(BRREARKR

Academician Workstation
(The People’s Government of Guangdong Province*)

Annual Report 2024



AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

RIFHEAE

2011

BT B E &%
(RREARBA)
Governmental Quality Award of

The Guangzhou Government*
(The People’s Government of Guangdong
Province?*)

2012

BEREBRNEEE
(BREARBUY)
Government Quality Award of

Guangdong Province*
(The People’s Government of
Guangdong Province*)

HERTEER

B ] L]

2012

AERBRAME— SR
(FHRETXGE  TESEER)
First Prize of Metallurgical
Sci-Tech Award*

(China Iron & Steel Association,
The Chinese Society for Metals)

®
FRaRSREES  __
EE e
p— 3

2013

BER AN 25 i 2 R
(RHE ARBA)

Science Technological Award of

Guangdong Province*
(The People’s Government of
Guangdong Province*)

e 11

=
e --1L Urammen

2013-2016

[ R & Al B G 3

(RREMBHMAM RREABERARFEZAR MRECANCLLCEZAR MREARBA
AFREEEEEZAY MREAWEMRR WMRELIRE)

Innovative Enterprise of Guangdong Province*

(The Guangdong Provincial Department of

and Technology, the

Development and Reform Commission, the Economic & Information Commission of
Guangdong Province, the State — owned Assets Supervision and Administration
ion of the Province, the Guangdong Intellectual Property Office

andthe Provincial F

of Trade Unions*)

2014

A ﬁéwl%ﬁi%ﬁﬁiﬁ
ChEAMT R

Superior Quallty Award for
Actual Quality of Metallurgical

Product
(China Iron & Steel Association*)

2014

ERECAEEREAREMER
(RREEABE)

Model Experimenting Enterprise
for Credit Management of

Guangdong Provmce
( Credit A i

2015

5 3 B £

(BERA PRI - MR E R
BEXBBERMREBBER -
EREBSBRBR)

High Technology Enterprises*
(Department of Science and Technology
of Province*,

Province Department of Finance*,
Guangdong Municipal Office of the State
Administration of Taxation*, Guangdong
Provincial Local Taxation Bureau*)

2016

REEREYRESHFE —
BRE(RE)
(FERE#HTEGE)

Gold Cup Prize for Actual
Quality of Metallurgical

Products* — welded steel pipes
(China Iron & Steel Association)

2016

AEERBYRESNE — BiE

BIRE
(FERETXNS)
Gold Cup Prize for Actual
Quality of Metallurgical
Products* — spiral submerged

arc-welded steel pipes
(China Iron & Steel Association)

2016

RREANBRM—FR
(RARARBRE)

(EREAREMA)

First Prize of Sci-Tech
Achievement

(Deep Sea Pipe for Natural Gas)

(The People’s Government of Guangdong
Province)

—EoEEEERE

WIABARAREE

ZERERLDF
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

RIFHEAE

2016

EREELARAINERE N
(RREANERMEERERE)
Guangdong Postdoctoral
Innovation Practice Base*
(Department of Human Resources
and Social Security of Guangdong
Province*)

I B R A EER
s e R

R —— e T L]
R ETERE
T L LI TEE L]
ELL UL El L)
i
e
wLn

2016

DRESHEEE R

(R BB 20 45 P B 48 E B K 6268 WIS FIRLE
hEREGE)

Saudi Arabia Excellent Chinese
Project Award*

(Chinese Embassy in Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia*, Saudi Arabia Chinese
Enterprises Association*)

2017

BEERTNERMESR—FR
(EEEDARBA)

First Prize of Lianyungang
Science and Technology

Progress Award*
(The People’s Government of
Lianyungang)

2017

BRI
(RRECBNEL(EEE  MREHK
B RREGHHER BHAERRDSE)
Provincial Enterprise
Technology Centre*

Provinci ic and

@ i A

Provincial Department of Finance, Local
Taxation Bureau of Guangdong Province*,
Guangdong Branch of the General
Administration of Customs*)

(

2018

755 A 5 9l 4 3

(RRERBEMIE - FERE B BUE - ERB
KBREREBER)

High Technology Enterprises*
(Department of Science and Technology
of Province*,

Province Department of Finance*,
Guangdong Provincial Taxation Bureau of
the State Administration of Taxation)

2019

RABRERES X

National Intellectual Property
Advantage Enterprise*
(National Intellectual Property
Bureau*)

2019

EREABERTEH X
(RRABRERREHS)

Guangdong Province Intellectual
Property Demonstration
Enterprise*

(Guangdong Intellectual Property
Protection Association*)

2020

EEBMARANESEN
(FHETEHE  BRATARKA)

Lianyungang Science and
Technology Innovation
Outstanding Unit*

i o

yungang
of the Communist Party of China*, The
People’s Government of Lianyungang*)

Rl e SE LU T
R

EREHT L

2021

BARE X
(BRBH AR
Unicorn Seed Enterprise*
(Zhuhai Science and Technology
Innovation Bureau*)

2021

2019-2020F &
BRTFERBEALE
CIHECREAEERS)
2019-2020

Provincial Contract-Abiding and
Credit-Worthy Enterprise*
(Jiangsu Enterprise Credit M:

2021

5 3 5 4l b 3
(RMERAPSHIMME - RRE P BT - ERB
BEBMREBRBER)

High Technology Enterprises*
(Department of Science and Technology
of Guangdong Province*, Guangdong
Province Department of Finance*,

Association*)

P Taxation Bureau of
the State Administration of Taxation)

2022

SHEFES ML
(RBTSEERERBETFAFNMRAE)
(BRBRARMARERERE T
AHPERDE)

Outstanding Enterprise of the

Year in Jinwan District*

(Office of the Leading Group for

the Work of Jinwan District, Zhuhai City)
(Zhuhai Economic and Technological
Development Zone Strong Quality District
Work Leading Group Office)*)

* For identification only

18 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

RIFHEAE

2023

2023

HEEHINEAILE 55 3 B2 90 £ 3
(TEAMER) (RAE RS RS - RS - BRB
HARRREBIR)

High-quality Development of
Technology Advanced “Little

Giant” Enterprise*
(The Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology)

High Technology Enterprises*
(Department of Science and Technology
of Province*,

Province Department of Finance*,
Guangdong Provincial Taxation Bureau of
the State Administration of Taxation)

2023

= B i b 3

OIS E RSB RE - STH &M BUE - B R
BERIHREBER)

High Technology Enterprises*
(Department of Science and Technology
of Jiangsu Province*, Jiangsu Province
Department of Finance*, Jiangsu
Provincial Taxation Bureau of the State
Administration of Taxation)

2023

2023-2026 F T H &SRB
~

i
TR # T3S S C )

2023—-2026 Jiangsu Province
Specialized and New Small and

Medium Enterprises*
(Jiangsu Provincial Department of
Industry and Information Technology)

2023

TLRR A RRE 1 3B AT D

CIHEEBENEE L ZEY IHRERRANEZEY IHENBRIME  THREHBE
IHEERER IHRELAHER  PEARANERREMH)

Jiangsu Province Certified Enterprise Technology Center*

(Jiangsu Provincial Economic and Information C issil Jiangsu Provinci
Development and Reform C issi Jiangsu Pr Department of Science and
Technology, Jiangsu Provincial Department of Finance, Jiangsu Provincial State
Taxation Bureau, Jiangsu Provincial Local Taxation Bureau, Nanjing Customs of the
People’s Republic of China*)

AR F&LS
Foaa) KREAT 8

ERAEEmALEL
LARIY suidE]
P FENCAL®Y
ik

bt

2024

BERE T A LR
(RRELTH)

Guangdong Province Workers

Pioneer*
(Guangdong Federation of Trade Unions*)

__t_-a‘__'\l

2024

B TR BR MRS R
(FEMRIXBEY TESRIESSY)
Mechanical Industry Science
and Technology Award-Special
Prize*

(China Machinery Industry Federation,
Chinese Mechanical Engineering Society*)

2024

5 3 5 4l b 3

(RERAPSHMME - FRE P - ERB
BEABMREABBER)

High Technology Enterprises*
(Department of Science and Technology
of Province*,

Province Department of Finance*,
Guangdong Provincial Taxation Bureau of
the State Administration of Taxation)

B RS

WIARRAREEZRERAE
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QUALITY CERTIFICATIONS

EE = iy 2
BEERE

FEENEERFRAES

UTERERRE

F 13 Year

1996
1996
1999
2002
2004
2004
2006
2007
2007
2008
2009
2011

2011
2012
2014
2019
2022
2022
2024

& Certifications

1ISO9001
API
CE
BV

1ISO9001 1SO14001

OHSAS18001
DNV
Petronas
KNPC

PDO

Shell

CNAS

ASME

CMS

TUV

Total Energies
Saudi Aramco
1ISO45001
ADNOC

The Group has been awarded the following

international quality certifications:

3% # 88 Authority

HEMERFER Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency

EB AMIHE American Petroleum Institute

HEE A A AL Lloyd’s Register of Shipping

E BN A4t Bureau Veritas

R EE 2R F .0 China Quality Certification Centre
R &R &EHR O China Quality Certification Centre
FE M A4 Det Norske Veritas

AR E R A AR Petroliam Nasional Berhad (PETRONAS)

THE Al A 7] Kuwait National Petroleum Company
fi] £ 4l 22 &) Petroleum Development Oman
M Shell Global Solutions

hESKRIEERAAZEE China National Accreditation Service for

Conformity Assessment

FE i Ti2EM & American Society of Mechanical Engineers

AR RRET 848 X R0 China CMS (Issuing Authority)
mEELE%E TUV SUD China

LBl EMALIR Total Energies

W HEBTZE A E A A) Saudi Aramco

L 2R EH L China Quality Certification Centre
B 43 L tb A8 2 7] Abu Dhabi National Oil Company

20 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEFNWEIMN

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group mainly (i) manufactures and sells longitudinal welded
steel pipes, as well as provides manufacturing service for
processing raw materials into steel pipes; and (ii) engages in
property development and investment.

Steel pipe business

Our welded steel pipe products can be broadly categorised into
LSAW steel pipes, SSAW steel pipes and ERW steel pipes. We are
the largest LSAW steel pipe manufacturer and exporter in the PRC,
and are capable of producing LSAW steel pipes that meet the
X100 standard. We are also accredited with 14 international quality
certifications such as Det Norske Veritas and American Petroleum
Institute. In addition, we are the first and the only PRC
manufacturer that has successfully produced and developed deep
sea welded pipes for use at 3,500m under water. Our products are
widely used in major oil and gas pipeline projects (both onshore
and offshore) and infrastructure projects domestically and
internationally.

Our Group is capable of manufacturing subsea pipes and drilling
platforms structure pipes for offshore projects and is being
classified as a member of the Offshore Engineering Equipment
Industry* (% TiRE HEELE %),

Order Status

In 2024, the Group received new orders of approximately 272,000
tonnes of welded steel pipes. The Group delivered approximately
414,000 tonnes of welded steel pipes during 2024. The Group has
delivered some sizeable overseas orders, such as orders from steel
pipes for the East African Crude Oil Pipeline project, Nigeria Iseni
Gas Delivery Project, and Mcdermott Asia Pacific Sdn Bhd.

ZECFFERE

£ 0]

AEEEB()REREEEARERE  ARRHER
MHMT AME ORISR KR EDEARRE
‘o

WMEXRH
AEBEBRNEEMABA D REEEIEE - B
BIRERERRE - HPIRTESAE#ENRER
EEHREARE - TEEFNASX100FEHNFH#PINRE
i AP 2 BRAS I8 Bl s AR A % 5 B0 0 Jfh 16 & 55+ P TR R R
HERE - I BMIRTEERME—ERNEER
8 3,500 K R BIRENBIER - HFNEREER
SMREC AR AT R RAREBIER (FEMELE)
REZER -

HERAEETRES FTRERNETEE E LEBHT
BRERETE ML AEEWHI AT FIEEGEREESE
Z—

T EAR R

R-Z-MF  AEEZENTERELN /272,000
WEIR IS - AEBD N T Z W F X F49414,0000
REHE - NEBBEEEE TAREEGINGTE  MFRIER
MEBIEE  FEBFITIsenikARBEEHE &
Mcdermott Asia Pacific Sdn Bhd%5 il & 7] & °

WIGAXARMEERERAT 21



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED

LSAW Steel Pipes

The Group is one of the largest LSAW steel pipe manufacturers
and exporters in the PRC. Sales and manufacturing of LSAW steel
pipe was the major source of revenue of the Group and accounted
for approximately 80.5% of our total steel pipe revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2024. For the year ended 31 December 2024,
revenue from the sales and manufacturing service of LSAW steel
pipes amounted to approximately RMB2,195.4 million and RMB46.9
million, respectively, where sales of LSAW steel pipes were higher
than that for the year ended 31 December 2023 was due to
increase in delivery of LSAW steel pipes to East African Crude Oil
Pipeline (“EACOP”).

SSAW Steel Pipes

Our SSAW steel pipes are produced in our plant in Lianyungang
using the pre-welding and precision welding SSAW technique,
which is the most advanced technique among all SSAW
technologies. Revenue from the sales and manufacturing service of
SSAW steel pipes amounted to approximately RMB366.9 million and
RMB62.8 million respectively. The total revenue from SSAW steel
pipes accounted for approximately 15.4% of the total steel pipe
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2024 which were lower
than that for the year ended 31 December 2023. The decrease was
mainly attributable to less delivery of SSAW Steel Pipes to
infrastructure projects.

Property development

Apart from the steel pipe manufacturing business, the Group also
engaged in property development and investment. Following the
conversion of a land in Panyu, PRC in 2013, the Group grasped
the opportunity of asset appreciation to convert the land use right of
the Panyu production plant from industrial use to commercial use.
The property project in relation to Golden Dragon City Fortune
Plaza (£8P EE) (“GDC”), is a large scale integrated
commercial complex of offices, shops, apartments and villas. The
land area of the converted land accounted for approximately 25%
of the total land area of our factory in Panyu. The total permitted
construction area of the land (including underground construction
area) is approximately 550,000 m2.

22 Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

HH#ENEE
AEBRTFREBANE#SENEEREmkEnEmz
— o HERREHERRERBALAEEEZIRAKR
B HEZZE-_NF+-A=t+—HLFELLERES
& W A #4980.5% © @ifgf@¢+:ﬂ:+—5¢
FE  HEPNEENHE REERBBASBNAA
£ #2,195,400,0007T & A £ #46,900,0007T - &+ &
BBl EENEERBE—_S-_=F+-_A=+—A1
FEIM - ARARERAEE ([RIERBEE]) M
MEEEIIEE S =M -

BHEEEE

BPIRET B MR £ E /R RE R ATER IR
IR MRS ZERMEMEBIBEIEETE
PEEERNTIH - BHERIIRERHE REERBE D A
BR15 U A 49 A R #366,900,0007T M A K #62,800,000
T BIHEEEMNBIRAEREE-_S-_MF+=-A=
T —HULEFEERNERALN15.4% REE-_T_=F
TZA=T—ALFERERD - ZRSEZHRAE
1A B R R R e IR R E R D AT B -

LE ek

BRIERERLIN  ARETEEYRAFERE -1
“E-=FhEBER L MAERRE  AEEERAA
BERERE  BEBLEREN T HAEATEER
BEME  BFRATSEMRMERS (28R WYEIEE
REBTE B 2BMIER—BOHARGARE
L BT EERRE THMEEBONS Z— %
THHAFTREEAAR(BRL TEEEB AR
550,000°F 75 K ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WA

Below are the details of GDC: AT A& i 2 #15

Address:  Golden Dragon City, Yayun Avenue, Panyu District, oIk FREEREEMNMERRDERNBESEMN
Guangzhou City, Guangdong, PRC

Usage: Large scale integrated commercial complex of offices, R EBTE B 2BEIEAE—EHNX
shops, apartments and villas AR EEER

The total permitted construction area  Phase |: 135,000 m?2 BT R IEAMIE % —H1 : 135,000F 75 3K
(including underground construction Phase Il: 191,000 m? (BIEH TEE®mE) 5 —H3 : 191,000°F 77 K
area) Phase Ill: 224,000 m? % =Hf : 224,000F 5 K

The Group recorded most of the sales of the first phase of GDC in AEERZZ-N\FEARSERE —HNALHIHERE

2018 and recognised the sale of the second phase of GDC in WHRZT__FHRASHEMRE —BHNHEE - eENE=

2022. The third phase of GDC was sold to Guangzhou City Panyu AR T -—hFETEMNMESR T FHEFRL -

District Land Development Centre* (/T & & & L EH L) in

2019.

The steel pipe business will remain as the Group’s core business. MEXBEEBR R EBMOZOER -

R RS WIERXAARBERRERAT 23



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED

FINANCIAL REVIEW B % B B
Revenue and gross profit WAREF
Revenue of the Group mainly comprises (i) sales of steel pipe, and REBKATEZOEOMEHE  M(i)DEHE -

(ii) sales of property.

Our revenue increased from RMB2,651 million for the year ended BB AREE —_E_=F+_A=1+—HILFEN
31 December 2023 to approximately RMB2,939 million in 2024. AR %2 651,000,000 ME ST _MFHARE
Such increase was mainly due to increase in overseas sales of 2,939,000,0007C ' ZEMFELEEAR _E_NFWHE
steel pipes in 2024. The Group has delivered a sizable order of the INEEE N c AEBNAFEEZERIEFR AT EIER
East African Crude Oil Pipeline project during the year. Increase in HARAIZTEE c M- T - —F 4tk - — ST _NEMEIHE
steel pipes sales in 2024 as compared to that of 2023 was due to BRI - ThEPEINTIBETE SKIE N -

the increase in demand from overseas market.

The following table sets forth the revenue and gross profit by TREVNRPI RS EABIEET D BE D OWARER :
business segments for each of the periods indicated:

2024 2023
—E-ME —E =4
RMB’000 % to total RMB’000 % to total
EF 1 ON 1B A
ARMT T Aokt ARBTT ERalsd
Revenue N
Steel pipes k=% 2,787,554 94.8 2,390,855 90.2
Property development and MEFREREE
investment 152,322 5.2 259,997 9.8
2,939,876 100.0 2,650,852 100.0

24 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEFNWEIMN

Steel pipes £ =
2024 2023
—E-mF ZTZ=F

RMB’000 % to total RMB’000 % to total
HBWA aF U ON
ARETx Bok ARET T ERagd

Sales of steel pipes HERE
LSAW steel pipes HEERE 2,195,407 78.8 1,495,494 62.6
SSAW steel pipes eI RE 366,895 13.1 612,023 25.6
ERW steel pipes BEHEE 2,625 0.1 24,630 1.0
Subtotal NET 2,564,927 92.0 2,132,147 89.2

Manufacturing services BERK
LSAW steel pipes BH#RBIEE 46,932 1.7 158,451 6.6
SSAW steel pipes 12 HEIE IR E 62,753 2.3 25,050 1.0
Subtotal INEF 109,685 4.0 183,501 7.6
Others Eih 112,942 4.0 75,207 3.2
Grand total At 2,787,554 100.0 2,390,855 100.0

ZECFFERE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEFNWEIMN

Steel pipes £ =
2024 2023
—EWE —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT AREF T
Sales SHE 2,787,554 2,390,855
Cost of sales A (2,292,980) (1,877,430)
Gross profit E A 494,574 513,425

The revenue generated from the sales of steel pipes accounted for
approximately 92.0% of our total steel pipe revenue in 2024 as
compared with approximately 89.2% in 2023. Steel pipe
manufacturing services accounted for approximately 4.0% of our
total steel pipe revenue in 2024 as compared with approximately
7.6% in 2023. The revenue classified as “Others” mainly
represented the trading of steel plates, sales of steel fittings and
sales of scrap materials which accounted for approximately 4.0% of
our total steel pipe revenue in 2024 as compared with
approximately 3.2% in 2023.

Gross profit of steel pipe sales for 2024 was approximately
RMB494.6 million as compared with approximately RMB513.4
million in 2023, representing an decrease of approximately 3.7% or
RMB18.9 million. Gross profit margin for 2024 was approximately
17.7% which was lower than that of 21.5% in 2023. Decrease in
gross profit margin was due to relatively lower gross profit margin
of one significant overseas project which dragged down the
average gross profit margin.

Overseas Sales for 2024 was approximately RMB2,218.7 million as
compared with approximately RMB1,370.5 million in 2023,
representing an increase of approximately 61.9%. Our overseas
sales accounted for approximately 79.6% of our total steel pipe
revenue in 2024, as compared with approximately 57.3% in 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Sales by Geographical Areas — Steel Pipes REWESIHHEE — BE
2024 2023
—E-MF ZEZ=F
Revenue Revenue
A A
RMB’000 % to total RMB’000 % to total
EEION 1l AU A
AR¥ T Bk AREF T "ok
Overseas sales BINEE 2,218,710 79.6 1,370,493 57.3
Domestic sales EEE= 568,844 20.4 1,020,362 42.7
Total steel pipes and = kB ERS AR
manufacturing services 2,787,554 100.0 2,390,855 100.0
Property development and investment YIERBERKRE
2024 2023
—E-_NE —EC-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARET T

Revenue WA 152,322 259,997
Cost of sales SHE A (129,482) (219,212)
Gross profit EH 22,840 40,785
Revenue generated from the property development and investment VHERFHEEESBEENVATERZSENE K
segment mainly comprises sales of property of GDC-Phase Il and %%i\ﬁ%%)\&ﬂiﬁé BEWE—EEEnESA - =
rental income from shops in Phase | of GDC. Revenue under ZIUFYEREEREERALRSARK152,300,000
property development and investment was approximately RMB152.3 T BRI =F /4 A K %260,000,0007T L
million in 2024 as compared with approximately RMB260.0 million B #141.4% 3 A R #107,700,0007T © W AR 4 T B
in 2023, representing a decrease of approximately 41.4% or E/\X*B’\M*Hﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\_giii)}_ S =FEHE
RMB107.7 million. Decrease in revenue was due to most of sales R RFDeEMRE—AENEIR =T —N\FE=

of Phase Il recognized in 2022 and 2023. Most of the units under ﬂiﬂ:‘% °

Phase | of GDC were sold in 2018 and 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED

Cost of sales primarily represents the costs we incurred directly for
the Group’s property development activities. The principal
component of cost of sales is cost of properties sold, which
includes the direct costs of construction and the costs of obtaining
land use rights. Cost of sales was approximately RMB129.5 million
in 2024 as compared with approximately RMB219.2 million in
2023, representing a decrease of 40.9% or RMB89.7 million.
Decrease in cost of sales was due to less properties sold out so as
the allocation of cost of Phase Il of GDC.

Gross profit of property sales was approximately RMB22.8 million in
2024 as compared with approximately RMB40.8 million in 2023,
representing a decrease of 44.0% or RMB17.9 million. Decrease in
gross profit was due to decrease in sales of Phase Il of GDC.

All revenue under property development and investment was

domestic in nature.

CHANGE IN FAIR VALUES OF INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

The Group has adopted the accounting policy of measuring
investment properties by using fair values. Accordingly, gains or
losses arising from the changes in the fair values of investment
properties are reflected as profit or loss for 2024. The investment
properties as at 31 December 2024 were the shops of Phase | of
GDC. The Group has engaged RHL Appraisal Limited, an
independent valuer, to value the investment properties as at 31
December 2024. According to the valuation report as at 31
December 2024 issued by RHL Appraisal Limited, the market value
of the investment properties as at 31 December 2024 was RMB355
million. Loss in fair values of the investment properties in 2024 was
approximately RMB5 million (2023: loss of RMB2 million).

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Other income and gains in 2024 mainly represented bank interest
income and subsidy income from government. Other income and
gains increased by approximately 1,138.3% or RMB181.9 million
from approximately RMB16.0 million in 2023 to approximately
RMB197.9 million in 2024. Increase in other income and gains was
mainly due to the increase in reversal of provision of interest

expense and subsidy income from government.
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SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately
37.6% or RMB24.6 million from approximately RMB65.5 million in
2023 to approximately RMB40.9 million in 2024. Decrease in selling
and distribution expenses was mainly due to decrease in sales
commission.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 5.3% or
RMB14.3 million from approximately RMB270.0 million in 2023 to
approximately RMB284.4 million in 2024. The increase in
administrative expenses was mainly due to increase in research
and development expenses.

FINANCE COSTS

The finance costs for 2024 was approximately RMB110.2 million as
compared with that of 2023 of approximately RMB94.5 million,
representing an increase of RMB15.7 million or 16.6%. The
effective interest rate in 2024 was approximately 5.9% (2023:
5.2%). Increase in finance costs was due to the increase in interest
rate and increase in borrowing.

OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses decreased by approximately 34.1% or RMB64.0
million from approximately RMB187.9 million in 2023 to
approximately RMB123.9 million in 2024. The decrease was mainly
due to decrease in write off and impairment of other receivable.

EXCHANGE GAIN, NET

The Group recorded exchange gain of approximately RMB15.6
million in 2024 as compared with exchange gain of approximately
RMB15.1 million in 2023. The exchange gain was mainly due to
appreciation of USD against RMB in collection of USD trade
receivables.

INCOME TAX CREDIT
The Group recorded income tax credit of RMB46.2 million in 2024
as compared with income tax credit of RMB144.7 million in 2023.

TR NEFEHRE

HERDHBEX

HE MDA T =F L AR¥65,500,0007T
L #937.6% 3% A R #24,600,0007T * E-F —PIFH
AR 40,900,000  $HE R HFZR D EEHNE
ERERD -

THEHR

THEBERB_Z f_ﬁz’mﬁﬁ%z?o 000,000 3 AN %Y
5.3%3k A R#14,300,0007T - E=T ZWFHARKE
284,400,0007T ° TTE&%FWE?JDI;:EEEMH%%F‘%EDD o
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ZEZNFERREK ALY B ARK110,200,0007T © B
R-ZEZ=FWHARE94,500,000 THELL - HEITAR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

As a result of the reasons discussed above, the Group recorded a
profit of approximately RMB212.7 million in 2024 (2023: profit of
RMB183.8 million).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The following table sets out certain information regarding the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2024:

FRiaA

MR EXFTER - ANEE %—i:@¢?%mﬂﬁA
R #212,700,000c (ZE_=F: m M AR
183,800,0007T) °

RBEZRUBER
TREJEAAEEBE T =FR-_FT_MOF+—
A=1t—ALFENGEARERERNETER

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2024 2023
—E-mE —TEC-=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETT

Net cash flows from operating activities KEFHMERESREFH 205,872 431,067
Net cash flows used in investing activities R E EEFFAE LR EFEE (55,820) (8,682)
Net cash flows used in financing activites BIE EETABE & REF5E (78,470) (366,033)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R4 RIR&E S EYIE I FEE 71,582 56,352

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
The Group’s net cash inflows from operating activities of
approximately RMB431.1 million in 2023 decreased to
approximately RMB205.9 million in 2024. The decrease in net cash
inflows from operating activities were primarily due to the combined
effect of (i) increase in profit before tax; (ii) increase in inventories,
trade and bills receivables, pledged and restricted bank balances,
trade and bills payables and other payables and accruals; and (iii)
decrease in completed properties held for sale, prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, and contract liabilities.

NET CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

The Group’s net cash flows used in investing activities changed
from outflow of approximately RMB8.7 million in 2023 to outflow of
approximately RMB55.8 million in 2024. The increase in outflow
were mainly due to the combined effects of (i) purchase of items of
property, plant and equipment in 2024; and (ii) receipt of
government grants.

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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NET CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The Group’s net cash flows used in financing activities decreased
from approximately RMB366.0 million in 2023 to approximately
RMB78.5 million in 2024. The decrease was mainly resulted from
the combined effect of (i) the new interest- bearing loans and other
borrowings of approximately RMB798.2 million; and (ii) decrease in
an amount due to a director, the repayment of bank loans, other
borrowings, bonds and principal portion of payment of lease and
payment of interest of approximately RMB876.7 million.

EXCHANGE RISK EXPOSURE

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and most of its operating
transactions are settled in Renminbi except for export sales and
overseas borrowings which are mostly denominated in US dollar
and HK dollar. Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in Renminbi. Although the Group may be exposed to
foreign currency exchange risks, the Board does not expect that
future currency fluctuations would materially impact the Group’s
operations. The Group did not adopt formal hedging policies nor
instruments of foreign currency for managing the exchange risk
exposure during the year ended 31 December 2024.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group invested
approximately RMB62.3 million for the upgrading of property, plant
and equipment. These capital expenditures were fully financed by
internal resources.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE
As at 31 December 2024, the Group guaranteed RMB17.9 million
(2023: RMB27.4 million) to certain purchasers of the Group’s
properties for mortgage facilities.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group pledged the following assets with an aggregate net book
value to secure bank loans granted to the Group as at 31
December 2024:

(i) certain property, plant and equipment of approximately
RMB662.3 million (2023: RMB696.4 million);

(i)  certain leasehold land of approximately RMB464.7 million
(2023: RMB481.6 million); and

(iii) completed properties held for sale of approximately
RMB1,001.2 million (2023: RMB1,003.0 million).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Group’s gearing ratio is calculated based on the sum of bank
loans, other borrowings and fixed rate bonds and notes divided by
total assets. The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December
2024 and 2023 were approximately 28.7% and 28.5%, respectively.
There was no major change in gearing ratio in 2024 as compared
with that of 2023.

On 27 April 2020, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with an investment fund, pursuant to which the
Company agreed to issue, and the investment fund agreed to
subscribe for HK$140,000,000 12% bonds due in April 2022 (the
“‘Bonds”). The Company and the noteholder mutually agreed to
extend the maturity date to 20 January 2025. Mr. Chen Chang, an
executive Director and the controlling shareholder of the Company,
undertakes and covenants that for so long as any of the Bonds
remain outstanding, he shall remain as (i) the single largest direct
or indirect shareholder of the Company; and (ii) the chairman of the
Board and executive Director (the “Specific Performance
Obligations”). Any breach of the Specific Performance Obligations
may constitute an event of default under the Bonds and the
bondholder is entitled to redeem the Bonds immediately upon the
occurrence of the breach in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Bonds. Subsequent to 31 December 2024 and up
to the date of this report, the Company has fully settled the Bonds.
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As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s total borrowings amounted to
approximately RMB1,865 million, of which approximately 45%
(2023: 8%) were long term borrowings and approximately 55%
(2023: 92%) were short term borrowings. The total borrowings
included, (i) a loan of RMB736 million in relation to the Group’s
property development business; and (ii) net borrowings under steel
pipe business of around RMB1,129 million. The Group had to
finance its working capital of steel pipe business by short term
borrowings as around 90% of the cost of sales was incurred on the
procurement of steel plates and steel coils. Once the Group
received sales proceeds from its customers, it would then repay the
short term borrowings. Taking into account the Group’s cash in
hand, the Group has sufficient liquidity and is in a strong financial
position to repay its short term borrowings.

As at 31 December 2024, (i) approximately 81% (2023: 80%) of the
total borrowings were denominated in Renminbi which carried
interest rates linked to the benchmark lending rate published by the
People’s Bank of China; (ii) approximately 14% (2023: 16%) of the
total borrowings were denominated in Renminbi which carried fixed
interest rate; and (iii) approximately 5% (2023: 4%) of the total
borrowings were denominated in US dollar and HK dollar which
carried fixed interest rate.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

As at the date of this report, the Group had no significant
investments, material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the year.

LITIGATION

The Group is involved in certain lawsuits brought by third parties
alleging that the Group breached and repudiated certain purchase
and construction contracts. The claims are subject to legal
arbitration and are expected to conclude in 2025. As at 31
December 2024, a provision of approximately RMB44.8 million has
been provided.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As at the date of this report, there is no significant event
subsequent to 31 December 2024 which would materially affect the
Group’s operating and financing performance.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

For the year ended 31 December 2024, staff costs (including
Directors’ remuneration in the form of salaries) were approximately
RMB123.5 million (2023: RMB151.4 million).

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice. The emoluments of the
Directors are recommended by the Remuneration Committee and
are decided by the Board, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
Competitive remuneration package is offered to retain elite
employees. Our package includes salaries, medical insurance,
discretionary bonuses, on-job training, other benefits as well as
mandatory provident funds schemes for employees in Hong Kong
and state-managed retirement benefit schemes for employees in the
PRC. Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme, options to
subscribe for shares in the Company may be granted to eligible
employees. No share option was granted under the share option
scheme during the year ended 31 December 2024.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 858 full time
employees (2023: 875 employees). The following sets forth the total
number of our staff by functions:

EBE R FHMBUR
HE-T-_WNF+-_A=+—BHLFE BEIxA(E
BHeHANESIS) 48 ARM123,500,0007T (=
T =% : AR¥151,400,0007T) °

AEEREETINRE  EREABTRENEEET
MWEM - B2 IEFMEZE S RMEREELA
EEREEAKENEEES  AARALAITELERN
MERABBEREE - AKBREEAHEF DOFHMMET
B UNEETEFET - #HMANMeEARESE BF
Rig - BISTEAL - BB - BRI AREETEER
THRHIMEAESHERARTEE THBEERKERN
FHE - RIBARBZBRAETE RBARFABMO 2B
AR TAERRE - RBE_FT_NF+_A=1
—BLEFE  SEREBEES SR BRE -

RIE-_WNF+-A=+—H AEBHLEF858Z 2K
EBE(ZE_=% :875%E8) - T EHEE S
HBTEBeE :

2024 2023
—E-mF —g-=

Management B3 55 52
Production and logistics EERYR 334 347
Sales and marketing SHE RS HE 51 58
Finance B 7% 44 44
Quality control FEEH 105 113
R&D o EE 122 106
Procurement g 18 20
General administration and others —MRAT IR E A 129 135
Total a5t 858 875
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PROSPECT

Prospect

Tension in the Middle East and climate change have exacerbated
uncertainty in the global energy market amidst the ongoing Russia-
Ukraine conflict. The continued downward trend in global inflation,
the continued sluggishness of the European economy, the
slowdown in the economic growth of the United States, the
appreciation of the US dollar and the depreciation of the Renminbi
have posed challenges to the Group’s international trade. The
Group expects that the year 2025 will remain a challenging year for
the oil and natural gas industry. In the medium and long term, it is
expected that the oil and natural gas industry will continue to
develop due to the combined effects of the insufficient oil and
natural gas pipeline facilities, and China’s emphasis on energy
security and the promotion of clean energy.

For a long time, oil and natural gas have always been the
overriding primary energy in the global energy consumption
structure, and China is no exception. In recent years, the output of
crude oil and natural gas has continued to increase, especially for
clean energy such as natural gas, which has experienced long-term
rapid growth in output. Oil and gas pipeline construction industry is
an important part of the development of China’s energy industry, as
well as an important support for national energy security and
economic development. With the rapid development of China’s
economy, the oil and gas pipeline industry has developed rapidly,
and the market size has been expanding. In August 2024, the
State Council Information Office of the PRC issued the white paper
on China’s Energy Transition. The white paper pointed out that in
order to enhance the optimal allocation of resources, China has
accelerated the construction of energy network infrastructure
spanning east to west, north to south, and covering the whole
country, enhancing the ability of energy transmission over a wide
range of long distances. The interconnection of energy pipelines
and networks has been strengthened, and the national network of
oil, gas and electricity is becoming more and more dense, with the
resilience of the energy system being continuously improved.
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At the beginning of 2022, the National Development and Reform
Commission and the National Energy Administration issued the
“14th Five-Year Plan Modern Energy System Plan”, which put
forward the goal that by 2025, the scale of domestic oil and gas
pipeline network would reach approximately 210,000 kilometers. As
of the end of 2023, the total mileage of long-distance oil and gas
pipelines in China reached approximately 190,000 kilometers,
including 33,000 kilometers of crude oil pipelines, 33,000
kilometers of refined oil pipelines and 124,000 kilometers of natural
gas pipelines. According to the demand forecast under the “dual
carbon” goal, it is expected that China will add a total of
approximately 65,000 kilometers of natural gas pipeline
construction by 2035, including 29,500 kilometers of new trunk
pipelines and 35,300 kilometers of provincial pipelines,
approximately 2,000 kilometers of new crude oil pipelines and
4,000 kilometers of refined oil product pipelines. The “14th Five-
Year Plan” will see China’s oil and gas pipeline network enter into
a new development stage of “national network” with physical
interconnection and fair and open services, and it is expected that
China will enjoy a stable growth in pipeline transportation in the
next 10 to 20 vyears, of which the construction of pipeline
transportation for natural gas pipelines and other ancillary facilities
will be the focus of development. In 2024, major trunk pipeline
projects such as the China Russia East Line (except for the
Nantong-Luzhi section which is under construction), the West-East
line 3 (except for the Zhongwei-Zaoyang section which is under
construction), and the Shaanxi-Beijing line 3/4 have been completed
and commissioned. The Group will benefit from the construction of

oil and natural gas pipelines.
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In order to implement the energy security strategy of “Four
Revolutions and One Co-operation”, China Oil & Gas Pipeline
Network Corporation (“Pipe China”) was formally established at the
end of 2019, which is principally engaged in the investment,
construction and operation of infrastructure such as oil and gas
trunk pipeline networks and gas storage and peak shaving, the
interconnection of the trunk pipeline network and the connection of
social pipelines, as well as the operation and scheduling of the
national oil and gas pipeline network. In recent years, Pipe China
has accelerated the interconnection of the trunk pipeline network
and promoted the interconnection of the west-east gas transmission
pipeline system with the China-Russia East Line and the Jiangsu-
Anhui Pipeline in the Yangtze River Delta Region, so as to weave
the “line” into a “network” and form the “west-east gas transmission,
Russian-south gas transmission, south-north gas transmission,
Sichuan-east gas transmission, sea gas delivery to land, flexible
deployment, comprehensive protection” pattern of gas supply,
enhancing the oil and gas transportation capacity, to ensure a safe
and stable supply of oil and gas energy. Pipe China plans to
accelerate the construction of a “national network” of oil and gas in
the future, and to unify the advantages of planning, construction
and operation, and to accelerate the layout of the “6 major strategic
channels + 7 verticals, 7 horizontals” natural gas pipeline network
structure,“4 major strategic channels + 3 major regions” crude oil
pipeline network structure, and the “3 verticals, 3 horizontals + 5
major regions” refined oil pipeline network structure. Since its
establishment, Pipe China has been constantly strengthening the
overall co-ordination of China’s oil and gas pipeline network layout,
which has a positive impact on the development of the industry,
and the Group’s position as a qualified supplier of Pipe China has

also had a positive impact on the Group.
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According to the China Natural Gas Development Report (2024), in
2023, a series of major achievements were made in domestic
natural gas exploration, with major breakthroughs in onshore ultra-
deep, deepwater and unconventional gas exploration, and the
discovery of a number of hundreds of billions of cubic meters of
gas zones in basins such as the Tarim, Sichuan and Erdos, etc.
National natural gas consumption increased from 184.8 billion cubic
meters in 2014 to 394.5 billion cubic meters in 2023, and the
increase in consumption accounted for 37% of the total increase in
global consumption. 165.6 billion cubic meters of natural gas was
imported into the country in 2023, a year-on-year increase of 9.9%,
with the main sources of imports including Turkmenistan, Australia,
Russia, Qatar, etc. In 2023, the total mileage of long-distance
natural gas pipelines in China was 124,000 kilometers, with more
than 4,000 kilometers of long-distance pipelines completed, and it is
expected that more than 4,000 kilometers of new pipelines will be
added in 2024. As a manufacturer of natural gas welded steel pipe,
the Group will firmly seize these opportunities.

In order to achieve the “dual carbon” strategic goal of “achieving
peak carbon dioxide emission before 2030 and carbon neutrality
before 2060”, China indicates that ecology-focused green and low-
carbon development will become the leading strategy in the future.
In the medium to long term, natural gas will become the focus of
energy development, while oil and gas companies will also actively
develop and explore clean energy, such as hydrogen, wind power
and hydro-power. The construction of a series of natural gas
pipeline, wind power and offshore platforms will be accelerated. In
addition, the Group will actively expand its insulation pipe business,
aiming to meet the demand for green and low-carbon products.
With its technical strength and track record, the Group will be able
to jointly achieve the “dual carbon” strategic goal of “carbon
neutrality”.

38 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

BRE(PERXARERRE (ZTZM)  ZTZ=F -
BEAXRARDIFREE —RINERKR - ELBRE R
K EFERMENEERNRE - FEEEAR - W) - 3P
BWEHMEAMBRZETREILAIKBARE - 2EKA
REREH T INFEMN1848BI HKIERE-_T
=FEM3M45BUL K HREMEE 2 HBIBEN
7% ZEZ=F  2EEORATI656EILHK
R 8 R9.9% - F 2O NREIE L ESHTHE  JBAF|
D RELS - FRESH —T-=F 2BEHAAR
BEABRIREI24BNE - B K% E B EE4,000
NE BRI T _NF KT B EIZHE4,0000 E ©
REEERRAREELER  TRATEEBE K
‘;@ °

TERERI T FHERICEE  —TARTFH
BERRHBMI [ ERIBEE BT FRENERRER
MR B ERER KR RKHEEHAE - PRAXAR
B RERERNER R hREEDEEBERR
RFRER WMAR RAIBERKNEESF R
R —RIRARER  BENE L FENEREEM
R 40 AEBERGRRFRAE X - BEREHE
EAREmIFE K o BEAEBEXME ) M EG LKL
HEEIR 8 08 [ 0% ) B B4R -

Annual Report 2024



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In the international market, although the ongoing Russia-Ukraine
conflict and the tense situation in the Middle East have exacerbated
uncertainty of the global energy market, the continued increase in
crude oil supply has put international oil prices on a long-term
bearish trend. On the other hand, insufficient global economic
growth momentum, increased use of alternative energy, and warmer
winter temperatures have led to a sharp drop in international gas
prices. According to the China Natural Gas Development Report
(2024), in 2023, the total mileage of natural gas pipelines in
operation worldwide was 1.36 million kilometers, mainly in North
America, Europe, Asia-Pacific, Russia-Central Asia, and China,
indicating that the natural gas pipeline coverage rate in other
undeveloped countries is still low. In addition, the report mentioned
that according to the report “On the Path to 100% Clean Electricity”
released by the U.S. Department of Energy, it is planned to
achieve 100% clean electricity by 2035, and the proportion of clean
energy power generation will be increased from 44% to 71%, and
certain countries will continue to withdraw from nuclear and coal
power generation, which will enable the Group to further expand its
market share of the welded pipe overseas.

The Group believes that it is also our mission to achieve national
energy safety and dual carbon goal, which will create business
opportunities for the steel pipe manufacturing industry at the same
time. Therefore, the Group will firmly seize the opportunities to
boost its sales. As our long-term strategic goal is to become a
leading global steel pipe manufacturer, the Group will expand our
customer bases and market share by participating in more global oil
and gas and engineering projects, diversify the use of steel pipes
by supplying steel pipes for projects in infrastructure and high-end
construction fields, such as bridges, wind power generation,
offshore platforms, insulation pipe and water pipes. The Group will
also continue to leverage its strengths in the steel pipe industry to
secure more project orders.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Chen Chang (FR &)

Mr CHEN Chang (/% &), aged 79, is the chief executive officer and
the chairman of the Board and also a member of the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr Chen
is the father of Ms Chen Zhao Nian (being executive Director).
Being the founder of the Group, Mr Chen is primarily responsible
for the overall management, strategic planning and business
development of the Group. Mr Chen has over 60 years of
experience in areas related to woodwork, machine tool equipment
and lift/escalator equipment and has accumulated abundant
experience and knowledge in the mechanical and electrical industry.
Mr Chen graduated from the graduate school of Sun Yat-Sen
University* (F 1L X2) in Guangdong Province in October 1995
majoring in decision management.

Mr Chen has been appointed by several steel pipe related
associations and organisations for various positions, including:

. Member of the Fourth Session of Welded Steel Pipe Academic
Committee of the Steel Rolling Branch Association of the
Chinese Society for Metals* (P& B2 285D @ E M0 E /IR
EMERMEEE®E) (2001)

. Vice president of the China Township Enterprises Association*
(FEIE L X & EI S &) (2004, 2008)

. Vice chairman of the 4th and 5th sessions of the board of
directors of the China Steel Construction Society and the
Steel Pipe Branch Association* (BB HeMEH S E M
EREekFAEEEFZRIEER) (2004, 2008)

. Vice chairman of the 4th, 5th and 6th consecutive council of
the Cold-formed Steel Sub-committee of the China Steel
Structure Association* (FEi&EHELERMO > SFEN -
o ANEEEEEIEEER) (2004, 2005 and 2010)

. Vice president of the Metallurgical Chamber of Commerce of
the All-China Federation of Industry & Commerce* (4 # % E
ITEEEEtEgAEEER2RK) (2006)

. Vice chairman of the 8th of the Steel Pipe Branch of China
Steel Structure Association* (R ElZ&EIHEHEHSH/\JE
BlIIEER) (2022)

*
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Mr Chen has received various awards, honours qualifications, fRICEEEZ ARIBREEER  BIF

including:

. Honoured by the Ministry of Commerce, Industry and Energy . AAESIREAHELBEERMEER - #HUEX
of the Republic of Korea for his contributions to Korean BRETHERERIERZ (ZETNEF)

economic development through trade revitalisation (2004)

. Excellent Entrepreneur in Chinese Private Technology . PELIRTIHEBREcSTATEESRER DS
Enterprises awarded by the All-China Federation of Industry & ER(ZZETWF)

Commerce* (FEZHEIHEBGSTR/ATRESRERFA
% %K) (2004)

. Awarded the First Prize of Science and Technology Awards . BINTTARBRNIRBERME-—F8EE (=
by the Guangzhou Municipality People’s Government* (&} TT+F)
ARBITF ARS8 —F 245 %) (2007)

. Awarded as authority expert of welded pipe industry by the . FREERERERBETREETEERER (=
Chinese International Authority Expert's Association* (7 [ TELHF)
BRERERBETREETERMER) (2007)

. The invention of “three-roller forming technology and . TFHZERATELRELEE NEBERERARE
equipment” was awarded the gold prize in the Sixth Session e rRECRREEREATERERSE JH
of International Exhibition of Inventions and outstanding award EERTAEFE(ZTZENSF)
by the Guangdong Provincial Bureau of Personnel and the
Guangdong Province Intellectual Property Department* (Z%#3
CHERBETERSEITEFE NERRERREG LRESRR
EEREAFTERERENBEERT RES ) (2008)

. Outstanding Individual in Earthquake Relief in Guangzhou* (/& . BMmmER S EEEA(ZTETNEF)

M ERCEKE S EA) (2008)

. The Fourth Invention and Entrepreneur Award by the China . PRSI ENEEREEE](ZETNF)
Steel Association* (= B i i 17 & %5 /1 = [ BRI RIS 22 1) (2009)

. Guangzhou Model Labour* (E M4 Eh1E4) (2009) . BMMEEES (ZETNEF)

. First Prize of Science and Technology Award in Guangdong . BHIBURE TERM R RV ERHRREES
Province (EBRE R ZRMi4€—548) for the research and ERERERME-—FH(ZT—FTF)
development of LSAW manufacturing process and technology
and its series of products (2010)

. Guangzhou Outstanding Entrepreneur* (EMTEF D ER) . BMNMEBEFEER(ZT——F)

(2011)

Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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*

Nationwide Outstanding Entrepreneur* (& B & F %K)
(2012)

Guangzhou Outstanding Contribution Award for Science and
Technology* (/M MBI #1728 1 5 Bl 42) (2012)

Outstanding Industrial Individual of Science and Technology in
the PRC’s iron and steel industry* (FFEIE T2 EHFRIET
¥#) (2012)

Guangzhou Figure of Focus* (£ YL A %) (2012)

The Outstanding Entrepreneur for the Competition of the Top
10 Guangzhou Construction Project in 2012* (20124 E &
ETHIRLHHFEERADLERK) (2013)

Outstanding Contribution Award for Innovation in Guangzhou*

(B H 81 Bk BR 2% 1 B BA 28 (2013)

Top 10 Guangdong Economic Influential Individuals in 2013*

(2013 F B T+ R&ERZEAY) (2013)

Nationwide “May 1st’ Labour Award* (ZEA—4EHEE)
(2014)

Gold Prize of the 8th International Invention Exhibition* (551
[E Bl 3 A g & 4%) (2014)

5th China Overseas Chinese Community (Innovative
Achievement) Contribution Award* (28 i fg & B & 7 (8] ¥TAL R
=) EREE) (2014)

14th World Outstanding Chinese Award* (& 0 fE tt 57 ¢ %
A#5) (2015)

National Model Worker* (& B %5 &)1 &) (2015)

Guangzhou Entrepreneurial Entrepreneur for 30 years* (& /M

BIE30F BB %R) (2016)

Gold Prize of the 19th International Invention Exhibition* (28

1. JE BIFR 22 BR & £%) (2016)
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. Yu Shan Outstanding Contribution Award* (& Ll &£ i & Bl %)
(2016)

. 2016 Guangzhou Industry Leader* (2016 EEMTEXEE
AZ) (2017)

. The Most Socially Responsible Entrepreneur in Guangzhou*
(ENMERAEMGEEREER) (2017)

. Top Ten Economic Persons in Guangzhou* (/&M 1 X4 R
= A¥)) (2018)

. The Central Committee of the Communist Party of China, the
State Council and the Central Military Commission jointly
issued a commemorative medal to celebrate the 70th
anniversary of the founding of the People’s Republic of
China* (PR - BFHk - PREZHFRBEBENPE AR
MEIRKSZ 70 F 422 E) (2019)

As at the date of this annual report, Mr Chen is the sole director
and sole shareholder of Bournam Profits Limited, which is
interested in 701,911,000 shares of the Company. Together with Mr
Chen’s personal interest of 4,350,000 shares of the Company, Mr
Chen has a total interest of 706,261,000 shares of the Company.

*
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Ms Chen Zhao Nian (B Jk )

Ms CHEN Zhao Nian (FRJE4F), aged 48, is an executive Director.
She is the daughter of Mr Chen Chang (being chairman of the
Board and an executive Director). Ms Chen is primarily responsible
for the daily management and operations of the Group. Ms Chen
joined the Group in October 2002 as vice general manager. She
received a PhD’s degree in economics from the Jinan University in
2021. She also obtained a bachelor's degree in arts from the
University of Central Lancashire in the United Kingdom in June
2000 and a master’'s degree in accounting from Leeds Metropolitan
University in the United Kingdom in October 2002. Ms Chen has
taken up the following public duties and has received the following
awards:

Public duties:

. Member of the Standing Committee of 16th Session of NPC
in Panyu, Guangzhou* (BMNM#HFBEE T EBAKXEE)
(2011)

. Executive member of the Guangzhou Glory Society* (& /N

RFEERESIEE) (2012)

. Vice chairwoman of the Federation of Industry & Commerce
in Panyu District of Guangzhou* (EMM&E SR T HERE S
BlEE) (2012)

. President of the Youth Association of Panyu Merchants and
Entrepreneurs in Panyu District* (ER2 @B HAlX5FHeg
&) (2012)

. Member of the 12th Executive Committee for Guangzhou

Women* (EMTiRZE+ —EHITEEEZE) (2012)

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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. Chairlady of the Guangzhou Association of Women . &N T 2z 1 % SR(ZT—=%)

Entrepreneurs* (EM M ZEERIBEEK) (2013)

. Representative of Guangzhou in the 11th All-China Women . REFHEBLBHAEET —EEREMNRK(Z
Federation Conference* (P 2 BRLHACTE T —ECHE T—=%)

MLER) (2013)

. Committee member of the Guangzhou Committee of the 12th . FREARBAGEERE T _ERMNMEE®ZE
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference* (B AR B(ZZ %)
BoathmEeHE T ZEENTEZEESEZE) (2014)

. Guangzhou Deputy Director of the Federation of Young . BMNTIMMSFCERZEEKI A (=
Entrepreneurs Committee* (BEMM LEBSFLEREZEFH —M%)
gl E1T) (2014)

. Committee member of the 12th Guangdong Provincial . BRAGHET _EAEEEBEE (-1
Women’s Federation, the Executive Committee* (/& & 4 f B %)
FET_ERZEFEBEE) (2014)

. Vice President of Guangdong Province Private Enterprises . ERERECEREFRREESRER(Z2E—
Investment Development Association* (ER & R& D ERE HEF)
EEEZEEK) (2015)

. Vice President of Guangdong Province Association of Women . EREZPERBEASGR(ZT—R1F)

Entrepreneurs* (ERE X b ERIHEEIE &) (2015)

S
)
EE
rm:

. Executive Vice President of Guangdong Province Association . EREBBARREGEKAGR(ZE—AF)

of Public Affairs* (EREHEA@RETEBIER) (2015)

. Vice President of Guangzhou Taxpayers Association* (E/M T . EBENTHFRAGCEERE(ZE—RE)
MBEABEEIEK) (2015)

. Representative of the 15th People’s Congress of Guangzhou . BMNMETRABEARRRRAERER(ZZ—RF)
City* (BMME+TLEARRKRKEREK) (2016)

. President of Guangdong Women and Children’s Fund* (& . ERARLAEHSEHER(ZT—+tF)
FRLREEEGEER) (2017)

*
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Member of the 12th Executive Committee for National
Women's Federation* (2 EFEHE T —ERNTEESEE)
(2018)

Member of the 13th Executive Committee for Guangzhou
Women’s Federation* (EMNTERHE+T=ZERTEZESZELE)
(2019)

Honorary President of the Youth Association of Panyu
Merchants and Entrepreneurs in Panyu District* (/&I 71 % &
REFAXSFHeLEEFR) (2019)

Committee member of the 13th Guangdong Provincial
Women’s Federation, the Executive Committee* (/&R & i@
ET=ZERNEZSEHESE) (2019)

Vice President and member of the 14th Executive Committee
for Guangzhou Women'’s Federation* (&M & B R FHE +
[E#1TE B &3 EIE/E) (2020)

Instructor of Women'’s Innovation and Entrepreneurship Mentor
Group in Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area
(BBRANE R 15 285 8] 5 56 E EAM) (2020)

Member of the Standing Committee of the 14th Guangzhou
Municipal Committee of Zhi Gong Party* (BLAE EMNTHE Y
EZEEEHREEZXE) (2021)

Entrepreneurial mentor of the Yunfan Project of the Guangzhou
European and American Alumni Association* (/& /B3R 22

EWNEFTE B ERD) (2021)

Executive Vice President of the 7th Council of Guangdong
Women Entrepreneurs Association* (ERE X PERHEE+
EREeRBEgR) (2022)

Representative of the 13th National Congress of Chinese

Women* (R EIR L E+ =R 2EARAGHRK) (2023)

Member of the 14th Guangzhou Municipal Committee of the
CPPCC* (BMpE tMNEEMNMZE®Z8) (2024)

Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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Awards: #FIF -

The 8th Civilised Family with Five Distinctive Merits by the All-
China Women’s Federation* (F22 B LB AL HE/\[E AL
NEHZREE) (2012)

Female Pace Setter with Great Contribution (National Level)*

(2EIMERENZE LX) (2013)

Most Charismatic Woman in 60 years of Guangzhou Loving
Hearts* (2% &) E M 604 & A ik 1 1) (2013)

Guangzhou Outstanding Entrepreneur Honors* (& /N {EFH
#%) (2013)

Guangdong Outstanding Women Entrepreneur Honours* (£

HEIEFLELER]) (2013)

“March 8th Flag Bearer’ of Guangzhou* (&N [ = \ALHEF |)
(2010-2013)

Outstanding Women Entrepreneur* (£t Al Z 0 1£) (2014)

*

Guangdong Province Top Ten Outstanding Scholarly Home

(BERETTREFEBRZXK]) (2014)

Ten Outstanding Young Entrepreneur* (+EEF S EMLER)
(2015)

Guangdong Top Ten “Charity Contribution Award”™* (&3 +1F
[#EFERE]) (2015)

Top 10 Guangdong Business New Individuals in 2015* (2015
BERE R+ RFHAY) (2016)

* Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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ERTEIBE=RE( T —0F)

2015 ERBF AT RIMAY (ZF—RF)
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*

Diamond Award of Charity Figures* (20164 Z#% & AW A
#%) (2016)

Guangzhou New Generation Outstanding Entrepreneur* (/!
MERBFERER) (2016)

Outstanding CEO (20164 £ 4 CEO) (2016)

The 1st National Civilized Family* (F—E2BEIXBEXRE)
(2016)

Award of 2nd Bauhinia Women Entrepreneur* (£ —f@ XX
R ) (2017)

2017 District “Industry Talent Urgently Needed Shortage”™
UI7TEERIEXZFEMRALIEIR) (2017)

Panyu District Integrity Family Award* (& & & 5825 & #%)
(2018)

Top 10 Guangzhou Most Beautiful Philanthropist Families®
(2018 EEIMN T T REEEEKEE) (2018)

Charity Love Award by Guangdong Province Association of
Women Entrepreneurs* (ERE L ERHE — EET L)
(2019)

Charity Award by Guangdong Province Association of Women
Entrepreneurs, Guangdong Province Women and Children’s
Fund* (BEREAXBERNE EREFELXREESS — RS
AT) (2019)

Advanced Individuals in Social Service Work by Zhi Gong Party
Guangdong Provincial Committee (MAEEREZE S —
NEME RS TIEREEA) (2020)

Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only
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. The 8th Guangzhou Moral Model* (5 /\f& &M mhEEEE) . FENEEMNTERES (T _—F)
(2021)
. “Guangdong Good People” in the first quarter of 2021* (2021 . 221FEF—FEIERITANZEZ—%F)

FE—FEIERIF AL (2021)

. Guangdong Province Typical Cases of Integrity Business* (& . EREMEEEFABRI(ZZT = —F)
A E A g A 22 1) (2022)

. China Women Entrepreneurs Association — Outstanding . PREZGERGE — GHAELMER(Z2 =
female entrepreneurial model* (FEZMER S — #EHAIZE —%)

ZIERE) (2022)

. Guangdong Provincial Women Entrepreneurs Association, . BERELZPERNBE BEREGBLTEESE —
Guangdong Provincial Women and Children’s Foundation — AERTESEECESEARE(ZTZ=F)

Great Love Charity Fund Charity Individual Bronze Award*
(BEREZECEZRHGE  BREFRLAEESE — RERTE
EETEZEARE) (2023)

. Guangzhou Women Entrepreneurs Association — The 10th . BMNMAZECERGE — FHEESR(ZE==
Philanthropist* (BM M ZtEXRBE — ETEEEXR) (2023) %)

. Integrity Star (Guangzhou Integrity Construction Promotion . HECE(BMNMRERERREES)(ZE-HF)
Association)* #1527 2 (EMMEEEREEE) (2024)

. The Most Beautiful Female Entrepreneurial Leader in Panyu . HBRELEEE — BREEREMEEIXTE

District (Panyu District Women’s Federation)* # £ [& iF 2Bt & A(ZZEZMEF)
g-HFREHEDEAIZETEA (2024)

*

Unofficial transliteration from Chinese name for identification purposes only

R RS WIFRAARBERRERAT 49



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEBERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Chen Ping (B F)

Mr CHEN Ping (Ff ), aged 59, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 23 January 2010. Mr Chen is also the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr Chen
graduated from the Jinan University, the PRC in 1984 majoring in
finance and later obtained a doctoral degree in finance in Nankai
University, the PRC in December 1990.

Mr Chen is currently a professor at Lingnan College of Sun Yat-sen
University in Guangdong Province, China, a doctoral supervisor in
finance and world economy, a director of the Marine Economic
Research Center of Sun Yat-sen University, the chief scientist of
the Marine Economic Innovation Team of the Southern Marine
Science and Engineering Guangdong Laboratory (Zhuhai), a
researcher at the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Development
Research Institute of Sun Yat-sen University, a national high-end
think tank, a candidate for the “New Century Excellent Talent
Support Program”, a major research project on philosophy and
social sciences of the Ministry of Education, and a chief expert on
major research projects of the National Social Science Fund. Mr
Chen has also served as the dean of the Department of
International Trade and Finance at Sun Yat-sen University in China,
the director of the Institute of Economic Research, the deputy dean
of Lingnan College, and a senior visiting scholar at the
Massachusetts Institute of Technology. Mr Chen’s academic
research is devoted to financial theory and policy, global economy,
etc. Since 2000, he has presided over 11 national-level projects
and more than 40 provincial-level and above-level projects, and
published more than 70 academic papers in core domestic journals
and 6 monographs.

Mr Chen was an independent director of Guangzhou Zhujiang
Brewery Group Co., Ltd.* (BN BRI E)E X5 AR A A]), a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002461 SZ),
from 10 October 2016 to 5 January 2023. Mr Chen was also an
independent director of Shenzhen Universe (Group) Co. Ltd ((ZYIITH
Kb (&) 5 BBR2AR]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 000023 SZ), since 15 July 2019.

50 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah (&5 & %)

Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah (i[5 ZZE), aged 60, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 1 October 2019. Mr Au
Yeung is also the chairman of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Mr Au Yeung obtained a bachelor’'s degree in commerce
from the Bond University in Australia in September 1996, a
master’'s degree in accountancy from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong in December 2000, a postgraduate diploma in corporate
administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
December 2005 and an EMBA degree from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in December 2008. Mr Au Yeung is a member of
CPA Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 28 years of experience in auditing and
financial control through his prior employments with accounting
firms and listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr Zhan Jian Zhou (BZH)

Mr Zhan Jian Zhou (E#®), aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 1 September 2023. Mr Zhan
is also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of
the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of
the Company.

Mr Zhan, was awarded the Certificate in Foreign Trade by
Shenzhen University and completed the postgraduate course of
professional studies in business administration at Sichuan
University. He holds a Master of Business Administration from Sun
Yat-sen University. He is currently the president of the China
International Ocean Forum Belt and Road Investment Fund and the
fund manager of Imagi Brokerage Limited. He is a representative of
a company which is authorized to carry out Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activity in Hong Kong. He held senior
positions with major international banks and financial investment
groups for years. Mr Zhan was nominated as the outstanding
private entrepreneur in Laibin City, Guangxi in 2006. Mr Zhan has
extensive knowledge in corporate finance and banking.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms Liu Yonghe (2I3kfi)

Ms LIU Yonghe (2I3kf), aged 56, joined PCKSP in June 1994
and had worked as accounting staff and financial manager. Ms Liu
has acquired profound experience in financial management,
accounting and auditing during her employment with the Group for
over 29 years. Ms Liu is now responsible for cash flow and
working capital control of the Group. She completed her
professional accounting education at Lanzhou University of Finance
and Economics, the PRC in 1990 with a bachelor's degree in
economics and obtained professional qualification as assistant
accountant in 1991. Ms Liu has over 32 years of experience in the
accounting and finance industry. She was awarded the “March 8th
Flag Bearer” in 1999 and 2002, and the post she held was
awarded as the Women’'s Exemplary Post by the Guangzhou
Women’s Union in March 2005. In October 2009, Ms Liu obtained
a master’'s degree in the Executive Master of Business
Administration (EMBA) programme at the Asia International Open

University (Macau).

Ms Wong Pui Shan (E %)

Ms WONG Pui Shan (E#ift), aged 48, joined the Group in April
2011 as the chief financial officer and company secretary of the
Company. She is responsible for corporate finance management
and company secretarial work of the Group. Ms Wong received her
Master of Science in Finance from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and Bachelor of Arts Degree (Hons) in Accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute and the Chartered Governance
Institute. Prior to joining the Company, she had served international
audit firms for four years and listed companies as financial
controller and company secretary for more than 22 years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms Wong Pui Shan (T %)

Ms WONG is the company secretary of the Company. Ms Wong is
working for the Company on a full time basis. Details of her
biography are set out above in this section.

Ms Wong has complied with the relevant professional training

requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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The Directors hereby present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company include
manufacture and sales of welded steel pipes. The Group is also
engaged in property development and investment.

Details of the company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2024 are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND
The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2024 and the
state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 122 to 266.

The Directors did not recommend payment of dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as well as discussion
and analysis of the Group’ s performance during the year under
review can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 7 to 13
and pages 21 to 39 respectively.

The Group will continue to focus on its steel pipe business by
diversifying its product usage and market segment. For property
development, the Group will continue to sell units of Phase Il GDC
and receive rental income from shops of Phase | GDC.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
The Group is highly aware of the importance of environment
protection and has not noted any material non-compliance with all
relevant laws and regulations in relation to its business including
health and safety, workplace conditions, employment and the
environment. The Group has implemented environmental protection
measures to reduce energy consumption, treat sewage before
recycling and discharge, and sell wasted steel products to recycling
companies. Further details of the Group’s environmental policies
and performance can be found in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” set out on pages 91 to 110.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group was not
aware of any non-compliance with any relevant laws and
regulations that might have a significant impact on the businesses
of the Group.

RELATIONS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

Employees: The Group remunerates its employees based on their
performance, experience and prevailing industry practice. Our
package includes salaries, medical insurance, discretionary
bonuses, on-job training, other benefits as well as mandatory
provident funds schemes for employees in Hong Kong and state-
managed retirement benefit schemes for employees in the PRC.
Our current relationship with our employees and the labour unions
are good and are based on mutual support and respect.

Customers: We have built strong, long-standing relationships with
our major customers, and established a strong customer base. We
have obtained numerous patents, awards and recognitions,
international certificates and long standing international and
nationwide track record to establish our stable customer base. We
are an industry pioneer and are the first and only steel pipe
manufacturer in the PRC to manufacture and successfully develop
deep sea welded steel pipes for the use at a water depth of
3,500m and a qualified supplier of Petrobras and Petronas. We
believe that this can enable us to establish and maintain market
leadership in the steel pipe industry.

Suppliers: We choose our suppliers of raw materials mainly based
on the prices and quality of raw materials offered. We issue
purchase orders to our suppliers that set out the quantities, prices
and specifications of the products to be purchased, delivery
arrangement and credit terms which were determined at arms’
length negotiations between the parties based on normal
commercial terms. We believe the relationship between us and our
major suppliers is good and stable. Most of our procurements were
paid in RMB.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements, is set out on pages 267 to 268. This summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements.

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Group’s financial condition and results of operations would be
affected by a number of factors. The principal risks and
uncertainties relating to the Group are set out below:

. The Group’s revenue of steel pipe business is dependent on
securing sales orders for new projects through biddings from
customers. Most of our revenue is generated from pipeline or
other infrastructure projects that are mainly project-originated
and non-recurring in nature. Our revenue will be affected if
we cannot successfully obtain biddings from customers.

. The Group does not have any long term contracts with its
customers of steel pipe business. If the Group’s customers
choose not to engage the Group in the future, the Group’s
steel pipe business operations, financial results and
profitability will be affected.

. The Group’s revenue of property business is dependent on the
policy of PRC government. Any change of PRC policy will
affect the property business operations, financial results and
profitability.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.
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As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s reserves, including the
share premium account and contributed surplus and accumulated
losses, available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the
Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands (the “Companies Law”), amounted
to approximately RMB41.4 million. The Board does not recommend
the payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2024. Details of the reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2024 are set out in note 40 to the financial statements.

The reserves of the Group available for distribution depend on the
dividend distributable by the Company’s subsidiaries. For dividend
purpose, the amount which the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC
can legally distribute by way of dividend is determined by reference
to their distributable profits as reflected in the PRC statutory
financial statements which are prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the PRC. These
distributable profits differ from those that are reflected in the
Group’s financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) by reason of
their holding of the Company’s shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 64.3% of the total revenue of the
Group, and sales to the largest customer amounted to 46.8%.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
54.6% of the total cost of sales of the Group, and purchases from
the largest supplier amounted to 35.4%. None of the Directors or
any of their associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the number of the
Company’s issued shares) had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and five largest suppliers.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are

as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr Chen Chang (Chairman)
Ms Chen Zhao Nian

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr Chen Ping

Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah

Mr Zhan Jian Zhou

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from Mr Chen Ping, Mr
Au Yeung Kwong Wah and Mr Zhan Jian Zhou as at the date of
this report, the Company considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set
out in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 40 to 52 of this annual report.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with article 105(A) of the Articles of Association, Mr
Chen Chang and Mr. Au Yeung Kwong Wah will retire and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
of the Company.

A separate resolution will be proposed for the re-election of each of

Mr Chen Chang and Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah at the forthcoming
AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years and is
subject to termination by either party giving not less than one
month’s written notice. Each of our independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of two years and is subject to termination by either party
giving not less than one month’s written notice. The Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee have reviewed the
terms of service agreement of all Directors.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to
the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 9 to
the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares or
underlying shares or, as the case may be, the percentage in the
equity interest and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571) (the “SFO”)), which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they have taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register maintained
by the Company referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
(the “Model Code”) of Listed Issuers contained in the Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as
follows:

Shares of the Company

Name of Director Capacity
EEpR &1
Chen Chang Interest of controlled corporation (note 1)
BRE RyEAERER (M)
Personal interest
18 A5
Note:

These shares are held by Bournam Profits Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr Chen
Chang. By virtue of the SFO, Mr Chen Chang is deemed to be
interested in the 701,911,000 shares held by Bournam Profits
Limited.
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AR RG
Percentage of
shareholding
Number of in the Company
Position shares held AR FRE
Ba BEEROHE Bt
Long 701,911,000 69.42%
wE
Long 4,350,000 0.43%
S
B 5
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Shares of Associated Corporation

Mr Chen Chang beneficially owns the entire issued share capital of
Bournam Profits Limited, which is the beneficial owner of about
69.42% of the issued shares of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN MATERIAL
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangement or material contracts, to which the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director is or was materially interested, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates,
has engaged in any business that competes or may compete with
the business of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest with
the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme” or the
“Scheme”) was approved by the Shareholders of the Company in
the annual general meeting held on 18 June 2020. The details of
the Scheme are disclosed below pursuant to the requirements
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules:

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme: the purpose of the
Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to
the growth of the Group and to provide the Group with a
more flexible means to reward, remunerate, compensate and/
or provide benefits to eligible participants.

2. Participants of the Share Option Scheme include:

(a) directors and employees of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries (including persons who are granted options
or awards under the scheme as an inducement to enter
into employment contracts with these companies);

(b)  directors and employees of the holding companies, fellow
subsidiaries or associated companies of the Company;
and

(c) persons who provide services to the issuer group on a
continuing or recurring basis in its ordinary and usual
course of business which are in the interests of the
long term growth of the Group.
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Total number of shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme: the total number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and other share
option scheme of the Group (if any) must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of
adoption of the Share Option Scheme (i.e. not exceeding
101,114,200 shares). Up to the date of this annual report, no
options have been granted under the Share Option Scheme.

At the beginning and the end of the year ended 31
December 2024, the total number of share options that can
be granted under the Share Option Scheme was 101,114,200
and 101,114,200 respectively, which represented
approximately 10% and 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company at such dates respectively.

Grant of options to connected persons: grant of options to a
director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company or any of their respective associates must be
approved by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is the
proposed grantee of the option).

Grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company or any of
their respective associates, which would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant: (i)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue;
and (i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5
million; such further grant of options must be approved by the
shareholders in general meeting.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Share
Option Scheme: for any 12-month period, shall not exceed
1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time
being.
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10.

Period within which the securities must be taken up under an
option: an option may be accepted by a participant within 21
days from the date of the offer of grant of the option. An
option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence on a day after the date upon
which the offer for the grant of options is made but shall end
in any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the option subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof.

The minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised: unless otherwise determined by the
Directors and stated in the offer of the grant of options to a
grantee, there is no such minimum period.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option: a nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on

acceptance of the grant of an option.

Basis for determining the exercise price: such price will be a
price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
the offer of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme: the Scheme
has a life of 10 years commencing on 18 June 2020, being
the date on which the Share Option Scheme was adopted.
The scheme will expire on 18 June 2030.

From the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to

31 December 2024, no share option has been granted or agreed to

be granted to any person under the Share Option Scheme.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
which would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons or corporations (not being a Director or a chief
executive of the Company) have an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO or have
otherwise been notified to the Company:

W BB IR 10 SRR 35 9 R BF

BREERHE S 8IS0 - AR RIS EAT (T R R & AR
RREBER L EAZH  BEEFEBARR B S M
HMEAB RO R ESFMER -

TERFRAROREBEROVEZER LR

RZBZNF+—A=+—H0 BEFHA - TIALT
A E (WIEE RS ARNRITHAAER) RARRRG &8
B GHE CREAREES KRB KRG F3361EBTT
EMELMOKERTNEEARANERIAR

Shares of the Company P NNETE v
Percentage of
shareholding
Numbers of in the Company
Name Capacity Position shares held EEAF
w“E LR 14 BR FERODHE REBDL
Bournam Profits Limited Beneficial owner (note) Long 701,911,000 69.42%
(“Bournam”)
Bournam Profits Limited EmEA A (M) A
([Bournam])
Note: B 5

BournamZ 23R AHRE L EM — R ERHE - REZER
HAE 15 f5) » BR 45 4 ¥ 48 A X Bournam#: B #9701,911,0000% A%
mHEERER -

The entire share capital of Bournam is solely and beneficially owned by Mr
Chen Chang. Mr Chen is deemed under the SFO to be interested in the
701,911,000 shares held by Bournam.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2024, neither the Company,
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 67 to 90.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding the dealings in securities of the Company by the
Directors and employees during the year ended 31 December
2024. Following a specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2024.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The Group had no significant event after the reporting period
required to be disclosed.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION BEFBERKRX
The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for RAARIEREZFLERAEEEEAREBPELEAERE
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against FREERRESLASABERTRE - ERESZH =
its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate B TEE JFE BT OB (B TR BR A B (55622 ) F4T01&AY
activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the BERERREZEFTETRESILRBARENIE391(1)
benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the () G IEHE R AE R o

Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622) when the Report of the
Directors prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with
section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

AUDITORS 3 401

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been REENFEVBHRZCHFT EREGMERATE
audited by Messrs. CCTH CPA Limited, who will retire and, being % BREVEERERER - AR AKRERRE
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution will be AERFAE LREABRERETIE  UERZEFRIE
proposed for approval by shareholders at the forthcoming AGM to KESTMER RG] ARNRQRIZEE -

re-appoint CCTH CPA Limited as auditors of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD REESZE

Chen Chang E

Chairman [E =]

Hong Kong BE

28 March 2025 —E-RAF=A=-+)\H
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The Board is committed to maintaining a good standard of
corporate governance practices and business ethics in the firm
belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting
investors’ confidence and maximising shareholders’ returns.

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix C1 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance. The
Board considers that up to the date of this annual report, in the
opinion of the Board, saved as disclosed in section “Chairman and
Chief Executive” below, the Company has complied with the CG
Code. The Company will continue to enhance its corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its
business and to review its corporate governance practices from time
to time to ensure they comply with the evolving regulatory
requirements and to meet the rising expectations of the
Shareholders and other stakeholders.

The following summarises the Company’s corporate governance
practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(A) Board of Directors
Responsibilities and Delegation
The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, overseeing the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions, internal control, risk management systems,
monitoring the performance of senior management and
determining the policy for corporate governance. The
management is responsible for daily operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Chairman. The Directors have the
responsibility to act objectively in the interests of the
Company.

All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees including the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Further details
of these Committees are set out below in section B of this
corporate governance report.
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TEERRE

The Company had arranged Directors and Officers Liability ARAERHEZERAABERHEST RS R

Insurance for the Directors and officers of the Company. BEERR -

Board Composition EEEHAA

The Board members during the year ended 31 December HE-Z-_MF+-_A=+—HLFEREER

2024 and up to the date of this report are as follows: REBHILIEEEXESHIIWT

Executive Directors: HITESE -

Mr Chen Chang Chairman of the Board and Chief BRE L& EFGERRITHAES
Executive Officer, Member of the FHEEGRIEREE
Remuneration Committee and 2B
Nomination Committee

Ms Chen Zhao Nian BRIKEF L+

Independent Non-executive Directors: BIIHHTESF -

Mr Chen Ping Chairman of the Nomination Committee BRF % REZEEXF  BRE
and Member of the Audit Committee BERFMEESGKE
and Remuneration Committee

Mr Au Yeung Chairman of the Audit Committee B 5 B 5 o A BEREE®XR

Kwong Wah

Mr Zhan Jian Zhou Chairman of the Remuneration EREAE FMEEsgEE  BRE
Committee, Member of the Audit Be@RREEEEKE
Committee and Nomination
Committee

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors and EFESRAEMERTEER 2B IIFNTE

three independent non-executive Directors from different K FERETAMNEBREXAES - RS

business and professional fields. Mr Chen Chang and Ms FEERBKFELLTTIE—RIEKE -REFLER

Chen Zhao Nian are members of the same family. Mr Chen PRIKF 2 TR H

Chang is the father of Ms Chen Zhao Nian.

Save as disclosed, there is no other relationship among BREMBEEIN EFGKE 2HETEE M

members of the Board. The profiles of each Director and the Re-BUEBEENREREMES CBNBERERIENKF

relationships among the Directors are set out in the “Profile of WEERSRERERE] —& -
Directors and Senior Management” section in this annual
report.
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The Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective delivery of the Board functions. The
number of independent non-executive Directors constitutes
more than one-third of the Board. A list containing the names
of the Directors and their roles and functions is published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company at
www.pck.com.cn.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors (including Mr Chen
Ping who has served the Company for more than nine years)
of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

Upon reviewing the directorships and major commitments of
each Director, and the attendance rate of each Director at the
meetings of the Board and its committees, the Board is
satisfied that all Directors have spent sufficient time in
performing their responsibilities during 2024.

Board Meetings and Board Practices

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board
meetings regularly for at least four times a vyear at
approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc meetings will also be
convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as well
as financial performance of the Group. Notice of Board
meeting is sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a
regular Board meeting. Reasonable notice will be given to the
Directors for ad-hoc Board meetings. Directors may
participate either in person or through electronic means of

communication.
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Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate,
complete and reliable information will be provided to all the
Directors at least 3 days before meetings. All the Directors
will be provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties, and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. All Directors will
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
Board meetings. The company secretary of the Company is
responsible for keeping the minutes of Board meetings and
meetings of Board committees. All minutes are open for
inspection by any Director at reasonable time on reasonable
notice.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024, four Board
meetings were held.

The Company’s Articles of Association contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such Directors or any of their associates have a
material interest. According to current Board practices, any
material transaction, which involves a conflict of interests for
a substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered
and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting.

The Board is of the view that the following mechanisms
adopted by the Company are effective in ensuring that
independent views and inputs are available to the Board:

. The Board is represented by sufficient number of non-
executive Directors which meets the requirement of the
Listing Rules.

. In assessing suitability of the Director candidates, the

Board will consider their profiles, including their
character, experience, qualifications and time
commitment; the Board will also consider to the Board’s
overall composition and skill matrix as well as the
Company’s diversity policy.

. The Board will review each Director's time commitment
to the Company’s business annually.
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. The Board will assess non-executive Directors’

independence upon appointment and annually.

. Directors are required to abstain from voting in matters
in which he has material interest.

. The Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee are authorised by the
Board to obtain outside legal or other independent
professional advice as necessary to assist the

respective committee.

The quality of deliberations at meetings of the Board are
reviewed during the annual evaluation of the Board’s
performance.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company is aware of the requirement under paragraph
C.2.1 of the CG Code that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company does not separately
have any officer with the title of “chief executive”. Mr Chen
Chang, the Chairman and founder of the Group, is also
responsible for the leadership and effective running of the
Board, ensuring that all material issues are decided by the
Board in a conducive manner. The Board will meet regularly
to consider major matters affecting the operations of the
Group. The Board considers that this structure will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and
the management of the Company. The roles of the respective
executive Directors and senior management, who are in
charge of different functions complement the role of the
chairman and chief executive. The Board is of the view that
this structure provides the Group with strong and consistent
leadership, facilitates effective and efficient planning and
implementation of business decisions and strategies, and
ensures the generation of shareholders’ benefits.

The Board shall nevertheless review the structure from time

to time to ensure appropriate measures are being taken
should suitable circumstance arise.
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Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

The Board is responsible for selection and approval of
candidates for appointment as Directors. The Company has
established a Nomination Committee on 22 March 2012. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing Board
composition including the board diversity policy, evaluating
the balance of skills, knowledge and experience of the Board
and making recommendations on the appointment of

Directors.

Each of the executive Directors has signed or renewed his/
her service contract with the Company for a period of three
years. All of their appointments are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has been
appointed or re-appointed for a term of two years, and are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the re-
appointments/appointment of both executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors and recommended to the
Board of Directors for decision.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and any new Director appointed to fill
a causal vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-election
by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment. In accordance with the Articles of Association,
Mr Chen Chang and Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah will retire and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company.

In accordance to the Company’s Articles of Association, a
separate resolution will be proposed for the re-election of
each of Mr Chen Chang and Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah and
at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.
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Training Induction and Continuing Development of
Directors

The Directors have endeavoured to keep abreast of the
changes in their responsibilities as a Director and of the
business activities and development of the Company.

Each newly appointed Director receives formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of
his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of
the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the
statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. The
Directors have provided to the Company their records of
continuous professional development during the year ended
31 December 2024.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, all Directors
(being Mr Chen Chang, Ms Chen Zhao Nian, Mr Chen Ping,
Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah and Mr Zhan Jian Zhou) attended
seminars and training courses in relation to corporate
governance, Listing Rules update or financial markets update
arranged by professional firms/institutions. Records of
continuing professional development have been maintained by
the company secretary. Besides, the company secretary also
conducted briefings on corporate governance, directors’ duties
and responsibilities and provided materials for Listing Rules
amendments to all Directors for their reference.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules.
Following a specific enquiry, all the Directors has confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2024.

When the Company is aware of any restricted period for
dealings in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify
its Directors in advance.
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Non-Competition Undertakings

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed
the confirmations given by Mr Chen Chang and Bournam,
being controlling shareholders of the Company, in respect of
each of their compliance with the non-competition
undertakings as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company
dated 28 January 2010. The independent non-executive
Directors are satisfied that the controlling shareholders have
fully complied with the terms of the non-competition
undertakings and no new competing business was reported
by the controlling shareholders throughout the year ended
31 December 2024.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the Board committees are posted on the

websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able
advice

to seek independent professional in appropriate

circumstances at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr Chen Ping, Mr Au Yeung
Kwong Wah and Mr Zhan Jian Zhou. Mr Au Yeung Kwong
Wah is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise
the financial reporting process and the internal control and
risk management procedures and systems of our Group. The
Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
2024 and

consolidated interim financial statements for the six months

31 December the condensed unaudited

ended 30 June 2024, including the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company and the Group.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

. To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
internal auditor or external auditors before submission
to the Board;

. To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their
fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors; and

. To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems and associated
procedures.

The Audit Committee held six meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2024, of which two meetings with
external auditors’ presence, and all members of the Audit
Committee attended all meetings. At the meetings, it reviewed
the financial reporting and compliance procedures, the report
of the internal auditor on the Company’s internal control and
risk management systems and processes, and the re-
appointment of the external auditors. No major issue on the
internal control system of the Group has been identified.

There was no disagreement between the Audit Committee
and the Directors in respect of matters about selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of an external auditor.

The Company had established a whistleblowing policy and
system for employees to raise concerns of possible
improprieties where all concerns are addressed to the Audit
Committee.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended
31 December 2024 and interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2024 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.
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Nomination Committee

The Company recognises the benefits of a board that is
composed of a balance of skills, experience, expertise and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the business
development of the Company. The Board has adopted a
board diversity policy in 2013. The Board has reviewed its
composition and considered a number of aspects, including
gender, age, educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service in
accordance with its board diversity policy. The Board
considers that the existing board composition is well
diversified and appropriate to the business development of the
Company.

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
22 March 2012 in compliance with Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules. The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr Chen Ping, Mr Zhan Jian Zhou and Mr Chen
Chang. Mr Chen Ping is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The majority of them are independent non-

executive Directors.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee are to
review and monitor the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and make
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors, and review the board
diversity policy and review the measurable objectives that the
Board has set for implementing the board diversity policy, and
the progress on achieving the objectives.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Nomination Committee has reviewed the composition of the
Board and made recommendations to the Board for the re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for the
chairman, assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors and reviewed the board diversity policy
determined the policy for nomination of directors, nomination
procedure process and criteria to select and recommend
candidates.
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The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2024 and all members of the
Nomination Committee attended the meetings.

According to the Nomination Policy adopted by the Company,
appointments of Board members will be made on a merit
basis and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria. The selection criteria used in assessing the suitability
of a candidate include:

. the candidate’s academic background and qualifications
(including professional qualifications, skills and
knowledge which are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy);

. the candidate’s relevant experience in the industry;
. the candidate’s character and integrity;
. the candidate’s willingness and capacity to devote

adequate time in discharge of a director’s duties;

. whether the candidate can contribute to the Board a
diversity of perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, race, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service;

. (where the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an
independent non-executive Director) whether the
candidate is in compliance with the criteria of
independence under the Listing Rules; and

. any other factors as may be determined by the Board

from time to time.
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In terms of nomination procedures, any Board member may
nominate or invite a candidate for appointment as a Director
to be considered by the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee will then evaluate the personal profile
of the candidate based on the selection criteria set out
above, undertake due diligence in respect of such candidate
and make recommendation for the Board’s consideration and
approval. For nomination of independent non-executive
Director, the Nomination Committee will also assess the
candidate’s independence in accordance with the CG Code
and the Listing Rules. For re-appointment of retiring Directors,
the Nomination Committee will review the candidate’s overall
contribution and performance (including the candidate’s
attendance at Board committee meetings, Board meetings
and general meetings, his/her level of participation and
performance on the Board), and make recommendations to
the Board and shareholders for re-election at general
meetings.

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board and to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance and recognises and embraces the
benefits of diversity in the composition of the Board.

In 2013, the Company has adopted a board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) for compliance with the Code
Provision of the Listing Rules concerning the diversity of
Board members. The Company recognises and embraces the
benefits of diversity in Board members. A truly diverse Board
will include and make good use of differences in the skills,
regional and industry experience, background, race, gender
and other qualities of Directors. These differences will be
taken into account in determining the optimum composition of
the Board. All Board appointments will be based on merit
while taking into account diversity, including gender diversity.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises five
Directors, one of them is female. Three of them are
independent non-executive Directors, thereby promoting
critical review and control of the management process.

The Nomination Committee will continue to review the Board
Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure its continued
effectiveness.
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Workforce diversity

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total workforce of
858 employees, of which 79% (675 employees) are males,
and 21% (183 employees) are females.

While we believe our future employee recruitment should
predominantly be merit-based and do not consider it
appropriate to set any target gender ratio for our workforce,
we recognize and embrace the benefits of having a diverse
workforce, and will continue to enhance the diversity of our
workforce, subject to availability of suitable candidates.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr Chen Ping, Mr Zhan Jian Zhou and Mr Chen
Chang. Mr Zhan Jian Zhou is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The majority of them are
independent non-executive Directors.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
our Directors and senior management, determine on behalf of
the Board specific remuneration packages and conditions of
employment for our Directors and senior management and to
review and/or approve the matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Remuneration will be
determined by reference to the duties and level of
responsibilities as well as market practice and conditions.
None of the Directors themselves approve their own
remuneration.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee has reviewed the Group’s
remuneration policy, assessed the performance of executive
Directors and reviewed the remuneration package of the
executive Directors and senior management and
recommended to the Board on the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors and senior management. No share
option has been granted during the year ended 31 December
2024.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, two meetings of the
Remuneration Committee were held and all members
attended the meetings.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties of the Company. Terms of reference
adopted by the Board include the duties of the Board on
corporate governance functions to develop and review the
Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance, to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management and
to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

The attendance of individual members of the Board and other
Board Committees meetings for the financial year ended
31 December 2024 is set out in the table below:

AGM
RRBEFKE
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr Chen Chang (Chairman of RE%E(EE2LE)
the Board) 11
Ms Chen Zhao Nian BkFRL 17
Independent Non-executive BYEHTES
Directors
Mr Chen Ping B4 11
Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah — EUSEZE%RAE 1"
Mr Zhan Jian Zhou ERELAE N/A T iE

Chairman of the Board had a meeting with the independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Executive Directors (save as the chairman himself) during the
year ended 31 December 2024.
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Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the chief financial officer and the
finance department of the Group, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and
the Group. In the preparation of financial statements, IFRS
Accounting Standards have been adopted and the appropriate
accounting policies and statutory requirements have been
consistently complied with. The Board aims to present a clear
and balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in the
annual and interim reports to the shareholders, and make
appropriate disclosure and announcements in a timely

manner.

Directors’ Responsibility on the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
with a view to ensuring that such financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the results and cash flows for that period. The Company’s
accounts are prepared in accordance with all relevant
statutory requirements and suitable accounting standards.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;
judgements and estimates made are prudent and reasonable;
and the financial statements are prepared on a going concern
basis.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 111 to
121 of this annual report.

Management had provided monthly updates to Directors for
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable the
Directors to discharge their duties.
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(D)

Independent Auditors

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the remuneration
paid or payable to the independent auditors, CCTH CPA
Limited, for services rendered is broken down below:

Audit services ZH AR
Other HAty

1% B AT
REBEE-_ZT-_MF+-_R=+—HILFE M
PR AR TS B 5 S FE 15 98 S A BRAD 7 IE KB & 51 EM
BRDBHMEHANT -

2024
—E-mE
HKD’000
FET

1,530
210

Total =

1,740

Internal Controls and Risk Management

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system of the Group. The
Company has an internal audit department to ensure effective
internal control system of the Group. The Group’s system of
internal control includes a defined management structure with
limits of authority, and is designed to help the Group achieve
its business objectives, safeguard its assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication, and
ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The
system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s
operational systems and in the achievement of the Group’s
business objectives.

The internal audit department conducts internal audit
throughout the year. The internal audit process includes
conducting supervision and examination on financial
management and contract management, identifying problems
and overseeing the rectification and correction of these
problems, and reporting to the Audit Committee and the
Board any material issues identified in the internal audit and

the rectification and correction thereof for their review.
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The Board has reviewed the internal audit report on quarterly
basis and assessed the effectiveness (according to its
magnitude and significance) of the Group’s internal control
system which covered all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls as well as risk
management functions during the year ended 31 December
2024. The Board is of the view that risk management and
internal control systems are adequate. No major risk was
identified which affect operation of the Group.

The Company is in strict compliance with the related
requirements of the Listing Rules, the SFO and the
Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission. The Company discloses
inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable. Before the information is fully disclosed to the
public, the Company ensures the information is kept strictly
confidential.

Company Secretary

The Board appoints its Company Secretary in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association and in compliance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules. Biographical
details of the current Company Secretary is set out in the
section headed “Profile of Directors and senior management”
on pages 40 to 52 of this annual report. The Company
Secretary has complied with the professional training
requirement as set out in the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Board welcomes shareholders to present their views and
shareholders may at any time submit their questions and
concerns about the Group. Enquiries may be put to the
Board by contacting the Company Secretary through our
shareholders’ email at ir@pck.com.cn. Shareholder(s) holding
not less than one-tenth of Company’s paid-up capital may
request the Board to convene an extraordinary general
meeting. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the
related requisition deposited at the Company’s registered
office and addressing to the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong. The
extraordinary general meeting will be held within 2 months
after the deposition of such requisition.
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Procedures for a shareholder to propose a person
for election as a Director

Subject to the applicable laws and the provisions of the
Company’s Articles of Association, the Company may from
time to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution elect
any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or
as an additional Director. A shareholder may propose a
person for election as a Director by lodging the following
documents to the Board or Company Secretary at our Hong
Kong office at Unit 605-606, 6/F., Tower Ill, Enterprise
Square, No. 9 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon,
Hong Kong: 1) a notice in writing of the intention to propose
that person (with full name and biographical details as
required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules) for election as
a Director; and 2) a notice in writing by that person of his
willingness to be elected as a Director. Such notices shall be
lodged at least 7 clear days before the date of the general
meeting and the period for lodgement of such notices shall
commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
shall be at least 7 clear days in length.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantial separate issue at
shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
Directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the
Stock Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

Investor Relations and Communication With
Shareholders

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognises the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate
information, which will enable shareholders and investors to

make the best investment decisions.
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To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at http://www.pck.com.cn, where up-to-date
information and updates on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are posted. A
shareholder communication policy is in place to ensure that
shareholders are provided with ready, equal and timely
access to information of the Company. The policy is available
on the Company’s website.

The Shareholders may at any time send enquiries and
requests for publicly available information and provide
comments and suggestions to the Company. Such enquiries,
requests, comments and suggestions can be sent by email to
ir@pck.com.cn or to the Company Secretary by mail to the
Company’s address as shown in the “Contact Investor
Relations” section of the Company’s website.

For enquiries about their shareholdings in the Company, the
Shareholders can direct the same to the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at 17/F., Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong or by email to
info@hk.tricorglobal.com, who has been appointed by the
Company to handle the Shareholders’ share registration and
related matters.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, an annual general
meeting of the Company was held on 21 June 2024 (“2024
AGM”).

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with its shareholders and in particular, through AGMs or other
general meetings to communicate with the shareholders.
Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings
for and on their behalf. The chairman of the Board as well as
the chairman of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee will make themselves available
at the AGM to meet with the shareholders.
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The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held on Friday,
20 June 2025. The notice of AGM will be sent to
shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

The Company attended conferences, roadshows and media
interviews to keep the Shareholders and potential investors
informed of the latest development of the Group. The head of
investor relation will be the primary contact point for
communications with investors and analysts.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of the shareholders communication policy. Having considered
the multiple channels of communication and engagement in
place, it is satisfied that the shareholders communication
policy was effective during the year ended 31 December
2024.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective
investor communication policy and to update investors on
relevant information on the Group’s business in a timely

manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirements.

Memorandum and Articles of Association

There was no change in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the year. The latest version of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company is
posted on the Company’s website.

2024 Annual General Meeting

The Board is committed to the constructive use of the AGM
as a forum to meet shareholders. The chairman of the Board
and the chairmen of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee, members of the Remuneration Committee and the
external auditors attended the 2024 AGM.
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At the 2024 AGM, the Company proposed separate
resolutions on the issues considered. Resolutions passed at
the 2024 AGM were as follows: (i) received the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023 together with the reports of the Directors
and auditors of the Company; (ii) re-elected Ms Chen Zhao
Nian as executive Director, and Mr Zhan Jian Zhou as
independent non-executive Directors and authorised the Board
to fix the Directors’ remuneration; (iii) reappointed CCTH CPA
Limited as auditors of the Company and authorised the
Directors to fix its remuneration; (iv) approved a general
mandate for the Directors to allot and issue of new shares of
an amount not exceeding 20 per cent of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of the 2024 AGM; (v)
approved a general mandate for the Directors to repurchase
shares of an amount not exceeding 10 per cent of the
aggregate nominal amount of the Company’s issued share
capital as at the date of the 2024 AGM; and (vi) extended
the general mandate granted to the Directors of the Company
to allot, issue, and deal with additional shares in the share
capital of the Company by an amount not exceeding the
amount of the shares repurchased by the Company. All
resolutions were passed by way of a poll conducted by the
Company’s registrar. The poll results of the 2024 AGM were
available on the Company’s website.

The 2025 annual general meeting (“2025 AGM”) of the
Company will be held at 1/F., China Building, 29 Queen’s
Road Central, Hong Kong on Friday, 20 June 2025 at 10:30

a.m.

All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the 2025 AGM
and exercise their rights to vote. Shareholders are invited to
ask questions relating to the business of the meeting. Details
of the resolutions to be considered in the 2025 AGM will be
set out in a circular to be sent out to the Shareholders
together with the 2024 annual report.
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Share Interests of Senior Management

As confirmed with the senior management of the Company,
they did not hold shares of the Company as at 31 December
2024.

Sufficiency of Public Float
The Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules as at 31 December 2024.

Dividend Policy
In order to enhance transparency of the Company and
facilitate the shareholders of the Company and investors to
make informed investment decisions relating to the Company,
the Board adopted a dividend policy on 28 March 2019
(“Dividend Policy”).

According to the Dividend Policy, when determining whether
to declare any dividend in the future and the amount of
dividend to be declared, the Company shall consider a

number of factors, including but not limited to:

. the Group’s actual and expected financial results;

. the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the

Company;

. the Company’s business operation strategy, including
capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

expected working capital requirements,

. the Company’s liquidity position;

. retained earnings and distributable profit reserves of the
Company;
. the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends

imposed by the Company’s lenders and other

institutions; and

. any other factors that the Board considers to be
applicable from time to time.
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The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution proportion or distribution ratio. The declaration,
payment and amount of dividends will be subject to the
Board’s discretion. The Board will review the Dividend Policy
on a regular basis.

Anti-corruption and Whistle-blowing Procedures
The Group maintains and effectively implements a
comprehensive system of internal control and stringent
policies for anti-corruption, and is committed to preventing

and monitoring any malpractices or unethical practice.

The Group is in compliance with all applicable anti-bribery
and corruption laws including the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in Hong
Kong. The Group has also applied the Corporate Governance
Code as the basis in formulating the internal rules and
regulations for integrity discipline and clean administration.
The Group will adhere to its corporate ethics and uphold its
reputation to prevent corruption.

To prevent corruptive practices and raise employees’
awareness regarding such matter, the expectations and
appropriate procedures of engaging third parties, and
standards relating to anti-bribery and anti-corruption are set
out in the anti-corruption and bribery policy of the Group.

Employees, who are found breaching the Group’s code and
policies will be investigated and may be subject to warning,
suspension, termination of contract, dismissal and disciplinary
discharge.

In addition, a whistleblowing policy has been established to
provide employees with guidance and channels for the
reporting of fraud, corruption, bribery, criminal offences,
conflict of interest, harassment, workplace bullying and other
non-compliances with the laws, regulations and internal
controls or other forms of misconducts without fear of
adverse consequences.
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The policy provides a set of transparent and confidential
procedures for dealing with the concerns raised by each
employee and is fully supported by management and
approved by the Board.

Suspected non-compliance issues may be reported to the
chairman of the Audit Committee, the assistant to chairman of
the Company, immediate supervisor or the head of
department who is also required to notify any concerns to the
Audit Committee on a timely basis. According to this policy,
the identities of employees who reported in good faith will be
kept confidentially and protected by the Group without any
form of retaliation, harassment or victimization.

Anti-corruption training material had been circulated among all
Directors and employees of the Group during the Year in
accordance with the applicable laws of the relevant
jurisdictions to enhance their knowledge and awareness on

such issue.
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The Board is committed to the long-term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which the Group operates and
continually enhances investment value to stakeholders through
proper and effective internal control systems and ESG risk
management measures throughout its operations. The Board
maintains oversight of and approves the identification and
assessment of ESG issues and confirms that to the best of its
knowledge, this report addresses the material topics related to the
operations of the Group and fairly presents its ESG performance
and impacts.

The Group’s management is responsible for monitoring and
reviewing the compliance with local laws and regulations with
regards to ESG-related issues. The management is also
responsible for establishment of sustainability strategies, policies
and measures to implement sustainability initiatives, provide
sustainability reporting and prepare the ESG report.

This section is prepared in accordance with Appendix C2
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Guide”) of the Listing Rules. The Board is pleased to present our
performance and progress on the environmental and social aspects
from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024.

This ESG section would separate into two subject areas — (A)
environmental and (B) social and each subject area included
relevant aspects as follow:

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group is committed to energy saving and environmental
protection. The Group is trying to keep the damage to the
environmental at a minimal level by reducing pollutants and
hazardous wastes during the manufacturing process and
ensuring our activities and operations are to be energy, water
and resources saving, and to prevent pollution, reduce wastes
and minimize the negative impacts on and harmonize with the
environment. The Group has set up procedures and systems
to comply with the rules and impose control on emissions.
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The Group is complying with the following laws and
regulations that are most relevant to the Group:

i

. Law of the PRC on the Environmental Protection* (92

AR HAMBIRFEREER),;

. Law of the PRC on the Water Pollution Prevention and
Control* (% A R HEFBIK )5 207 1E%);

. Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste* (7 A R 3£ 41
Bl & 58 BE W05 A IR E R 1B R);

. Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Air

Pollution* (FF % A R HE MBI KRS 20 87%);

. Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Noise Pollution* (FFZE A R B IR 5 5%
S HRBRE);

. Law of the PRC on the Energy Conservation* (4 Z& A
RAMEIE X BEIRE);

. Law of the PRC on the Cleaner Production Promotion*

(R 2 AR B R A (M%),

. Regulations on Environmental Protection Management
of Construction Projects* (%18 B IRERE T R IKH);

. Measures for the Administration of Hazardous Waste
Transfer Forms* (/&% B% ¥ 421 Bt B8 B 12 it %);

. Regulations on the Safety Management of Hazardous
Chemicals* (Bt 2mi 2 B EH)

A.1 Emissions
Types of emissions from the Group were mainly carbon
dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide etc. emitted during operation
of production lines.

Scope 1 greenhouse gas emissions in 2024 were primarily
generated from natural gas, diesel oil and gasoline.
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Scope 2 greenhouse gases emissions were associated with
the electricity purchase in PRC are provided by the relevant
provider of electricity.

Greenhouse gas emissions

ERBEHR

it

Scope 1

& [E1

The greenhouse gases emissions are calculated with
reference to the “Greenhouse Gas Emission Accounting
Method and Reporting Guidelines for Enterprises Power
Generation Facilities (2022 Revised Edition)” {{}% 8 =& 8
P E R FERE IR EERE (2022F &R hR))issued by
the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s
Republic of China (4 # A R £ F1E 4 B3R IF Z0FT).

Hazardous waste

Hazardous wastes were produced during production, including
waste oil, waste sludge, waste mineral oil, paint, paint
residue, waste grease, waste grease drum, waste paint drum,
waste emulsion drum, waste activated carbon, waste organic
solvent, waste developer, and fixer. Total hazardous waste
produced in 2024 was approximately 329 tonnes and 0.0008
tonnes of hazardous waste was produced for each tonne of

product.
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Non-hazardous waste

Non-hazardous wastes were produced during production
including welding slag, iron filings, scrap steel. Total non-
hazardous waste produced in 2024 was approximately 9,251
tonnes and 0.022 tonnes of non-hazardous waste was
produced for each tonne of product.

Emissions are proportional to the production level. Therefore,
total emissions in 2024 increased as compared to 2023.
Intensity amount per each tonne of product in 2024
decreased as compared to 2023. Nevertheless, in an aim to
reduce emission of greenhouse gas, the Group has
implemented the policies as follow:

1) The factory in Lianyungang and Zhuhai is designed to
let in more natural light and allow for natural ventilation
in order to reduce use of electricity;

2) Solar photovoltaic power generation equipment are
installed on the roof of the factories of Lianyungang
and Zhuhai factories in order to facilitate the use of
clean energy;

3) The light and equipment would be turned off during
luncheon rest time.

Treatment of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes

1. The Group has set up procedures in the collection,
storage, transportation and disposal of polluting wastes
to prevent scattering, draining, leakage. Authorization is
need for dumping, stacking, discarding or scattering the
wastes;

2. The Group has identified specific rubbish bins for
different types of wastes like scrap steel, industrial
wastes, domestic wastes, oil-bearing wastes, and
delivered the wastes to units with waste treatment
qualification for waste disposal or recycling;

3. The Group has strengthened training for employees to
enhance their skills and knowledge of handling waste;

94  chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE -HERERRE

BEEEY
FEHRHEENEESEZEYAEIRSE #E - B
WE R _NFEANREZEED AN
9,251MF + WA T E £0.022MF EEREFEY) -

PR E B A EKFERIEL - At - RZFZMF
WBHNER S _=FAMEM - R=ZFT=NY
FRWERHENTER-_S-_=F8M JﬁQ
R BARLBEREBENR  AEBDEHRIAT
SR

BEEERKETHREBEMNE AR R B
RBEMRE  LWEIHEENNER

2)  EEB NS RIS E RS TR E R ARG
BEXRRBERE  HEFRERNER

3) RTFEKEHEHMBERALARRME -

EERBEEEYHEE
1. $E@E SEERE TR EBRAEE
SRABEEYAENGER BEXEZ
m&ﬁoﬁﬂgaﬁw MR - EEHE
B

2. AKEEATREMMERE  THEHHK-
EENR  SHBEENEEENRERE
BAHER B RAR - W R A B RIEERM B
2 & ok [ol I A

3. AKEEMREEFIARTHEEEREZR
YR RE R AN

Annual Report 2024



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE-#HERER

®E

4. Hazardous wastes are disposed to qualified and 4.

designated institutions with special care.

The Group has received no cases of environmental pollution KE

or complaints in 2024. ETIS

A.2 Use of Resources
The major resources used by the Group relates to electricity,
water, petrol and natural gas. The Group aims at and has R o
been reducing consumption of various resources. Resources

BEERRYVBEGERREETRBES -

B =T A I B IR IR S R SRR A

A2 ERER

consumption by the Group during the year is listed in the

AEEERANERIZRESN K-
AEEBNY —BEFERSZSBEREFR -
TREIFAXREENERHEFE

b DN

table below:
Intensity
Amount per
Total amount each tonne of
Resources Consumption Unit in 2024 product in 2024
R-Z-F R-Z-MmF
BREE By BmEYE BHEMHBE
Electricity consumption kWh 47,273,000 114
S T R
Water consumption Tons 377,000 0.9
FEK Mg
Petrol Litre 123,000 0.3
i 7+
Natural gas M3 200,000 0.5
KAR 35K
Packaging material Tons 597 0.0014
BEEM R i
Measures on efficient use of resources: BRERERNEE
1. The Company will assess the performance of its staff 1. ZARRIBEBEIFNERAEITIZEET
based on the resource efficiency of the department; BRI
2. The factory in Lianyungang and Zhuhai is designed let 2. EEBRKBIBMHEAEMERARLKRE
in more natural light and allow for natural ventilation in NEEE R NEINHEEHNNEL
order to reduce use of electricity;
3.  The light and equipment would be turned off during 3. RFEREFHEBEEBEAE R RRE
luncheon rest time;
4.  Use of energy efficient lighting products; 4. FHEARERREMRBEERD:

TR NEFEHRE
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ERAWE

5. Increase the awareness of employees on energy saving
by training.

to the
in 2024
increased as compared to that of 2023. Intensity amount per

Use of resources like electricity is proportional

production level. Therefore, electricity usage
each tonne of product in 2024 decreased as compared to that

of 2023.

Water source

The water source that is fit for purpose of the Company and
is the running water supplied by the government which
guarantees reliable quality and supply. There has been no
suspension of water supply.

Water was consumed mainly for office general use,
hydrostatic pressure test and ultrasonic tests.

Measures to enhance water efficiency:

1. Reuse water for production;

2. Use of water-saving taps and sanitary wares with
sensor;

3. Increase awareness of employees on water saving by
training.

Water consumption efficiency was improved. Total water
consumption in 2024 was similar to that of 2023.

Package material
The Group uses packing rope, packing tape and dunnage for
packaging final products.

The Environmental and Natural Resources

In an aim to minimize surplus materials, the Group would
estimate the materials needed for production prior to
procurement. In addition, the Group puts in place a scrap
metal recycling mechanism to sell the wasted steel produced

in our production process to recycling companies.
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A.4 Climate Change A4 RIEE1

Extreme weather events are becoming more frequent and
severe and tackling climate change has become a global
consensus. The Group has realized that climate change will
affect its business operations. The Group regularly reviews
global and local government policies, regulatory updates and
market trends to identify potential climate-related risks which
may have impact on the Group’s business operation.

In accordance to the reporting framework developed by the
Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures, there are
two major categories of climate-related risks, physical and
transition risks. Climate change can pose threats to the
Group, such as business disruption, physical damage and rise
in operational costs due to severe and extreme weather
events. The Group has insurance policies in place to mitigate
such risks.

SOCIAL

Employment

The Group has committed in cultivating a good workplace
practice free from discrimination and providing equal
opportunities for all regardless of age, gender, race, colour,
sexual orientation, disability or marital status to increase
employee satisfaction.

The Group has also adopted principles in hiring new
employees regardless of colour, religion, gender, nationality,
race for selection, hiring, training, compensation and

promotion.

The Group has complied with the all the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong, including but not
limited to:

. Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China (F % A
REFMBEBEE);

. Labour Contract Law of People’s Republic of China {1
EARAMBEH S RE);

. Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China

(PR EREZE);
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. Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong;

. Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Cap.485 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Our employment contract specified the terms, including
compensation and dismissal, working hours, rest periods and
other benefits and welfare of our staff. The Group’s employee
handbook distributed to employees also includes information
of policies on compensation and dismissal, employment
benefits, rights on termination, business conduct and leave
benefits.

In relation to 2024, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with the relevant labour laws and regulations
in to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, and other benefits and welfare
that have a significant impact on the Group.
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As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 858 (2023: 875)
employees. The demographics of the Group’s workforce was

as follows:

By gender
* male

» female

By age group
+ 20-30
+ 31-40
* 41-50
+ 51-60
* 61 or above

By category
» office management members
» production operation

By geographical location

+ PRC
* Hong Kong

ZECFFERE

RIE R
< B

. it

ZEERMER
+ 20=3075%
+ 31Z405%
« 41E505%
« 51Z605%
o 61 |

280l
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e
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< PEA
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858K (— T =4 :875%) - AEEWMBE LY
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Percentage of
each group

to total
employment
BHEBMGEANEH
Aok

79%
21%

15%
34%
30%
19%

2%

35%
65%

99%
1%
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The following table shows the employee turnover rate by
gender and age group:

By gender 12 1% Rl
+ male - B
. female . M

By age group REE AR
» 20-30 « 20E2307%
« 31-40 « 31%E405%
* 41-50 « 41E507%%
* 51-60 + 51%605%
« 61 or above o B1BRELAE

By geographical location i [
+ PRC . FERNM
+ Hong Kong - BE

B.2 Health and Safety B.2

The Group has complied with the laws and regulations and
adopted the Health Safety and Environmental (“HSE”)
management policy, in an effort to prevent pollution, ensure
health and safety of our employees, and promote sustainable
development. Our target is to achieve zero accidents, zero
injuries and zero losses in order to meet the international
HSE management standard.

The Group’s employees reside in the neighbourhood areas.
Within our plant zone, there are gardening landscape, fish
ponds and recreational facilities, which offer a comfortable
environment and a sports ground for our employees.
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Occupational Safety B¥Z2

We have adopted the HSE risk identification, risk assessment NAFERAHSER R 2 - B TR E
and control procedures to manage our occupational safety BREZ2RR AEEMNTIEES T T HALK
risk. The Group’s management is responsible for organising E eSS EE - TEERAEERNEE -
periodic risk identification and evaluation exercises, and is EAMDE - ERRNAERE  BELEEERER
responsible for sorting, aggregation and distribution of E =R s (EE R R EE  BEERN
relevant information, which includes the identification of risk AaEM  FIEETESREN  EEER 22 5E
factors for occupational safety and health, risk assessment on TAZEE B RREEEE -

operating conditions, possibility of accidents, the formulation
of operational control procedures, contingency plans, safety
level standards, as well as training and education issues.

The Group has kept records and documents relating to risk REEBERREEAMEBEE R - BREGH
management, including the “Control procedures of the new, R IE B HIAR ) R 5 A0 3 b 5T A
rebuilding and extension projects”, “Risk sources identification FIRCEXRREREE)  HEILE -

and risk evaluation form” and “List of major risks” for staff

reference.

The Group always finds great importance in occupational Z’S%@*E‘f’/\i?ﬁ%%?%ﬁiﬁi}ﬁélﬁﬂﬁ
safety and regularly provides training for staff. In 2024, the Fille RZT_HEF - REBEESEEEMET
Group hosted trainings and rehearsals in productions bases ‘}ﬁl%%%ﬂl&;ﬁﬁiﬁ AR R e B R EEREE
for fire alert, so as to enhance safety awareness and faen  WERFEAEERZHRERREREE
emergency response, and held hazards identification BHMERAE -

programs and assemblies of risk management activities.

Work-related injuries and fatalities of the Group for last three M= AEEEATETER
years:

Work-related Work-related Working
injuries fatalities Proportion days lost
(individual) (individual) (%) (day)
TEAE BIETAHK ke BAIERE
Year F14 (A) (A) (%) (X)
2022 TR F 9 0 0.01 292
2023 —TE-=F 6 0 0.01 551
2024 R YEF 10 0 0.01 688
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B.3 Development and Training B.3 #REKIEI

Staff Development and Training

Through meetings, trainings and notifications on notice board,
the Group promotes its safety philosophy and amiable
working environment among various departments and teams.
We offer our employees access to learning and
understanding about the Group, so that each employee and
contractors of the Group or visitors can recognize their
responsibilities and obligations in the aspect of improving the
environment and enhancing occupational health and safety
performance. We make great efforts on improving the

environment and occupational safety.

Our adherence to the HSE management policy is a testimony
of the greatest commitment of the Group towards
environment and occupational health and safety. This policy is
available for review by employees at any time. In the year,
the Group further improved site management standards,
achieved the goal of dedicated management, and further
promoted the 6S management model in the Company. Project
meetings were kicked off in the production sites of Zhuhai
and Lianyungang.

The Group endeavours to enhance the skills of each
employee in various aspects by providing staff trainings,
which include the “Weekly Star” and “Weekly Talk”. A wide
array of training courses are provided for employees to
strengthen their work-related knowledge and skills. Also, the
Group hosted an “advanced employee’s election”, whereby
each of the employees obtaining a certificate of honorary was
offered an outdoor training opportunity. To enable excellent
employees to take up management positions and to bolster
our team’s management capabilities, the Company also
organised the “team leader for production and management
training” courses during the year.

The Group has set up a labour union to further promote
spiritual positive energy with various social activities.
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To reinforce the employees’ sense of belonging to the Group,
a wide range of sport events are provided by the Group for
its employees every year, including basketball and table
tennis contests and a game of tug-of-war, etc. In addition, we
have provided activities that are of educational significance
and served to enhance the work performance of our
employees, including the “Business Oral English”, “Training

and Assembly for Fire”, “Sales Training”, “Joint Training and

Team Building Program for Financial Department’, and
“Annual Sales Meeting”, etc. The Zhuhai Company of the
Group also held the third quarter award ceremony of “Set an
example around you and consolidate the strength of the
Company”. The Company honored the advanced teams and
individuals emerging from various functions with great
ceremony, and called on all employees to learn from such
advanced teams and individuals. The Zhuhai Company also
organized a warm spring trip for the 8th March Women’s

Day.

We encourage our employees to take an active part in local
community activities, including the “Green Enterprise Cup”
Table Tennis and Badminton Tournament of Panyu District
Youth Entrepreneur Association and the private enterprises
working concern group activities. Various events were held,
including the second “We Are Family « PCK” friendly wall
donation, the hike of female employees for the 8th March
International Women’s Day, the Lantern Festival Fair jointly
held by the Lianyungang base of Chu Kong Steel Pipe and
the Community Workstation of the Neighborhood Center of
Xuwei New Area, and the employee-oriented “1st May Caring
Show” organized by the Artistic Association of Zhuhai Trade

Union.

Performance of professional trainings

By gender

43k [y
Male
Item H=hl B4
Percentage Bkt 94%,
Average training hours 51531/ \BF 8

“MEFERE

Female

g3

6%

19
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By employment type

RERERES
Senior  Middle-level
management management Employee
SREEE PREEE 3=
4% 13% 83%
22 8 8
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B.4

B.5

Labour Standards

The Group has complied with the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China ({2 A RHAEIZE)E)), Labour Contract
Law of People’s Republic of China ((FZEARZLFBELEHE
[@’%)), the Law of the PRC on Prohibition of Using Child
Labour* ((Z|FF A EZT#HE)) and other relevant laws. The
Group has specified staff recruitment procedures which avoid
the recruitment of child labour and ensure the fulfiiment of
entry requirements by recruited staff through examining their
identification card and certificate. The Company is required to
enter into written labour contracts with employees upon their
entry. There is no forced labour within the Group. The Group
has not employed any staff aged under 16.

Staff Code

The staff code of the Group is prepared based on the PRC
labour law and is in line with the national standards of the
PRC. The Group has also been providing its staff with
guidance in accordance with the national legislation.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has maintained proven track records of high
production efficiency and timely delivery. We have established
deep and cordial relationships with our suppliers. The Group
keeps a list of qualified suppliers, whose appraisal is based
on their track record of compliance with international
standards and the Group’s past cooperation relationship with
them. The Group also consider factors such as compliance
with environmental

requirements in our supplier vendor

assessment, selection and evaluation process.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group had 1,303
suppliers which are located in the PRC.

The Group has adopted the following procedures to select
and evaluates suppliers:

their

including but not

1. Evaluating product quality and company
limited to the

environment, health and safety awareness;

background

2. Comparing historical level and test results of products;
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3.  Evaluating the standards of their products; 3. FHMHEEREE:

4.  Evaluating their production capacity, delivery time and 4. FIHEZELEESRN REFBREBEM -
stability, reputation, cost and services; BE . NARRE

5.  Inspecting the sample of purchased products fulfilling the 5, BREREERNEBERER

requirements;

6.  Checking the products fulfilling the specific requirements 6. BREEMERLAFTAEEEZIMANEEEAN
under the laws and regulations or supply contracts. HEBER -

B.6 Product Responsibility B.6 EmEE
Product quality EmEE
With its state-of-art technology, equipment, management and REBAKERN - 2%  EEMRINEER
well-established reputation, the Group is dedicated to the FRERMENERINRYE  AXBEPRE - E
provision of high-quality products and services that satisfy mmEFE TR EREE - IREF B B A —
customers’ needs. Our product quality has met a number of —XAREEITRHACEREVEERHEE:E
international standards. We are also the only domestic £ [FRIACEREMESSNE] [
welded steel pipe manufacturer being granted five honors, flotbz]  [ARBECERMPOIMBERER
namely the “Superior Quality Award for Actual Quality of MEMIAEEER —SNESRERREE
Metallurgical Products”, “Gold Cup Prize for Actual Quality of TTITEW]  RRREREESENETERES
Metallurgical Products”, “High and New Technology iz o K - ARARIRA TETEBAIEL] R
Enterprise”, “Province-recognised Enterprise Technology TTHRW]  THRAESNRENHARERS
Center’, and “National Key New Products” and hosts a WAESE -

“Academician Workstation”. We are the main drafter of the
national standard for longitudinal welded steel pipes in China.
Meanwhile, with the setting up of the “Post-doctoral Research
Station” and “Academician Workstation”, the Company strives
to further enhance its product quality and extend the
application of its products.
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Quality assurance process

The Group strictly upholds the 1SO9001 quality management
system. With the use of advanced testing equipment, and the
conduct of on-line and off-line testing as well as mechanical
and chemical properties testing, we inspect the products at
each production process stage in accordance with the highest
product quality requirements through a myriad of tests, such
as steel ultrasonic testing, ultrasonic welding detection, weld
X-ray inspection system, hydrostatic testing and flattening test.
Upon obtaining post-test data, we will make a rigorous
analysis on product quality, so as to ensure that each
product meets customer requirements. We have built a
testing center in compliance with the national standards and
the center has been recognised by China National
Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS). The
Group’s testing center is equipped with a wide variety of
laboratory equipment, including universal materials testing
machine, low temperature impact material testing machine,
drop weight tear test (DWTT) machine, hydrogen induced
cracking (HIC) testing, sulfide stress corrosion cracking
(SSC), crack tip opening displacement (CTOD) test,
computer-controlled chemical composition vacuum direct
reading spectrometer and microscope. Achieving six
standards, our measuring chamber has passed through the
1ISO10012: 2003 AAA measurement management system
certification. This proves that our measuring instruments are
of high qualification and effectiveness. The Group’s testing
centre has passed the “National safety quality
standardisation” and obtained the “TUV SUD Metal Materials
Laboratory Accreditation Certificate”. Our products, an
unfailing symbol of quality, are blessed with unparalleled
reputation in the international market under the “PCK” brand.

In 2024, return of products sold or delivered due to safety
and health reasons was zero. The Group would repair the
products to customers if there are problems.

The Group put emphasis on product quality and customer
satisfaction. The Group will handle any product complaints
immediately. Our staff will identify, evaluate and record every
product complaint and reply and address the issues as soon
as possible. In 2024, the Group did not receive any product
complaints.
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Intellectual property rights

The Group is an industry pioneer, particularly strong in
research and development, holding 114 patents (including 51
invention patents). The Group treasures its intellectual
property rights. To protect our proprietary rights, the Group
rely on the applicable patent and trademark laws, laws
relating to protection of other intellectual property rights, and
impose confidentiality obligations on our employees. The
Group also protects our know-how by requiring our
employees, in particular, the technical and mechanical
personnel, to enter into confidentiality and non-competition
undertakings with the Group. In addition, in order to improve
the Company’s intellectual property protection system,
strengthen the company’s core competitiveness, promote
technological innovation, promote technological progress,
encourage employees to invent and create, and increase
employees’ enthusiasm for applying for independent
intellectual property rights, the Group rewards employees for
independent research and development on intellectual
property rights.

Consumer data protection

The Group respects the values and rights of the customers’
information assets, and in the process of providing our
customers with products, we strictly comply with the
customers’ information security management systems and
standards. The Group has classified the business-related
information as highly confidential and requires employees not
to disclose confidential information to third parties to ensure
that the data will not be leaked. The Group has also
formulated the rules and regulations in relation to data
protection in the employee handbook for employees to
perform their duties.

“MEFERE
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B.7

B.8

Anti-corruption

The operation of various departments of the Group is in
compliance with legal regulations and legislations. We have
established a whistle blowing policy, which enables our
employees to express their views to the management
anonymously. The Group conducts stringent management on
procurement and tender process. Various approval on
contract review and tender process is adopted, reviewed and
monitored. In addition, the Group has formulated the “Good
Professional Conduct” policy on conflict of interests, which are
included in the employee handbook for employees to perform
their duties with the highest level of integrity and professional
attitude. All employees are not allowed to engage in any
activities that conflict with the interests of the Group.
Employees must report any activities and situations that may
lead to conflict of interest to the Group. Relevant activities
can only be carried out with the consent of the Group.
Employees failing to report potential conflicts of interests may
be subject to disciplinary actions. In 2024, the Group did not
encounter any corruption procedures or cases.

Community Investment

Contribution to the Community

The Group has been playing an active role in charitable
activities in Panyu, Guangdong Province, China and other
regions in which we operate. With the organisation of a
couple of educational, sports, cultural and charitable activities,
thus
enhancing foreign interest in Guangzhou and fostering urban

we promoted the exuberance of Guangzhou City,

development. These activities included:

. Sponsoring Panyu District “PCK Cup” 1st, 2nd and 3rd
Table Tennis Contest

. Sponsoring Zhujiang “PCK Cup” 1st and 2nd World Go
Team Championships

. Sponsoring “Golden Dragon City Cup” 1st and 2nd
Dragon Boats Championships

. Sponsoring the 9th Table Tennis Competition of
“Mayor’s Cup” of Guangzhou
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. Exclusively supporting the 2nd National Calligraphy
Poster Exhibition and Invited Exhibition, to promote the
art of calligraphy and inherit national cultures.

In addition, the Group also participated in the assessment by
the government and other organisations. We participated in:

. Supporting the events related to Chinese Bonsai Art
organized by the Flower Bonsai Society of China

. Supporting the events organized by Baiyue Art
Association of Panyu District

. “Panyu District Mayor Quality Award Assessment
Management Approach” granted with the Quality Award
by the provincial government

. “Guangdong Enterprise with integrity”

The Group has also encouraged its employees to actively

participate in community activities in Guangdong Province,

including:

. Participating the seventh “Guangzhou’s Mayor Cup” for
table tennis tournament sponsored by Chu Kong Steel
Pipe Group

. Joining the photographic contest arranged by the district

. Participating the “Charity Hiking” activity arranged by the
City of Guangzhou

. Arranging a “Paternity Day” on the Nation’s Day

. Arranging the “Mid-Autumn Celebration” activity

. Joining the “International Dragon Boat” competition
arranged by the City of Guangzhou

. Participating in the Charity Projects of Guangzhou
Association of Women Entrepreneurs
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. Participating in the poverty alleviation activities organized
by Guangzhou Federation of Industry and Commerce,
Guangzhou Women’s Federation, Guangzhou
Association Of Women Entrepreneurs and District

Federation of Industry and Commerce

. Participating in the poverty alleviation projects organized
by Guangdong Women And Children’s Foundation,
Guangzhou Women’s Federation and Guangzhou
Association Of Women Entrepreneurs

Charity Fund

In April 2013, the Group established a charitable fund, named
as the “Chu Kong Steel Pipe Group Co., Ltd. — Blessing
Charity Fund”, aiming to improve the living environment of
single mothers and orphans and assisting single mothers for
seeking job.
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B B S

CCTH CPA LIMITED
FIERE &5 EERAF

To the shareholders of Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas

Steel Pipe Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chu Kong
Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 122 to 266, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING FRRERECERTHRERSE
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2.1 to the consolidated financial EERBIBRAUBRRMT21 BEhER &
statements, which indicates that the Group had net current liabilities BR=—Z= i‘f’ A=+—HMRIEEFEHNRA
of approximately RMB427,360,000 as at 31 December 2024. The R #427,360,0007T © & &/ E R 121 P o B h ==
condition, along with other matters as set out in note 2.1, indicate HERNFEERTEERE  AJaeY BRRFELE
that a material uncertainty exists which may cast significant doubt HIBE DR ERNSER - B4R & B 15 R MY 5521 P
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. As set out g BERARIEFCERZENIRERENSE B&
in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the directors of EnRBEs TRAE BEEEBEARETESRBITHA
the Company have implemented a number of plans and measures ZERAYBRRE AE BEFAKEL AN
to improve the Group’s liquidity and consider that the Group will MERG - EEFRUFENERWRELEET -

have sufficient funds to meet its financial obligations for at least the
next twelve months from the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this

matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS FREZSER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional BESENFEANE  FREXFERTEERANER
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the EUBHREPHREENEIAE - Z i$lﬁi’ﬂ££%%ﬁﬁ
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These BIAMBHREAMIAZRNETRE MEET SR
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the ZEFEHEREERER -

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

MREELRSEE

Write-down of completed properties held for sale

ERIFEYFEZ MO

Refer to note 17 and the material accounting policies in
note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

FLHGEAMBERRI AT MM E24FH 2 ERGRTHUR

The carrying amount of completed properties held for sale
was approximately RMB1,809,180,000 as at 31 December
2024, represented 27.8% of total assets.
AZE_NFE+_A=1+—H " BREEVENEEENAR
AEM1,809,180,0007E CHERBEEEN27.8% °

These completed properties held for sale are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Determination of net
realisable value involved key judgements and estimates
made by management by reference to the estimated
selling prices provided by an independent professional
valuer.

ZEER TS M EIR AR E AR R FERE P HRIEE IR
EEAUZRFEIRERESEB LR EMEMBHRNME
85 B A8 T VE B 3 2 2B R (45T -

We have identified the write-down of the completed
properties held for sale as a key audit matter due to the
magnitude of the properties and the management
judgments involved in the estimation of the net realisable
value.

SRR EWEMBBN AHEREZEE  RAAYE
YEE N LA PSR FEY R EIEE HIE -

TR NEFEHRE

FAREZEE @)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENERNNEEHREERER

We performed the following procedures to address this matter:
EEHEDWATA TR 7 LARRR I 78

Obtained an understanding of the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key internal controls around
the property development cycle with particular focus on
controls over cost budgeting and periodic review, sources
of data and calculation of cost and net realisable value;

THRYEERBATENDEE 2R RITEREER
/dl %%JE%TW WN‘E%&E,HM?EH‘ » BUE ROR A R AR

""""" SMFEZE

Evaluated the competence, capability and objectivity of the
independent valuer engaged by the management for the
estimation of selling prices of the properties;
ERWEEEZAFTEEEEZENB L HEMNERE
BN REEM

Assessed the methodologies used by the management and
external valuer for the estimation of the net realisable value
of the properties;

AHEEEE RMNEMERM AT MENERFEMAZTE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HEEZEHR

Write-down of completed properties held for sale (Continued)

B IFEYFEZ M (E)

Impairment non-financial assets

FHEEZHIE

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of the net
assets of the Group was more than its market
capitalisation, that was an indication that an asset may be
impaired. The impairment assessment was performed to
ensure that the Group’s assets are not carried at more
than their recoverable amount.

_7_E¢+ R=+—8" EK@%ZMEZEE@E.—J
RETE BABEARSHRBAETR  #ITREN G
RER EEEEEIEABBEAOKEEZEEIIER-
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENERNTEEBRELEE

. Compared the carrying values of properties for the forecast
of future sales, on a sample basis, to the market prices of
the properties with comparable locations and conditions,
where applicable; and

. NIRRT AR BE@EYERREETEAN S 2 RABRLE
RAKRATER o E s TEGER) &

. Checked the reasonableness and calculation of the net
realisable value of the properties prepared by the
management.

. BEEEBMRENEANERFELAEENGE

We performed the following procedures to address this matter:

FECWITATIZ 7 AR L R

. Reviewed the management’'s assessment on the
recoverability of the assets and the reasonableness of the
judgements and estimates used by the management in the
value in use calculations made by the independent valuer;

. FEHEEBHZSEENARLOMEMNTE  ANEERELES
MEEMETOEREEAEPRERANHE RATHEIE
/|$ :

. Discussed the indication of possible impairment with the
management and, where such indication were identified by
the management, assessed the impairment testing
performed by the management;

. HEREMNmAEERNAETR  NEEBEREHIR
AHEEREETARENH

. Tested the cash flows projections on whether they were
agreed to the budgets approved by the directors of the
Company and compared with actual results available up to
the report date;

¢ :EUELIﬁEE/i\/ALE%E EU 73—5;53 ﬁ@?ﬁ%ﬁt}ﬁg\]%ﬁ%_ﬁ 2
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

MREELRSEE

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

HeHEEZRE (F)

Management estimated the recoverable amounts of the
cash-generating unit of steel pipes using the value in use
model. The estimated value in use was dependent on
management’s determination on the Group’s future events
and its measures to improve its efficiency of cash flow
management, macroeconomic assumptions about future
demands of steel pipe products, the discount rate and
exchange rates as well as the production levels and
operating costs. These estimates were particularly
significant due to the uncertain economic outlook, product
price volatility, forecasted future production and market
demand. The outcome of impairment assessment can vary
significantly when different assumptions are applied.
ERERACAEERE MG HENIRSESBEMAF LK
SR MFFRAEEIAREEEY ESERKREHRK
EZHROREEERER2HEE BHREERRKRERZE
BB RE - BIRERERAREEKTE REERRZIRE °
HREER R  EmBHRKS  HMARKREEETSERD
WE ZERFLRERZ - BEMGZERTESEERAT
R MEREEER -

Relevant disclosures are included in note 2.4 “Material
accounting policies” and note 3 “Significant accounting
judgements and estimates” to the consolidated financial
statements.
ERBRRIANGAMB|MEAMT242 [E RS BUR | RH
3z [EEZ gt HE RfhEt] -

ZECFFERE

HREEXEE @)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENERNNEEHREERER

. Challenged the appropriateness of the management
judgements and estimates used in the cash flows
projections, including the sales growth rates and gross
profit margins;

. HReREFAPCEANEEEHE RMEHESEREE
5 BREFEEERILENE

. Challenged the discount rates adopted in the value in use
calculations by reviewing its basis of calculations and
comparing the input data to market sources;

. WIBE AT EEE R B A SRR T IS AR R E 5E A
BEAETRANTRE

. Assessed the valuation methodology used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions and checked on
sample basis, the accuracy and the relevance of the input
data adopted in management’s value in use calculations;
and

. FHE P E A ETE R EREBRAOEES T AT R
BEREECABERRAE A BR LRI R AAENT
K

. Assessed the adequacy of the relevant disclosures in the
Group’s financial statements.
. Ak EEEVBBREAEEREESERD -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BYZHERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

MREELRSEE

Impairment of trade receivables

B EWERT ZRE

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had trade
receivables of gross carrying amount of approximately
RMB448,739,000, of which impairment allowance of
approximately RMB95,821,000 was provided.
RZZE_ME+_A=+—H  BEEEEEZEIHERER
HEBEX AR 448,739,0007T - ﬁqﬂ,%’UAEMQS,Bm,OOOE
EFHRERE -

The calculation of the expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for
trade receivables, including the assessment of the
historical observed default rates and forecast economic
conditions involves significant management judgements
and estimates.

SHESRUERCEREEEE ((EREEEERD (82
HBEHERINNENERIBARLEIRR) B RERNER
[ ) 8 R A5t -

Specific factors which management would consider include
the ageing of the balances, past collection history and
other available information related to the forecast economic
conditions. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
EREEENERBARBEARKRR  BEEKGCHEURE

SHHEMEBRAILEGRENESN -EREERE 2HY
faiﬁ A R EOR 45 7 1k 1 8 BURK o
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENERNNEERARERSEE

We performed the following procedures to address this matter:
TEHEDWATA TR LAARR I 78

Reviewed and assessed the application of the Group’s policy
for calculating the ECL;
FHH RN BEEEEEREESBERNER

Evaluated techniques and methodology adopted by the
management in the ECL model against the requirements of
IFRS 9;

RIEER I B RELRFIRNMATE  FAEEEREREE
B R AE B AR R A B BT R 0%

Assessed the reasonableness of management’s loss
allowance estimates by examining the information used by
management to form such judgements, including testing the
accuracy of the historical default data, evaluating whether
the historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted based on
current economic conditions and forward-looking information
and examining the actual losses recorded during the
current financial year and assessing whether there was an
indication of management bias when recognising loss
allowances;

HEEEBHERERBAEGNEGEL HEEREEEER
RIZEE @A H E R B3R HUE 28 QO BUR M ER T -
B BEERRRRERE B GRE RATEIEERETHE
ENHEE UTREXAMBFELENERER  HHEER
FREESESEEEEBROOTR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BYZHERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) FAREZEE @)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BRELEE EENERNMMEERREERSE

Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

E SN RN Z B E (&)

Relevant disclosures are included in note 2.4 “Material .
accounting policies”, note 3 “Significant accounting
judgements and estimates” and note 19 “Trade and bills
receivables” to the consolidated financial statements.
BRBRBRAN GRSV BRRMGT24 2 [EREFEBEK] - M5
IZ[EEE A R | K192 [ B 5 UK EBR TR % W
E3E A

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover

the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

TR NEFEHRE

Inquired management for the status of each of the material
trade receivables past due as at year end and
corroborated explanations from management with
supporting evidence, such as understanding ongoing
business relationship with the customers based on trade
records, checking historical and subsequent settlement
records of and other correspondence with the customers;
and

MEEESHANFEREERHRNERNE HRUIRRNIER
WA HEREEECRENME  JINREE S8 T RE
EPHBEXEBRER REEPNEL REELELEAR
HEFHEAMEA &

Checked, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of the trade
receivables as at 31 December 2024 to the underlying
financial records and post year-end settlement to bank
receipts.
UHEFARERE_Z_MOF+_A=+—HHNEZEK
m%iﬂﬁa@ﬁﬁéﬁ@%ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁaﬁz&i, EHEREIRITUR -

FHABNEMER

ERRERAHEMENEE - AMERNBRFHRAH
A ETEREGRAMBERERLE SR E Ha B

W& o

ESHBANBREANERL TRERMER - BE
TEREBREMUROEEER -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BYZHERE

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the IASB
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BYZHERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

TR NEFEHRE

BB ERGEMBERRARENER

BEEFNER  SHEAMBRRBEBRES T FERRK
FFEREERME R EM EAERPOLRGEERE - X
HABEESERZBGRRAMELER 2RBMHRE - &
HER BT (EREBE) WME  BRULZIAREREE
EH - BEETERARENATAEMEMALE £
FAREEMEE - SRRBESKFORE - BTEER
EREBBMERETOEZBEERFENERER
PR - $ARRFRAM T A B RFF SR EE AR 512 - IR A IETAH
FARRFRAL(E B SR E AR R I e B R A M HmREME
FYEH BV R TE - RIB BRR S R BUR AT AR (FE K o

ERBEEBRERE

TEZNBRET  BEFERTE
KHE - RETHEERMRE

B BF:

. Al R AT A ERFE S s AR T BUR & BT IS IR &=
GFHREEXERMAMER St RRTEZER
NEHZERRE  URBEREREENEXER
B EATEERMER - NS R E
BoRE BRER BRI EERANE
w2 b EIEREBR R AR M AR EKRER
F%LE’JJ—L D B A £ 2R 1 28 BUA) BB KSR R PR LA /R

. fR R RAZARBR AR  ARFTEE W EZ
BRF - EEMILIEY E\KIW*IH e A E
BRER -

. FEEEMRAEHBRENEE N ML EFHE
SRR EEREENN AR -
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BYZHERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

. Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the group as a basis
for forming an opinion on the group financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the
audit work performed for purpose of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF BB EBEZGSUBBRRARKENSE @)
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with REBEEAREEBANEENS  SEETWLESEEY
governance, we determine those matters that were of most KHEGR M BERENEZRAEE BMBKERERZ
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of FIH - EERZRBARERHAZEEIR  RIPEEE
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We BMIATHEGSHEELARERE - R ERMNG
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or MT - BEBEAEEHRESRETEBETEMERD
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in BHERBSHBHEANARINE  TERTEEL
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should EERTHERERBEBZEAE-

not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

CCTH CPA Limited FEXBEEFMERAR
Certified Public Accountants HEEEED

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025 B —E-RAF=A=+N\H
Ng Kam Fai RiRE

Practising Certificate Number: P06573 HEFERI - P06573

Unit 1510-1517,15/F., Tower 2 BEREFR

Kowloon Commerce Centre FORE B K519

No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung NEEZEHH D

New Territories, Hong Kong 2/ 151 1510-1517 %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

REEEE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE
2024 2023
—E-_ME —E - =4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR®T R ARBTT
REVENUE A 5 2,939,876 2,650,852
Cost of sales and services $HE R ARTE AR AN (2,422,462) (2,096,642)
Gross profit EF 517,414 554,210
Other income and gains E A A K Uz 5 197,871 15,979
Selling and distribution expenses HERDERAXT (40,860) (65,500)
Administrative expenses THEHR (284,375) (270,059)
Exchange gain, net EH Wz - FRE 15,564 15,106
Other expenses EEMR 6 (123,885) (187,899)
Fair value loss on investment properties REWMEZ XN HEER 7 (5,000) (2,000)
Finance costs BB A A 8 (110,220) (94,548)
Gain on disposal of investment in a joint HER—MBEERRZEEZ e
venture 32(c) = 73,790
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R B Al 0% R 7 166,509 39,079
Income tax credit TS fiiK & 11 46,162 144,699
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR, KRR EEAEBLEEAFE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF i Fl
THE COMPANY 212,671 183,778
EARNINGS PER SHARE KA EEAELEER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF 27
THE COMPANY
RMB RMB
AR®TT AREETT
— Basic and diluted — BERREE 12 0.21 0.18
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

MEETHEWER
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE — T _NFE+_A=+—RHILFE
2024 2023
—E-_ME —E - =4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR, AAREEAELTFEERF
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY 212,671 183,778
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hit2EER
Other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified X742 HjfE] ] £ & #7748 = 18 25 4
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: HEmEEEE -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign MEIINEEBEANER Z8
operations (51,728) (40,345)
Net other comprehensive loss that REEDETREFSBEEZEEN
may be reclassified to profit or loss Hitt2HEBFERE
in subsequent periods (51,728) (40,345)
Other comprehensive income that will not RGBT NG T EH 74 E 1825
be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent EmeE Kz -
periods:
Exchange differences on translation of the BRERRAWBREZIEEEED
Company'’s financial statements into the MEHEHE
presentation currency 2,113 1,703
Net other comprehensive income that REBENBABTEN2EZREN
will not be reclassified to profit or loss Htt2EKEFEHE
in subsequent periods 2,113 1,703
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR REENBRHBAREMCEZEER
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (49,615) (38,642)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR RABREEABEEAFEEZERSE
THE YEAR, ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF s
THE COMPANY 163,056 145,136
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

A PR R &R

As at 31 December 2024 R - —UF+_-H=+—H

FINANCIAL POSITION

2024 2023
—E_mE —E =
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥E T ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e N 13 1,830,141 1,839,427
Investment properties BEME 14 355,000 360,000
Right-of-use assets FRELSE 15 589,107 631,830
Long term prepayments and deposits REEMNRBRIZE 16 46,129 61,550
Total non-current assets IEREBEERE 2,820,377 2,892,807
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Completed properties held for sale SERRFEE 17 1,809,180 2,022,678
Inventories FE 18 816,313 583,474
Trade and bills receivables B ZRrRWER M EREE 19 371,731 311,953
Prepayments, other receivables and other TR FRIE B FE Y kI8
assets Hi&ERE 20 552,826 572,588
Pledged and restricted bank balances BB EZREIRITE R 21 52,953 5,730
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 21 53,323 32,191
3,656,326 3,528,614
Assets classified as held for sale DEABELEZEE 32 29,236 —
Total current assets mENVEESE 3,685,562 3,528,614
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R
Trade and bills payables B RNERREMNEE 22 1,063,366 942,593
Other payables and accruals o fth FE AT FRIB K FESHE A 23 720,509 601,614
Contract liabilities GHAR 24 555,508 742,784
Fixed rate bonds and notes FEEEHFNERE 25 56,488 61,678
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings it EETREMEE 26 967,281 1,616,860
Due to a director FEfTEEHIE 36 7,701 64,353
Tax payable JENFiIA 659,916 294,512
Provision B 27 44,830 49,964
4,075,599 4,374,358
Liabilities associated with assets classified as BHEAZIEHE 7 E&E
held for sale HEaE 32 37,323 —
Total current liabilities MEBGEESE 4,112,922 4,374,358
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBaEFEE (427,360) (845,744)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHABERARBAERE
LIABILITIES 2,393,017 2,047,063
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e RN R
As at 31 December 2024 R - —UF+_-H=+—H
2024 2023
—E_mE —E-=4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥ET ARBEF T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings T ERITREMEE 26 841,164 153,816
Deferred tax liabilities RLEHIEAE 28 171,581 183,770
Long-term tax payable RAEAFENBIIR 11 — 486,614
Government grants I8 478 B 29 141,141 146,788
Total non-current liabilities FERTEELE 1,153,886 970,988
Net assets BEFE 1,239,131 1,076,075
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of RATEBEAEGEER
the Company
Issued capital BEITIRA 30 88,856 88,856
Reserves (ke 31 1,150,275 987,219
Total equity W 1,239,131 1,076,075

CHEN CHANG CHEN ZHAO NIAN
C¥=] BRJK F
Director Director
BE BE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
INGE 2PN L
Statutory
Issued Asset  Contributed Capital reserve Exchange
capital Share revaluation surplus* reserve* fund* Accumulated  fluctuation
(note 30)  premium* reserve™ (note (a))  (note (b)) (note (c)) losses* reserve* Total
BRTRA EE R4EH% ArRf EELRE Ex
(W&30) RGEE EfEHE*  (WaEE) (&)  (FEc) REEE  RBREE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARBTR AR%TR ARMTR ARBTR AR%TR ARET:R
At 1 January 2024 RZEZmE-A-A 88,856 767,097 612,661 224,589 53,934 274,185 (893,963) (51,284) 1,076,075
Profit for the year KEERF = = = - - - 212,671 - 212,671
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ AEEH2 AN
Exchange differences on translation of RENEEBELNERZE
foreign operations - - - - - - - (51,728) (51,728)
Exchange differences on translation BRERRRGHRRRZTNEY
of the Company's financial statements EENERZE
into the presentation currency = = = = = = = 2,113 2,113
Total comprehensive income/(losses) rEERENE/(BR) 28
for the year = = = = = = 212,671 (49,615) 163,056
Transfer of capital reserve and statutory WHENERARERERRRER
reserve fund upon deregistration ETAES
of subsidiaries - - - - (5,705) (114) 6,419 - -
At 31 December 2024 RZEZME+-A=1-H 88,856 767,097 612,661 224,589 48,229 273,471 (674,873)  (100,899) 1,239,131
Attributable to owners of the Company
KRAEENER
Statutory
Issued Asset  Contributed Capital reserve Exchange
capital Share  revaluation surplus* reserve’ fund* Accumulated  fluctuation
(note 30) premium* reserve® (note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c)) losses* reserve” Total
BETRA EE  EREH AXREB EELER Ex
(Mi30)  RfyaE  sREE*  WEaE)  (WEe)  (HEe) 2368 RIEE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRT AREBTT ARETR ARETT AREFT ARETR
At 1 January 2023 WZEZ=§-f—-H 88,856 767,097 612,661 224,589 53,934 274185 (1,077,741) (12,642) 930,939
Profit for the year REERH - - - - - - 183,778 - 183,778
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ AEEH{2 AN
Exchange differences on translation of RENEEBELNERZE
foreign operations - - - - - = - (40,345) (40,345)
Exchange differences on translation BRERRRGBRARZINEY
of the Company’s financial statements EENERZE
into the presentation currency - - - - - = = 1,703 1,703
Total comprehensive income/(losses) rEERENRE/(BR) 28
for the year - - - - - = 183,778 (38,642) 145,136
At 31 December 2023 WZEZ=F+-A=1-H 88,856 767,097 612,661 224,589 53,934 274,185 (893,963) (51,284) 1,076,075
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERagER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

Notes:

The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from an
owner-occupied property to an investment property carried at fair
value.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
approximately RMB1,150,275,000 (2023: RMB987,219,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to
the Group Reorganisation before the Company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in 2010, and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor.

Capital reserve represents the excess capital paid over the registered
capital of Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe Co., Ltd. by Lessonstart

Enterprises Limited.

In accordance with the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”), the Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC are
required to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory net profit after tax
(after offsetting any prior years’ losses) to the statutory reserve fund.
When the balance of an entity’'s reserve fund reaches 50% of its
registered capital, any further appropriation is optional. The statutory
reserve fund can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to
increase the registered capital. However, such balance of the
statutory reserve fund must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of

the registered capital after such usage.

ZECFFERE

B GE -

(c)

ERYMEARGEEERRAFEINRNIREDENE
SEREEMGES -

ZEHERE BE
1,150,275,0007C (

ﬁﬂkﬁﬁﬁi\%qﬂ AREBOARE
=4 AR¥987,219,0007T) °

AEENEHBREARAR _Z-ZFEFBHAR
ZMERRAE ([BRAM]) LAl RIFEESHEMKE
M8 A RO R EEEAR B ETIMEAIRR M E
ERER -

ERRHEREANZESBEERARAXNNERABEER
WITHMEBRARAEMERN SR -

*E%Fqﬂﬁj\ﬁ CANE ([FRE]) ARDE - AR AR B
MM BEAR  ARRREFEEEF M RHEBE
iﬁﬂ’]&ﬁ!&ﬁ%?ﬁ)E‘J10%?¥)\/X*"ﬁ§° E—EE

BOATEDEREDEZMERNS0%E  AIEEESR
#&zéﬁﬁékiﬁﬂﬁi FEELESAUANEHEBEFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= =1
mERERNER
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—E-_ME —E-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR®T R AREEF T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETEHMBSHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B F AT 4 ) 166,509 39,079
Adjustments for: I EIBEFE
Bank interest income |ITHR B HA 5 (175) (180)
Subsidy income from the PRC AP B IR Y 5 G A
government 5 (10,840) (6,663)
Written-off of other payables Tl 8 L JE < RIE 5 (127,794) —
Finance costs & A 8 110,220 94,548
Depreciation of property, plant and M BEREEFTE
equipment 13 65,142 25,881
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15 15,875 15,656
Gain on disposal of investment in a joint HER—HEERRIZIREY
venture Iz — (73,790)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BERRBZ
and equipment, net BB () - FE 363 (1,101)
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries M B AR 2 WEs — (17)
Written-off of property, plant and ME - BB &R M
equipment 4,794 2
Write-down of inventories to net realisable WRFEZRA#RFE
value 6 = 3,812
Fair value loss on investment properties BEWE AT ERE 14 5,000 2,000
Impairment of trade receivables, net BHRWEEFURE  F58 19 12,662 66,715
Impairment of other receivables H IR R E 20 (20,305) 11,814
Written-off of other receivables Jii 58 B Atb B W IR 91,240 —
312,691 177,756
Increase in inventories FEHE (233,108) (184,593)
Decrease in completed properties held BB ER D
for sale 213,498 190,146
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 MR R R FE W ZE Bk (3 0)
bills receivables DR (72,440) 188
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,other TEATFRIE - E b FEUGRIE R A A
receivables and other assets BE (M), md (35,753) 105,556
(Increase)/decrease in pledged and R RZBRHRITA G M),
restricted bank balances B (47,223) 9,190
Increase in trade and bills payables B ZEMNERER R ENZEE 155,758 306,524
Decrease in contract liabilities, other payables & 48 & « E fth f& 58 K g =t
and accruals BRRE D (3,260) (169,921)
(Decrease)/increase in provision B4 CR) /18 m (3,247) 681
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE — T _NFE+_A=+—RHILFE
2024 2023
—E-_ME —E - =4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR®T R ARBTT
Cash generated from operations KERMBIRS 286,916 435,527
Interest received &SN 175 180
Interest paid BEARFILE (79) (52)
Corporate income tax paid BRI ERER (80,706) (146)
Land appreciation tax paid B L ER (434) (4,442)
Net cash flows from operating activities RETHMBRESRE
FE 205,872 431,067
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHMEBRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment B EWE  HE K& H (62,333) (96,260)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and H&¥% - = MR &S 508
equipment 1,320 2,045
Proceeds from disposal of investment in a HER AL A REMERIE
joint venture 32(c) = 34,675
Receipt of government grants LU ER B8 #6 BE 29 5,193 50,858
Net cash flows used in investing activities BREZEFTARESHRETE (55,820) (8,682)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHMEBHRERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank loans and other borrowings BT ERREMEER 798,275 658,250
Repayment of bank loans and other fﬁ%&fﬁﬂg FEEMEE
borrowings (760,100) (578,561)
Repayment of bonds and notes BEEHFLER (6,413) (24,723)
Interest paid 2FE (53,114) (94,496)
Decrease in an amount due to a director JEE B R (56,652) (325,842)
Principal portion of lease payments MENRZAEE D (466) (661)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEZEFIARERETHE (78,470) (366,033)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS

FERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE
2024 2023
—E-_ME —E - =4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR®T R ARBTT
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRFESEEWEMFEHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 71,582 56,352
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net #SMER R H) v 22 %E (50,450) (40,289)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of  F{IH&MEESEEY
year 32,191 16,128
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRARSERESEFED 53,323 32,191
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERBEESEBYEGH DN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances R MIRIT4E & 21 53,323 32,191
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2EIREEER

WIAMRARMEERARAAE ([ARF] R
—EENF-ANARBREREEME2ER
EDE (RN —FFE3FED - BERERERD &

Chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 9 January 2008 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of HEeHESTMR L AEREHNER AR « AAF
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. =Lt 9 = B A9 H 3k & Cricket  Square, Hutchins
The address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands X ERN BB 2 T E &
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business FMEBURBEBENENEETVWEIRCERES
in Hong Kong is located at Unit 605-606, 6th Floor, Tower llI, % = FE61£605-606 F °

Enterprise Square, No. 9 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay,

Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
involved in the following principal activities:

. manufacture and sale of welded steel pipes and the
provision of related manufacturing services; and

. property development and investment.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Bournam Profits
Limited (“Bournam”), which was incorporated in the British

Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Company name

DRER

Lessonstart Enterprises Limited

(“Lessonstart”)

MEEsEARAR(HEE])

Lucknow Consultants Limited

(“Lucknow”)

Lucknow Consultants Limited

(I'Lucknow )

ZECFFERE

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business
ML
U EE 30k

British Virgin Islands

REBRIES

British Virgin Islands

RBRELES

Particulars of issued
and paid-up capital
BEETR
HEREAMFE

300 shares of
US$1 each

300/
FREE1ETRS

10 shares of

US$1 each

108%
FREE1IETRN

AAFRENBAR (GF [ AEE)) EBHEN
TEBES -

. SUEMHEIRZME RIRHAARRIERT -
&

. MEBERIIRE -

BERE ARANERARRREIERAAA
Bournam Profits Limited ([Bournam]) @ %A A
REBREZRSFEMKL -

ERHEBARZER
ARBEIZWMBRARZFBNT

Percentage of
equity attributable

to the Company  Principal activities

PN
BiERERSE FEXH
Direct Indirect
BE GE:3
% %
100 — Investment holding
100 — REEK

— 100 Investment holding

— 100 HEEMK

WImhaXARMEEEREREAT 131



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2AREBER @
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) BB L E 2E R (E)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RARREEWBATZFBET « (&)

follows: (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of
registration Particulars of issued equity attributable
Company name and business and paid-up capital to the Company  Principal activities
ML BRTR N
DAL AR R i B BRRANFEE BEREESL TEEH
Direct Indirect
HE L
% %
Crown Central Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares — 100 Trading of steel pipes
(“Crown Central”) of HK$1 each
KPEERRAR (K] N 1,000A% — 100 HMEES
BREEVETEER
Chu Kong Steel Pipe Group Co., Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary — 100 Investment holding and
Ltd. (“CKSPG") shares of HK$1 each trading of steel pipes
KIMESERRAA Bk 100,000 - 100 REZREEEES
(IHIMEER] BREEVETEBRR
Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe Co., The PRC/ HK$1,469,570,700 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
Ltd. (“PCKSP”) Mainland China welded steel pipes
EBWIMERRAR hE R E A, 1,469,570,7007% 7T — 100 BERHERENE
([HEBWIRE])
Guangzhou Pearl River The PRC/ RMB8,980,000 — 100 Steel pipe casing and
Petroleum Steel Pipe Coating Mainland China lining services
Co., Ltd.

BNEHRARARENRERART FE/ HEAN AR #8,980,0007T — 100 H0E B MR 2 B IR TS
Guangzhou Zhugang Steel Tubes The PRC/ HK$50,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
Group Co., Ltd. (“GZSTG") Mainland China welded steel pipes

BMNRME X EEER QA HEL T E A 50,000,0007% 7T — 100 BERHEREME

(TEMRMEE])
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

RAREEER ()

BARHELQRZER (8
ARBEEMBRBAZFBENAT : (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (Continued)

Company name

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

Particulars of issued
and paid-up capital

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

Principal activities

ML BRTR NN
NCECE EUNE-E 3 BRRANFEE BEREESL FTEEH
Direct Indirect
HE L
% %

Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe The PRC/ RMB1,110,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
(Lianyungang) Co., Ltd. Mainland China welded steel pipes
(“PCKSP (Lianyungang)”)

BEBWIME ETB)AR FE R E A, AEK#1,110,000,0007T — 100 BERHERENE
KA ([ERRIHE
(FEEE)D

Panyu Chu Kong Steel Pipe The PRC/ HK$1,088,402,071 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
(Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. (“PCKSP Mainland China welded steel pipes
(Zhuhai)”)

FEBWIHE KB ARAF EL B R 1,088,402,0717% 7T — 100 BERHERENE
([EBWIRE (%E)])

Lianyungang Kaidi Heavy The PRC/ RMB470,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
Equipment Technology Co., Mainland China steel pipe equipment
Ltd. (“Kaidi”) and metallurgy

equipment

EEEYTFTEIMRARD HEL R E A, AR #470,000,0007T — 100 BERHEEREREIA
(s ) kb L

Lianyungang Pearl River Petrol- The PRC/ HK$303,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
Fittings Co., Ltd. (“LYG Petrol- Mainland China tubular piles
Fittings”)

EEEDRIALENARA HEL R E A, 303,000,0003% 7t — 100 HERHEEM
(TEERALEHD

ZECFFERE

WIRBRARRMELZRERAT 133



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2AREBER @
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) BB L E 2E R (E)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RARREEWBATZFBET « (&)

follows: (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of
registration Particulars of issued equity attributable
Company name and business and paid-up capital to the Company  Principal activities
ML BRTR N
DAL AR R i B BRRANFEE BEREESL TEEH
Direct Indirect
HE e 5
% %

Lianyungang Zhugang Coating The PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 100 Steel pipe casing and
Engineering Co., Ltd. Mainland China lining service
(“LYG Zhugang Coating”)

BEERMMBREIRAERAR +E/ HEANL AR #10,000,0007T — 100 08 B M2 B RS
(TEEHHRMHED)

Guangdong Pearl Steel The PRC/ RMB50,000,000 — 100 Property development
Investment Management Co., Mainland China and investment
Ltd. (“Pearl Steel Investment”)

BRUMREERERLD ([HE HE RENM AR #50,000,0007T — 100 MERBERRE
KE])

Nanjing Rongyu Group Co., Ltd. The PRC/ RMB75,000,000 — 100 Manufacture of welded
(“Nanjing Rongyu Group”) Mainland China steel products

BRBENEEEARAR ((FHREM 7B TEAM AR #75,000,0007T — 100 ELEREMMER
£81)

Zhuhai Zhugang Port Logistics The PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 100 Port services
Co., Ltd. Mainland China

RERMIEENRER QA HEL T E A AR #10,000,0007T — 100 BORE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

RAREEER ()

AR ELQRZER (4
ARBEEMBRBAZFBENAT : (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (Continued)

Company name

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

Particulars of issued
and paid-up capital

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

Principal activities

ML BRTR NN
NCECE EUNE-E 3 BRRANFEE BEREESL FTEEH
Direct Indirect
HE L
% %
Chu Kong Steel Pipe (Yunfu) The PRC/ RMB36,350,360 — 100 Sale of welded steel
Co., Ltd. (“CKSP (Yunfu)”) Mainland China pipes
WIME (BF)ERRA HEL R E A, AR 36,350,360 7T — 100 HERRHE
(HIME (2F)))
View Sharp International Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares — 100 Investment holding
of HK$1 each
SEREARQA BB 10,0004% & A2 I & — 100 HEEK
BT EBR
PT Chu Kong Steel Indonesia Indonesia 10,000,000 shares of — 100 Property holding
IDR11,532 each
HIMEEEBR AR MERAR 10,000,000 & B E A — 100 WERHE

11,5320 /E & & 15

LREJEERRIBZEFAREIBRAE
BEEFENIZHDZARFAMBRARRE -
E=RR JIHEMHMBRRFBEHEHIIKE
RILE »

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 £ %= —

“OEF A=t HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

21

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared IFRS
Accounting Standards (which include all International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”), International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and interpretations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”), and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

in accordance with

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

relevant facts and

. the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

. potential voting rights held by the Group, other
vote holders or other parties;

. rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and
. any additional facts and circumstances that

indicate that the Group has, or does not have, the
current ability to direct the relevant activities at
the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.
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2. EXREEE

21

mEEXE
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BamE R ([RRPBRELED]) k)
RBERBAGH ZREZRFRE - HTHIA
JEEEﬁJZZlKTf{ﬁIJ%%?% EREBEWMELRATE
FERN - ZEUBBRERAARE AR
B2 ﬁ%wﬁﬁllﬁﬂﬁﬁl\ CHAEHRER
BEERBAOTIT

mAEE
RAEVBRREEASERE_T_F
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BUHRZEREY) IRXRAEEHEEFR
BER IR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE
2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EBERETEEG@E
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 wEEEERE)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intragroup assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

“MEFERE

HEEE (&)

M2 R mR A RS HIMEARR R
Rl IHRB-BOEAHRFER - HEQ
FNEEHAEBRSEHE 2 ARES
HE BEETEES LESIEZBRIE -

BRhkHEMEEEENSARBIFBER
AEBERRHEE ARIFFEEER - BIE
LRSI BERBEEEBAGER -ER
BASEZKEARRZEERS 2 &HE
NERARWEERAE - #m - WA ~ FX
EReREBENGATER2BULHE -

i = E RIE BRI Xt =E % 6 F
BRZ-HAIZAELBAEC AEEGEH
RS EEHREHR - WEKEER
BZHBAREEEEAEHIUARARS
N

WAEEXEZHHBE AR ZEHE - BIK
IEEROZWBRAZEE (RIEHE) &
B - (i) E M FEEAR R < BREE & (i) R
EEANRE s RETERZ8 0 RERGOD
KWREZRAFE  (IIREERHEEZR
FER (i) BETPERAELEEZ BRI
BeLAEREMEEREABRZAE
EEGIDERDEEREBRERBFEN (1
HA)  EERAEEFEDERBEESK
BEMEER 2 EEER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE
2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2024, the Group maintained cash
and cash equivalents of approximately RMB53,323,000
(2023: RMB32,191,000) and recorded net current
liabilities of approximately RMB427,360,000 (2023:
RMB845,744,000). In view of these circumstances, the
directors of the Company have considered the future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its available
sources of finance in assessing whether the Group will
have sufficient financial resources to continue as a
going concern.

In order to improve the Group’s liquidity and cash flows
to sustain the Group as a going concern, the Group
implemented or is in the process of implementing the
following measures:

(1) Active negotiation with banks to obtain
adequate bank borrowings to finance the
Group’s operations
As at 31 December 2024, the Group are
expected to have sufficient financial support to
pay off debts in the next 12 months, so the
consolidated financial statements are prepared on
the basis of going concern.

Subsequent to 31 December 2024 and up to the
date of this report, the Group obtained the new
loan amounted to RMB92,642,000 and the
renewal of the existing loan amounting to
approximately RMB600,670,000 is under
negotiation and the Group expects that the
renewal of the existing loan could be renewed
with related banks upon expiry. The Group
continues to actively negotiate with the banks for
the renewal of the Group’s borrowings when they
fall due or obtain additional sources of finance to
meet the Group’s working capital and financial
requirements in the near future. The directors of
the Company have evaluated all the relevant
facts available to them and are of the opinion
that they have a good track record and
relationship with the banks and considered that
the Group would be able to renew the Group’s
loans upon expiry.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

The Group is taking measures to tighten cost
control over various production costs and
expenses with an aim to attain profitable and
positive cash flow operations. The eventual
outcome of the above measures is inherently
uncertain and cannot be estimated with
reasonable certainty.

The directors of the Company have prepared a
cash flow forecast for the Group which covers a
period of twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. Taking into account the positive
cash flows from the Group’s steel pipes business
and the continued sale of the Group’s existing
real estate projects, the directors considered that
the Group will have sufficient working capital to
finance its operations and meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
of the Group have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

Should the going concern assumption be
inappropriate, adjustments may have to be made
to reflect the situation that assets may need to be
realised at amounts other than those which are
currently recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial position. In addition, the Group may
have to provide for any further liabilities that
might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities, respectively. The effects of
these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EXRSHEBEX@
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 HFEEE(E)
Going concern basis (Continued) FFREAEEE ()
(2) Improvement of the Group’s operating cash (2) HNEFXFEENECEHR S TRE
flows

REE B IESRERAE B B HH A EE R A Ko B
YR ARSI G - AR R ) J 8
MRS RE - LB BN RKHE
REBTHEERER - AR EMATHE
JETE -

ARREZCHREAEEREMRS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EBEARGFTEE@E
2.2 New and amended IFRS Accounting Standards 22 FAFEEEMNHTRKETERGBE

that are effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of
amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards issued by
the IASB that are mandatorily effective for an
accounting period that begins on or after 1 January
2024. Their adoption has not had any material impact
on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these
financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash
Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures titled Supplier Finance
Arrangements

The Group has adopted the amendments to IAS 7
Statement of Cash Flows and |FRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures titled Supplier Finance
Arrangements for the first time in the current year.

The amendments add a disclosure objective to IAS 7
stating that an entity is required to disclose information
about its supplier finance arrangements that enables
users of financial statements to assess the effects of
those arrangements on the entity’s liabilities and cash
flows. In addition, IFRS 7 is amended to add supplier
finance arrangements as an example within the
requirements to disclose information about an entity’s
exposure to concentration of liquidity risk.

The amendments contain specific transition provisions
for the first annual reporting period in which the Group
applies the amendments. Under the transitional
provisions an entity is not required to disclose:

. comparative information for any reporting periods
presented before the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies
those amendments

. the information otherwise required by IAS
7:44H(b)(ii)—(iii) as at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies
those amendments.

140 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

HERGEA
RAFE  AEBEEEABBEE %A
BEeEMAR_ZT_NF—A B2
1& 7 40 1) & 5t BA 1 5R il 42 R % {8 B BR B
B E LS ET AR o IR E % Z 0B ®
RZWBERIMERS W EE(ATERTE -

B ETERETS  HERBERRE
BRI BEEHEERETH, AT A&
F— REBHELH LT

AREREFE ERRNER LS
EREEY T EAe Lt T TR
% 2MIA: HE — CEEHREZIHE
e

B AHBIR G ERIF7HRIEN T —AK
BEER AN ERAREABAHERRE
ZHEH) B R - (BB TS R A B A R %
ERHHERNABERRERENTE -
BEAN - BIFR B IS RS E RSB TR AEEAT -
REREEEBETRBERBHENR
ERFERERRELHERSED

ZEEBITABEEARERAZFET AN
BEFERS HRNETEREKRX - RIE
BER BRERNE

ERERAERZFEITANEER
A 7 46 B A 251 89 (2R 3R 5 HA R
ML B E R

==
=

. REREANEAZSEITIANTER
SHY BB ERETHRSE
44H(b)(ii)-(iii) AR E R E b B H} o

Annual Report 2024



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EBEARGFTEE@E
2.2 New and amended IFRS Accounting Standards 22 FAFEEEMNHTRKETERGBE

that are effective for the current year
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current

The Group has adopted the amendments to IAS 1,
published in January 2020, for the first time in the
current year.

The amendments affect only the presentation of
liabilities as current or non-current in the statement of
financial position and not the amount or timing of
recognition of any asset, liability, income or expenses,
or the information disclosed about those items.

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting period,
specify that classification is unaffected by expectations
about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of a liability, explain that rights are in
existence if covenants are complied with at the end of
the reporting period, and introduce a definition of
‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement refers to the
transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments,
other assets or services.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BERSHEBEM®

2.2 New and amended IFRS Accounting Standards 22 FAFEEEMNHTRKETERGBE
that are effective for the current year HEREFER ()
(Continued)
Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of B E 51 ERIE1HIET K - IEHE
Financial Statements — Non-current Liabilities HEZ — WERZWHREEE
with Covenants
The Group has adopted the amendments to IAS 1, AEERAFEERERARZZE_F1
published in November 2022, for the first time in the — ABEME B g ERIE1REET A -

current year.

The amendments specify that only covenants that an ZEBRI AT ERARRESR RS2
entity is required to comply with on or before the end of METHREF e EETBRRSHHRE
the reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer D+ EANEEEE A BEOETR (K
settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after Fﬁﬁ{,\ IR IE RS D EREEEZE
the reporting date (and therefore must be considered in Ex) - BMEEARMEANETHEEHE
assessing the classification of the liability as current or TR ZEREGTEZENN®RE
non-current). Such covenants affect whether the right X%KT%E(W'JZZDEHAE%i‘EﬁAiﬁiEIEﬁWW
exists at the end of the reporting period, even if MR FEERNRE BRETER
compliance with the covenant is assessed only after the BEE) ©

reporting date (e.g. a covenant based on the entity’s

financial position at the reporting date that is assessed

for compliance only after the reporting date).

The IASB also specifies that the right to defer Rt EAREY T AT R EARNR
settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after EHRETHEAERRERREELD T+
the reporting date is not affected if an entity only has to “EARNEEFEEENENTELE -
comply with a covenant after the reporting period. A MEREESEABENENZRT
However, if the entity’s right to defer settlement of a ERNmEHE+ _HAARNREETHH
liability is subject to the entity complying with covenants ERAREEAEAN UG BRKRERE
within twelve months after the reporting period, an EHTHRZEBEERRERHET @R
entity discloses information that enables users of NEENRR - ZFEREBERE (R
financial statements to understand the risk of the BB R ERASTRANRR) - A28
liabilities becoming repayable within twelve months after BEZEABEARKAEEBIEE LT
the reporting period. This would include information RENEERBER(WAE) -

about the covenants (including the nature of the
covenants and when the entity is required to comply
with them), the carrying amount of related liabilities and
facts and circumstances, if any, that indicate that the
entity may have difficulties complying with the
covenants.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BEAREFHE®@
2.2 New and amended IFRS Accounting Standards 22 XEEERPHET R LIS BB

that are effective for the current year
(Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases — Lease
Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The Group has adopted the amendments to IFRS 16
for the first time in the current year.

The amendments to IFRS 16 add subsequent
measurement requirements for sale and leaseback
transactions that satisfy the requirements in IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers to be
accounted for as a sale. The amendments require the
seller-lessee to determine ‘lease payments’ or ‘revised
lease payments’ such that the seller-lessee does not
recognise a gain or loss that relates to the right of use
retained by the seller-lessee, after the commencement
date.

The amendments do not affect the gain or loss
recognised by the seller-lessee relating to the partial or
full termination of a lease. Without these new
requirements, a seller-lessee may have recognised a
gain on the right of use it retains solely because of a
remeasurement of the lease liability (for example,
following a lease modification or change in the lease
term) applying the general requirements in IFRS 16.
This could have been particularly the case in a
leaseback that includes variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate.

As part of the amendments, the IASB amended an
lllustrative Example in IFRS 16 and added a new
example to illustrate the subsequent measurement of a
right-of-use asset and lease liability in a sale and
leaseback transaction with variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate. The illustrative
examples also clarify that the liability that arises from a
sale and leaseback transaction that qualifies as a sale
applying IFRS 15 is a lease liability.

A seller-lessee applies the amendments retrospectively
in accordance with IAS 8 to sale and leaseback
transactions entered into after the date of initial
application, which is defined as the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which the entity first applied
IFRS 16.

TR NEFEHRE

& B @R ()

A=A st

BB B B R 2E R E 16 75 FH E 15 5T &K
— EAHEEHHHESE
REBERAFEERERABERTBREE
BIZE165RIERT AN ©

B B 15 R RSB 18R IERT AN T &
BHORSMEREFEBRE ZEREN
ABEBRMBREEF1GREL S ALA
WRE  EBEREEAR ZEFTAEL
B —ABEABEIHEENKIHELERT
HEMKIABES — ABAERER B
BIERAEET — AAARBHEHE
BN RER -

FNEEI AT EER — FEARBOHE
ﬁB%%JJ:%H%ﬁEM B U 5 ST 1B o fin B 0 A
ZEMRE  BEH — AEATRERERARE
FABFR B 75 5 AR RSB 1655 8 — R AR T &
FEEREAE (MW EHREEFT A
BE ) MERELRENEAERS - LH
EE@%HEP BRI FE AP FE B Sk A

""""" BHEMNR -

ERERTAH — 8D RERTERES
@%ﬂT!%M%ﬁaﬁ%%mﬂ¢Wﬁ
5 ST — AR BIAR A EE R A
ERZF HREAEEEREEARN
BB E  JEESNRTKBE R
X g@PIBET BN A R R
EERNFISHMHEENERBO R HME
EHBEERHERE-

REEE s ERIE8N - H7 — AHEA
K%FETNENERBRIBERB B GE
ERNERARERBERMEHRELERNSE
165 FE MG HRFR) R ERA
B 5 -

WIRHRARRMELZRERAT 143



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BEAREFHE®@
2.3 New and revised IFRS Accounting Standards in 23 CHEMEERERNIHTREETE

issue but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial
statements, the Group has not applied the following
new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards that have
been issued but are not yet effective:

The following amendments are effective for the period
beginning 1 January 2025:

Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability

The following amendments are effective for the period
beginning 1 January 2026:

Amendments to IFRS 9 and Classification and
IFRS 7 Measurement of
Financial Instruments

The following amendments are effective for the period
beginning 1 January 2027:

IFRS 18 Presentation and
Disclosures in Financial
Statements

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability:
Disclosures

The effective date of the following amendments has
been deferred indefinitely:

Amendments to IFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of
IAS 28 Assets between an
Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the
standards listed above will have a material impact on
the financial statements of the Group in future periods,
except if indicated below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EXSHEER®@®

2.3 New and revised IFRS Accounting Standards in 23 CHEMEERERNIHTREETE
issue but not yet effective (Continued) PR BT A R E RIS S A (/)
Amendments to IAS 21 The Effects of Changes BB E s E R E21 5515 5T K - SN EE
in Foreign Exchange Rates titled Lack of ERENTE RS T LEME
Exchangeability
The amendments specify how to assess whether a ZAETAREIA MM —EEERE A A
currency is exchangeable, and how to determine the BMAES—EEE ST LKBE Az
exchange rate when it is not. EEE o
The amendments state that a currency is exchangeable ZIEEIARTE  BEBENEATERTT
into another currency when an entity is able to obtain HRE AR 1Y Ry ) 6 [B] P9 IF 35 38 i1 355 ok 4 1R
the other currency within a time frame that allows for a il (LA I 5 A2 5 i B2 AR 1] s T T OB
normal administrative delay and through a market or REB) S HMEER - R0 LR
exchange mechanism in which an exchange transaction H—EE -

would create enforceable rights and obligations.

An entity assesses whether a currency is exchangeable BRI EBEEBRAUNHER RS
into another currency at a measurement date and for a FEMRBRAS —EEE - WEER=
specified purpose. If an entity is able to obtain no more AR TEEMNRESMNEMES SBERM
than an insignificant amount of the other currency at the TRE  AZEETTHBRABEME -

measurement date for the specified purpose, the
currency is not exchangeable into the other currency.

The assessment of whether a currency is exchangeable A EERESUN RS —BEE
into another currency depends on an entity’s ability to BARBEERGHRGENERSES —BEE -
obtain the other currency and not on its intention or MIEEREEESRELRITE -

decision to do so.

;;

B /7

RETEABEBETIRIBAS — S Al
BitEt ez BRI HAE K - FES (A 5T AP
BERMNEATRMTHELHEEEERFL
TR EBETEFELRZHIE

When a currency is not exchangeable into another

=

1

kn

currency at a measurement date, an entity is required
to estimate the spot exchange rate at that date. An
entity’s objective in estimating the spot exchange rate is
to reflect the rate at which an orderly exchange
transaction would take place at the measurement date
between market participants under prevailing economic

$% 3¢ & o
;rﬁﬁ
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o

conditions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BERSHEBEM®

2.3 New and revised IFRS Accounting Standards in 23 EHEME ﬁﬂii?‘iﬂ’]%ﬁﬂ&%@ﬂé“ﬂ
issue but not yet effective (Continued) I‘%‘%,ﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁﬂ”én‘féﬁu
Amendments to IAS 21 The Effects of Changes R E T BRI E21 % 155T 4< ﬁﬁ&’g
in Foreign Exchange Rates titled Lack of %ﬁ@?ﬂ?s’ﬁf RZ A ()
Exchangeability (Continued)
The amendments do not specify how an entity F2AE 5T N0 K 48 B 2 B8 A0 AT fih &1 B HA & 3
estimates the spot exchange rate to meet that LUERZER - BEAFEATESRER (&
objective. An entity can use an observable exchange A E) SE M AR o AT RIE XA
rate without adjustment or another estimation technique. BB 4E -

Examples of an observable exchange rate include:

. a spot exchange rate for a purpose other than that . FEE B AT A AR B &0 B HA
for which an entity assesses exchangeability

. the first exchange rate at which an entity is able . REBOA LR IRER - B8R
to obtain the other currency for the specified RIETENESEMERENS —EX
purpose after exchangeability of the currency is (B—1REER) -
restored (first subsequent exchange rate).

An entity using another estimation technique may use {50 A LAt {5 42 i 80 & 88 7] LA R AEfaT AT

any observable exchange rate — including rates from BIREX (BB TEE A BHERITHRERN X

exchange transactions in markets or exchange EHENTHER R S BEHIER) - I

mechanisms that do not create enforceable rights and EVERAEZEER DU EMERE -

obligations — and adjust that rate, as necessary, to

meet the objective as set out above.

When an entity estimates a spot exchange rate EREREBEEE LB ARS —SEmME

because a currency is not exchangeable into another SHENHAE RIS - B EWEEBEER -

currency, the entity is required to disclose information DB S BFE A ES %’@i@ﬁ;ﬂiﬁjgiﬁ

that enables users of its financial statements to AR—EEHNEKNME B E:

understand how the currency not being exchangeable BEENBERRA - Eﬁﬁ%ﬂj{;ﬂ&fﬁ@mi °

into the other currency affects, or is expected to affect,

the entity’s financial performance, financial position and

cash flows.

The amendments add a new appendix as an integral SAEET AN T —EM R (EABREE

part of IAS 21. The appendix includes application uﬂ-@’E,ﬁ\lj S215REAH A EB ) o MT 8% B 3R ,ﬂ

guidance on the requirements introduced by the AR AWIBEZERIER - ZIEF] AN IE

amendments. The amendments also add new MTEEeERF2155 MM R &7 -
lllustrative Examples accompanying IAS 21, which ARSAERBNAREMERNEREE

illustrate how an entity might apply some of the EREBATERS THRE °

requirements in hypothetical situations based on the
limited facts presented.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BEAREFHE®@
2.3 New and revised IFRS Accounting Standards in 23 EHEME ﬁﬂii?‘iﬂ’]%ﬁﬂ'&é@ﬂé‘ﬂ

issue but not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to IAS 21 The Effects of Changes
in Foreign Exchange Rates titled Lack of
Exchangeability (Continued)

In addition, the IASB made consequential amendments
to IFRS 1 to align with and refer to the revised IAS 21
for assessing exchangeability.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025, with
earlier application permitted. An entity is not permitted
to apply the amendments retrospectively. Instead, an
entity is required to apply the specific transition
provisions included in the amendments.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these amendments may have an impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in
future periods.

Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

The amendments address diversity in accounting
practice by making the requirements on classification
and measurement of financial instruments more
understandable and consistent. The amendments clarify
the date of recognition and derecognition of financial
assets and liabilities, with a new exception for some
financial liabilities settled through an electronic cash
transfer system; clarify and add further guidance for
assessing whether a financial asset meets the solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding criterion; add new disclosures for
certain instruments with contractual terms that can
change cash flows; and update the disclosures for
equity instruments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BEAREFHE®@
2.3 New and revised IFRS Accounting Standards in 23 CHEMEEKRERNWEHTRKETE

issue but not yet effective (Continued)

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures in
Financial Statements

IFRS 18 replaces IAS 1, carrying forward many of the
requirements in IAS 1 unchanged and complementing
them with new requirements. In addition, some IAS 1
paragraphs have been moved to IAS 8 and IFRS 7.
Furthermore, the IASB has made minor amendments to
IAS 7 and IAS 33 Earnings per Share.

IFRS 18 introduces new requirements to:

. present specified categories and defined subtotals
in the statement of profit or loss

. provide disclosures on management-defined
performance measures (MPMs) in the notes to the
financial statements

. improve aggregation and disaggregation.

An entity is required to apply IFRS 18 for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027,
with earlier application permitted. The amendments to
IAS 7 and IAS 33, as well as the revised IAS 8 and
IFRS 7, become effective when an entity applies IFRS
18. IFRS 18 requires retrospective application with
specific transition provisions.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these amendments may have an impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in
future periods.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BEAREFBE@®
2.3 New and revised IFRS Accounting Standards in 23 CHEMEEKRERNWEHTRKETE
issue but not yet effective (Continued) BREFIS 3RS E RS 5T (&)

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public EIRR BT 3 R FE19%  HARF
Accountability: Disclosures AEENE LA KE
IFRS 19 permits an eligible subsidiary to provide R HREE R F19E A F T A KM

reduced disclosures when applying IFRS Accounting
Standards in its financial statements.

A subsidiary is eligible for the reduced disclosures if it
does not have public accountability and its ultimate or
any intermediate parent produces consolidated financial

P B8 2~ )R H B 5 3R R o FE R B R B 7
SREA S ENRRDEE -

WEHBARNAEARRTEME  BE
REBRAREMNFHEGRRARETEE
B HREER G EN AT HARER

=
%

statements available for public use that comply with HERE I EHmE - AIZMNBARIFNAEER
IFRS Accounting Standards. DB ER
IFRS 19 is optional for subsidiaries that are eligible e BRI E A R Al E 2 A B R 5

WEERE195 - W IR ZEAZER
BB B A BB R EE AR TE

and sets out the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries that elect to apply it.

An entity is only permitted to apply IFRS 19 if, at the BETIERT B AR mEHAREK

end of the reporting period: A B B B 7 3 5 2RI 251955 -

. it is a subsidiary (this includes an intermediate . HAEMBAR (BEFHEERR])
parent)

. it does not have public accountability, and . HTEBEARZTET K&

. its ultimate or any intermediate parent produces . HEKREGRARSAMPHES AR

NEBERMBRE LN SHER AR
HARERANEGEE P HERE

consolidated financial statements available for
public use that comply with IFRS Accounting
Standards.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EBEARGFTEE@E
2.3 New and revised IFRS Accounting Standards in 23 CEMERMRERWHETREEITEH

issue but not yet effective (Continued)
IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures (Continued)
A subsidiary has public accountability if:

. its debt or equity instruments are traded in a public
market or it is in the process of issuing such
instruments for trading in a public market (a
domestic or foreign stock exchange or an
over-the-counter market, including local and
regional markets), or

. it holds assets in a fiduciary capacity for a broad
group of outsiders as one of its primary
businesses (for example, banks, credit unions,
insurance entities, securities brokers/dealers,
mutual funds and investment banks often meet
this second criterion).

Eligible entities can apply IFRS 19 in their
consolidated, separate or individual financial
statements. An eligible intermediate parent that does
not apply IFRS 19 in its consolidated financial
statement may do so in its separate financial
statements.

The new standard is effective for reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2027 with earlier
application permitted. If an entity elects to apply IFRS
19 for a reporting period earlier than the reporting
period in which it first applies IFRS 18, it is required to
apply a modified set of disclosure requirements set out
in an appendix to IFRS 19. If an entity elects to apply
IFRS 19 for an annual reporting period before it
applied the amendments to IAS 21, it is not required to
apply the disclosure requirements in IFRS 19 with
regard to Lack of Exchangeability.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
IFRS 19 will be applied for purposes of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EBEARGFTEE@E
2.3 New and revised IFRS Accounting Standards in 23 CEMERMRERWHETREEITEH

issue but not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the accounting treatment for
sales or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associates or joint ventures. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the
sale or contribution between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that

associate or joint venture.

Material accounting policies

Investment in a joint venture

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investment in a joint venture is stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

BERETHE@®
24 EAREIEE@E

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2.

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Investment in a joint venture (Continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of a joint venture is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investment in the joint venture, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of the joint venture is included as part of the
Group’s investment in a joint venture.

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate or vice versa, the retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment
continues to be accounted for under the equity method.
In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint
venture, the Group measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE
2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EXRSHEBEX@
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EREFBEER @)
Business combinations and goodwill EBEHREE

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BERSHEBEM®
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EXRETBER(E)
Business combinations and goodwill EBEHREE (&)

(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition-
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 £ %= —

2,

24

“OEF A=t HIEFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of,
the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of
is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill

measured based on the relative value of the operation

disposed of in these circumstances is

disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE
2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EAREFTHEHE®@
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EREFBEER @)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial
assets, investment properties, goodwill, non-current
asset classified as held for sale), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other
than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(ii)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary
or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan

for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EXSHEER®@®
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EXRETBER(E)
Related parties (Continued) BES (&)
(b)  (Continued) (o) (&)
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled (vi) ZEREB(a)BATIMA TSI
by a person identified in (a); HEES
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (viiy R@)()BFFMATHZERSE
influence over the entity or is a member of BEAVENNBZER (K%
the key management personnel of the entity BEEMNEQA) gﬁ@@ﬁf@
(or of a parent of the entity); and 8 Kk

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of (viii) ZEREXEFEMERKE QA
which it is a part, provides key REFEE EAEHEE‘%%ZKE
management personnel services to the oA v S 37N
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and W¥ BERZERITE
depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction M BB REE(EREIRRIN RAKR

in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated BEITEREMBEBEAR - M-
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an HEREEEENKABRELEBEEEBRE
A& EZERETERREERRDRIBEM
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of HEERTRIBA o

bringing the asset to its working condition and location

item of property, plant and equipment comprises its

for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and M- BEMEEBEERABEREED
equipment have been put into operation, such as FY - Pl RERST  —RRELH
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the MEBEmEPNR - WEDERIZLE - A

statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EBEARGFTEE@E
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EXRETBER(E)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The estimated useful lives and residual values used
for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings

B

Plant and machinery

T 5 Kot 23

Office and other equipment
MAEREMRE

Motor vehicles

e

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EBEARGFTEE@E
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EXRETBER(E)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction, which are stated at cost
less any impairment losses, and are not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as right-of-use
asset which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of
the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the statement
of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE
2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

24

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

For a transfer from investment properties to
owner-occupied properties or inventories, the deemed
cost of a property for subsequent accounting is its fair
value at the date of change in use. If a property
occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”
for owned property and/or accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Right-of-use
assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up to
the date of change in use, and any difference at that
date between the carrying amount and the fair value of
the property is accounted for as a revaluation in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer
from inventories to investment properties, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date and
its previous carrying amount is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held
for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sales transaction rather
than through continuing use. For this to be the case,
the asset or disposal group must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for the sale of such
assets or disposal groups and its sale must be highly
probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary
classified as a disposal group are reclassified as held
for sale regardless of whether the Group retains a
non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the
sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell,
except for financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9
which continue to be measured in accordance with the
accounting policies as set out in respective sections.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
classified as held for sale are not depreciated or
amortised.

162 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

B AREFBEEEK @)
24 BEAREFEE@#E)
REY¥ (&)

WRENFEREAANFEUFEMS
HRARTZEUNDEREUNREZAZ
NP EERERAE - MANEBHER 2
HEEMXEER/REME  AKEAR
BEMERENRIYE  BER&ERT
Bt 2 MEBZMENE - R/ L
BEFERBEEZMERBER(ERESR
B 2 MR K ZMEAR - EEE A
BmZBARLE MRERBEZMEZRE
BERATEZEAEZEEREM REN
EX% - BB RRERITE ]l 2 K
RAR -REEEREREVENS - ¥
ERNZBAHZAFERELAREEZE
MERETIR B R AR o

HIFHENFRBEERHERE

HWFRBDEERHERENRAEI I E
BERLERSMIFEBHAECAMKE
Alg D BEARELE - HIERNERREE
FHESEATRIER TR HE (EAZH
ERFEENNERE 2 —REBEGRIA
BR) RREAREERZHE - DEA/HE
SENMBARIZMAEEERABEEN
DEBFBELE  TRAKBEELERSE
BEHFIMME R FRE IFE R -

DERRBEHENERBDEERHERE
(TERREMEREREE) DIREKE
BEARRFERLERAMEF ZREE
FE BN EAMBREEAFOREE
NZeREEREERBSHMEZ G
BRAE - D EB/FBIEHENYE - BFE
REAREBVEESTINESHE -

Annual Report 2024



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EBEARGFTEE@E
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EXRETBER(E)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right
to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets

as follows:
Leasehold land 10 to 50 years
Buildings 2 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

“MEFERE

HE
AEEREGHORBEFEENRTENHL
BEHE - MEOM THERMNZESFEER
ER—BRERZ AENERE  BIRTR
ZEHRNNBEHE -

K2 [E (23 AATAA
AEBERTEHERMAE —HRANET
Fo EEMEERRKEEEERERS) -
AEEEREEQBANES  MEM
REERERABEENER -

(a) FERREE
EREEEREERKG RS (ANAE
BEMERAESR) BR - EREEE
BRRASRAL ] REHTE KA EE
B85t - W HE A BN EMEHNE
EBEHAE - ERAEEENKAERE
EHRHEAESE CELVKE
BERARERERA AR ZAEX
MFRESREMND WRNEEEE -
ERREENEENEE R AIE
REHUABREERE) RESEN

E omT:
ME+ 10E 504
BF 2% 34

MR A R S AR A
BMEARE WA R R
U8 ST RVR I A AR 3T AT 8
FEEA -

WIAAXARMEERERAT 163



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination
of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as an expense
in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EXRSHEBEX@
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EXRETBER(E)
Leases (Continued) HE &)
Group as a lessee (Continued) REEFERBATN ()

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value

assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
machinery and equipment (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets that are
considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue in the statement of
profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised
as revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EBEARGFTEE@E
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EXRETBER(E)

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost includes all
development expenditure, applicable borrowing costs
and other direct costs attributable to such properties.
Cost is determined by an apportionment of the total
costs of land and buildings attributable to unsold
properties. Net realisable value is determined by the
directors based on the prevailing market prices on an
individual property basis less costs to be incurred in
selling the property.

If an item of completed property held for sale becomes
owner-managed, it is transferred to property, plant and
equipment at the carrying amount.

For a transfer from an item of completed property held
for sale to investment property that will be carried at
fair value as its use has changed as evidenced by the
commencement of an operating lease, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date and
its previous carrying amount shall be recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

166 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

ERFEYE

ERGEMEERAEEATERFERE
ZBREEIR KABREMEERMAX
EREERARZEFNEEBEZEMBER
A REBARELMERGE LM EETE
BRAZ L VEERE - Al B3R FEREFRE
AMEZBRITMERBEEZNEREEZ

W—IEERAEMERETERE  AHEL
RERAEERENE  BELRE -

W—IRERGENEBERRAMREEHEE
MmARFENRE  HFERERAFEA
RZREME  ZVERBREEAZAF
EEEEMNEEEZERNEZERBERRP

e

RERAMEMEE
LR R E
ERMEENNTERRDBRERIZEH
KA IR ERAREMEERERRA
FEABRG;E-

Annual Report 2024



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EXRSHEBEX@
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EXRETBER(E)
Investments and other financial assets REREMEZHBEE (F)
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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2,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)
The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BERSHEBEM®
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EXRETBER(E)
Investments and other financial assets KREREMZHBEE (&)
(Continued)
Subsequent measurement Higqi =
The subsequent measurement of financial assets CREECHEBHERBESANT

depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt BHEKN AT ENEREE (BHT
instruments) A)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently BEERATENEREERHBERER
measured using the effective interest method and are FEEFE WA RETE BEEK
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised IEHER BT SORER - Im RBERE
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is ik FHER

derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other BAVEFAEMEZENRNES/RE
comprehensive income (debt instruments) E(EBKEIR)

For debt investments at fair value through other MEAFEFAEGMEZEARENEHRKE
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign s FAEWA - HNEEH RBEBEL
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or BORERRPER  WiREREHEK A
reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or AENSREEMRRMATREE  cHHA
loss and computed in the same manner as for financial $@ PRI RN E M R E W S PR o R
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair R REMEEKRETREROEFTAF
value changes are recognised in other comprehensive BEE2FERRERER -

income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value
change recognised in other comprehensive income is
recycled to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BRATESFAERNEREE
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are BEAVEFAERENEREERAFER
carried in the statement of financial position at fair MBMRRAKRIIE  MATEZESFENE
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the AP IR

statement of profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EXRSHEBEX@

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EXRETBER(E)
Investments and other financial assets REREMEZHBEE (F)
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued) Hig: 2 (#)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

This category includes equity investments which the
Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends
on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

—  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

—  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EAREFTHEHE®@
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EXRETBER(E)
Investments and other financial assets REREMEEHEE (#)

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what
extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.
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2,

24

“OEF A=t HIEFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are
exposures for which there has not been a significant

recognised in two stages. For credit
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are
provided for credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

losses expected over the remaining

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the Group applies the low
credit risk simplification. At each reporting date, the
Group evaluates whether the debt investments are
considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable
and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the
Group reassesses the external credit ratings of the debt
investments. In addition, the Group considers that there
has been a significant increase in credit risk when

contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BERSHEBEM®
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EXRETBER(E)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) THEERE (#)
General approach (Continued) —AE ()

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at
amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade and bills receivables and contract assets which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs.

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BERSHEBEM®
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EXRETBER(E)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) THEERE (#)
Simplified approach B1E)%

For trade and bills receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade and bills receivables that contain a significant
financing component and lease receivables, the Group
chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described
above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills
payables, a derivative financial instrument, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BEAREFHE®@
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EXRETBER(E)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the
higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment of
financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EBEARGFTEE@E
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EXRETBER(E)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair
value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of derivatives are taken directly to the statement of
profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash
flow hedges, which is recognised in other
comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or
loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EBEARGFTEE@E
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EXRETBER(E)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing each
product to its present location and conditions are
accounted for as follows:

Raw materials Purchase cost on the
weighted average

basis
Work in progress and Cost of direct materials,
finished goods direct labour and an

appropriate
proportion of
overheads

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE
2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred income tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or
loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EBEARGFTEE@E
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EXRETBER(E)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

(@) when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

(b) in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and a
joint venture, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future;

(c) taxable temporary differences arising on the initial
recognition of goodwill; and

(d) those related to the income taxes arising from tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted to
implement the Pillar Two model rules published
by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation
and Development.

The group recognised deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities separately in relation to its lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE
2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EBEARGFTEE@E

24 EREFEEE)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

(@) when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

(b) in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and a
joint venture, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EBEARGFTEE@E
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EXRETBER(E)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to deferred
income account and deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and released to profit or loss by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE
2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

24

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Government grants (Continued)

Where the Group receives government loans granted
with no or at a below-market rate of interest for the
construction of a qualifying asset, the initial carrying
amount of the government loans is determined using
the effective interest rate method, as further explained
in the accounting policy for “Financial liabilities” above.
The benefit of the government loans granted with no or
at a below-market rate of interest, which is the
difference between the initial carrying value of the loans
and the proceeds received, is treated as a government
grant and released to the statement of profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by
equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in IFRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BERSHEBEM®
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EXRETBER(E)
Revenue recognition (Continued) WA R ()

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Sale of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised at
the point in time when the purchasers obtained the
physical possession of the completed property and the
Group has a present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable.

Manufacturing services

Revenue from the provision of manufacturing services is
recognised over time, using an input method to
measure progress towards complete satisfaction of the
service, because the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced. The input method
recognises revenue based on the proportion of the
actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total
costs for satisfaction of the manufacturing services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EXRSHEBEX@
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EXRETBER(E)

Revenue recognition (Continued) WA FEGR (48)

Revenue from other sources g A

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customer).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE
2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EXRSHEBEX@
2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued) 24 EREFBEER @)
Employee benefits 1 S5 7
Pension schemes Bikzir

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate in
central pension schemes operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute certain percentages of their payroll costs
to the central pension schemes. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension schemes.

Other benefits

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to defined
contribution housing, medical and other benefit plans
organised by the PRC government. The PRC
government undertakes to assume the benefit
obligations of all existing and retired employees under
these plans. Contributions to these plans by the Group
are expensed as incurred. The Group has no further
obligations for benefits for their qualified employees
under these plans.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2,

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE
2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EBEARGFTEE@E

24 EREFEEE)

2.4 Material accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance, the Group determines the transaction date
for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated at exchange rates
prevailing on the reporting date. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at
the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in a foreign exchange
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

2,

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in a foreign exchange
translation reserve in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the parent company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation that does
not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of
associates or joint arrangements that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Exchange differences arising are

recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from a
variety of sources, including:

(@) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect
those differences;

(b)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts and (when
possible) by external evidence such as current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount
and timing of the cash flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in
production, or from a change in the market demand for the
product or service output of the asset, expected usage of the
asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the
use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the
asset is based on the experience of the Group with similar
assets that are used in a similar way. Additional depreciation
is made if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual
values of items of property, plant and equipment are different
from the previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at each financial year end date based on
changes in circumstances.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the unused tax losses can be
utilised, based on all available evidence. Recognition primarily
involves significant management’s judgements regarding the
future performance of a particular legal entity or tax group in
which the deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety
of other factors are also evaluated in considering whether
there is convincing evidence that it is probable that some
portions or all of the deferred tax assets will ultimately be
realised, such as the existence of taxable temporary
differences, tax planning strategies and the periods in which
estimated tax losses can be utilised. The carrying amounts of
the deferred tax assets and related financial models and
budgets are reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
to the extent that there is insufficient convincing evidence that
sufficient taxable profits will be available within the utilisation
periods to allow the utilisation of the carryforward of tax
losses, and that the asset balance will be reduced and
charged to profit or loss.

“MEFERE

EE ST AR A #®)

fEETN N EER R (8)
WE BERREHTREAEFHREGE

REEME  BERKBEBNAAFHRGRE
B AEEAZESERE  BREEEERES
HOE S| IR T Sk B - KRB EEMEMN
RFBHOTERRNE BENBHERR
wo EHYERR  EENEEREREEMNE
R ERREMBORS] - BERERFHNMG
ARAEERBEATHARHEENEUEENL
BEH - WYX BERREEB OGS A
FHE/AHEEAENEFEER - SRS
SMTE - AIERFHRBERSEYRFEFE
BIRRRIRE & (E T -

BEHEEE

AAEARBRARBAERERRECHAEE @ #
DMRIBFF A A S0RE R - AR AR RERTUE
AEAARSAVEBEAR - ELHAEEE
REZBFPRABMAEAETEBIV R HRAAH EEL
AREKRE  AEREEFEHERAE - E T RE
ET AR WEERTAE A IHIREE AL
DREMEERAEEERKAAESER - fim
FHEERVEREEZR - BERE KA N EHH
b EH IR R B R IR E EMIREE &
FRMHERALBEEENRERRRT  BEE
WENMEEERAETSAHANE RAERB G
MAIBAEERIBEE  BESHEEEHRE
Wt AHEzEH o

WIAAXARMEZERERAT 191



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

A write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the write-down involves management’s
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome or
expectation in future is different from the original estimate,
such differences will have an impact on the carrying amount
of inventories and the write-down/write-back of inventories in
the period in which such estimate has been changed. Further
details are given in note 18 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The Group applies the provision matrix method in the
assessment of the ECLs on trade receivables at each
reporting period. This method studies the probability of default
to arrive at the ECLs of trade receivables.

The provision matrix method is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the
matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with
forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic
conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased
number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of
customers’ actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in
note 19 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Revenue from the provision of manufacturing
services

Revenue in respect of manufacturing services is recognised
over time using input method to measure progress towards
complete satisfaction of the service. In addition, revenue and
profit recognition is dependent on estimating the proportion of
the actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs
for satisfaction of the manufacturing services. Based on the
Group’s recent experience and the nature of the activity
undertaken by the Group, the Group makes estimates of the
point at which it considers the work is sufficiently advanced
such that the costs to complete and revenue can be reliably
estimated. Based on the latest information available in
respect of the market environment, the Group prepares
budgets for contracts individually and the budget, which is
used in the Group’s financial reporting, is reviewed regularly.
Onerous contracts are provided for when identified. Material
adjustments to the budgeted costs may occur in future if
there is a significant change in the market environment.

PRC land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in Mainland
China. The provision for land appreciation tax is based on
management’s best estimates according to its understanding
of the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulations. The actual land appreciation tax liabilities are
subject to the determination by the tax authorities upon the
completion of the property development projects. The Group
has not finalised its land appreciation tax calculations and
payments with the tax authorities for certain property
development projects.

The final outcome could be different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, and any differences will impact the
land appreciation tax expenses and the related provision in
the period in which the differences are realised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EoWER

For management purposes, the Group is organised into E'JL BIEME AEEREEMLRBES D HZE

business units based on their products and services and has EBEMN WHEAMENREREESI - &5

two reportable and operating segments, as follows: W

(a) the steel pipes segment engages in the manufacture and (a) HEDHNSRERFEEEENE REH
sale of welded steel pipes and the provision of related HEARERE - &
manufacturing services; and

(b) the property development and investment segment (b) WERBEREENHVEEREFEMER
engages in development of properties for sale and MECMERSWAETYERE -
property investment for its rental income potential.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating ERERVERASEEEDIAESR  URE

segments separately for the purpose of making decisions BAOMRERBEFTEELRE - D EERRIIBER

about resource allocation and performance assessment. WEDIRER,EIBE T - MU AR

Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable BRELATEF, B 2T E - CHAERBATEF,

segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss BED—EUNREBOKRBRAER,EIE=E

before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured AR T E W EmET KRB R AT

consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before tax except that

head office and corporate expenses are excluded from such

measurement.

Segment assets exclude unallocated head office and DEEEIBERSEABRAREE (AZE

corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group BERSEREEER) -

basis.

Segment liabilites exclude unallocated head office and PHEETEEADELRRATEE(BZSE

corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a BEREEEEEE) -

group basis.

There were no intersegment sales during the years ended HE_Z-_MFER-_FE-_=F+-A=+—HL

31 December 2024 and 2023. FE BESIMEEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, E o IWER @
(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2024 BE_Z_ME+-_A=+—HLEE
Property
development
Steel pipes and investment Total
% )
Mg BRERE it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET R AR¥TR AR®BT R
Segment revenue (note 5) 2 EUA (HEES5)
Sales to external customers RN R HE 2,787,554 152,322 2,939,876
Segment results PEELE 225,487 (41,817) 183,670
Reconciliation: # -
Corporate and other unallocated income NEREMK D BRA 1
Corporate and other unallocated expenses AEREMARDEFAX (7,090)
Unallocated finance costs R i 7l & B AR (10,072)
Profit before tax B 754 A1 4 A 166,509
Segment assets PHEE 3,437,596 3,108,952 6,546,548
Reconciliation: #hk -
Elimination of intersegment receivables ?fﬁiﬁ 5 5 e M R (284,954)
Corporate and other unallocated assets ARAREMADEEE 244,345
Total assets BEE 6,505,939
Segment liabilities PHEE 3,418,095 1,990,356 5,408,451
Reconciliation: #hk
Elimination of intersegment payables Tfiiﬁ 5 B FE AT 5% (284,954)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities REIREMEKS @EQL 143,311
Total liabilities BEE 5,266,808
Other segment information Hitt o &R
Amounts included in the measure of segment T A7 B4 8 757
results or segment assets: BETEMLHE -
Subsidy income from the PRC government HH B IR 0 4 B LA 23,015 10 23,025
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME BELIRELZ
equipment &1 (363) — (363)
Written-off of property, plant and equipment MEHME - BE RR (4,794) — (4,794)
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value 51z &% o] &7 F(E = — —
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 W R FURE (12,662) — (12,662)
Reversal of impairment/(impairment) of other Hi R SORE R
receivables CRLE) 19,420 885 20,305
Written-off of other receivables 8 L B W 3R (91,240) — (91,240)
Written-off of other payables 11 55 E At FE A5 FRE 127,794 — 127,794
Compensation B e - (1,497) (1,497)
Reversal of/(provision of) claim arising from FARELEMRERR,
litigation (Be) (8,507) 750 (7,757)
Finance costs RER A (60,915) (39,233) (100,148)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (81,009) (8) (81,017)
Capital expenditure* EARRAT 62,333 — 62,333
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R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2023

LB IMER (@)

BE-_Z-_=F+-A=+—HLEFE

Property
development
and
Steel pipes investment Total
S
B R E Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARB T
Segment revenue (note 5) 2 EUWA (HFEES)
Sales to external customers RSNEE P I E 2,390,855 259,997 2,650,852
Segment results DEEE 109,883 (51,924) 57,959
Reconciliation: k-
Corporate and other unallocated income NEREMAR D BERA 97
Corporate and other unallocated expenses NEREMER D BRAX (6,571)
Unallocated finance costs AP EREE KA (12,406)
Profit before tax B 35 A5 7 39,079
Segment assets DTHEE 3,333,750 3,312,366 6,646,116
Reconciliation: Ef 3
Elimination of intersegment receivables H 85 7 BP IR U RIR (523,405)
Corporate and other unallocated assets NEREMBKRDEEEE 298,710
Total assets BMEE 6,421,421
Segment liabilities PHEE 3,659,616 2,069,013 5,728,629
Reconciliation: #Hik -
Elimination of intersegment payables 45 2 20 R FE 4 5008 (523,405)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities RAREMRAEEE 140,122
Total liabilities BaE 5,345,346
Other segment information Hitt o &R
Amounts included in the measure of segment G AZHEE L 7 HBEE
results or segment assets: FTER DR -
Subsidiary income from PRC government Hh B8 A 68 B A 6,647 16 6,663

Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME BERREZ
equipment Wz 1,085 16 1,101

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value HiFfF &= Al &3 FE (3,812) — (3,812)
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 RIERTORE (66,706) (9) (66,715)
Impairment of other receivables H o Y BR SR E (11,814) — (11,814)
Compensation B{E (8,192) (23,803) (31,995)
(Provision)/reversal of claim arising from FAEEZRE (BE)/

litigation ) (5,201) 665 (4,536)
Finance costs BE KA (100,066) 17,924 (82,142)
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH (41,524) (13) (41,537)
Capital expenditure* BARRZ* 96,260 — 96,260
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BABTOEABYE BERREREHESR

equipment and right-of-use assets. B
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R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BEITER @E
(Continued)
Information about steel pipe products and services HEERRBRERYEHEER
and sales of property
The revenue from the major products and services and sales FEEMMREEDEHSEOWASTOT
of property is analysed as follows:
2024 2023
—E-mF =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBEF T
Manufacture and sale of steel pipes: BLERHEHE -
LSAW steel pipes BHH#RBIESE 2,195,407 1,495,494
SSAW steel pipes Zhe B lEE 366,895 612,023
ERW steel pipes BEEE 2,625 24,630
Steel pipe manufacturing services: i E R E R
LSAW steel pipes BB REE 46,932 158,451
SSAW steel pipes 2R R E 62,753 25,050
Others* Hhx 112,942 75,207
2,787,554 2,390,855
Sale of properties HEWE 152,322 259,997
2,939,876 2,650,852
* Others mainly included the manufacture and sales of steel * Hih =2 0REEREEMREF - BEGM &

BER - AR BB REMMAR -

fittings, screw-thread steels and scrap materials, and the
trading of equipment and steel plates.
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R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.
(Continued)
Geographical information
(@) The revenue information based on the locations of the

customers is as follows:

LB IMER (@)

& & ¥

(@) WABHEEFMEMRESNAT

2024 2023
—E-OE =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBTT

Sales to external customers: RN EFHE
Mainland China P E R 721,166 1,280,359
Africa FEM 1,569,378 411,220
Europe BUOM 5,951 1,269
Middle East PR 107,283 534,549
Other Asian countries S EEN 326,624 319,666
South America B EM 166,468 103,789
North America Jb =M 43,006 —
2,939,876 2,650,852

(b)  Over 90% of the Group’s non-current assets and capital
expenditure are located in Mainland China.

Information about major customers

Revenue of approximately RMB1,376,554,000 (2023:
RMB420,456,000) was derived from sales by the steel pipe
segment to a single customer, including sales to a group of
entities which are known to be under common control with
that customer.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA Hitlk A R K=

WA EFAEEERMAMIEHRREHNERE
B MERIBER (EER]) REBHEER -

Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods sold and
services rendered, net of value-added tax (“VAT”) and other
sales taxes, during the year.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains REENRA - EMRARKESTOT -
is as follows:

2024 2023
ZEDNF —E=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B E AR®T T ARBTT

Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHNZBA
Manufacture and sale of seam welded steel pipes $Li& K 846 A #1250
and the provision of related manufacturing B REHARRE
services AR 7% 2,787,554 2,390,855
Sale of properties e 151,362 259,511
2,938,916 2,650,366
Revenue from lease contracts REHEEEHZWA
Rental income HEBA 960 486
2,939,876 2,650,852
Other income and gains H e A & Wz
Bank interest income RITH EHA 175 180
Written-off of other payables Hib 88 L ) JE < BR SR (a) 127,794 —
Subsidy income from the PRC government HR B R AT 60 47 B A (b) 23,025 6,663
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HE&E¥E « FiE K& E
Wz — 1,101
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries 5T 88 B B A Bl 2 W e — 17
Reversal of impairment of other receivables, net  H{th E U ER FURE B [@
FEE 20 20,305 —
Others Eih 26,572 8,018
197,871 15,979
Notes: MeE -
(@) It represents an interest payable in prior years was written-off (a) EERBEFEMNENFEERFEANME - RIE

HEEMEDERER  ZERADREER @
AEEYEEETREBHEENS -

during the year. According to the PRC lawyer’s legal opinion,
the lender had lost the statute of limitations and the Group has
no liability and obligation to repay interest.

(b)  The subsidy income represents subsidies granted by the local (b)  FBRWA T BB BR TEBHIME - ¥l
finance bureaus to PCKSP, Pearl Steel Investment, Kaidi, BE Sl mRANEE - BEBERMHE -
Nanjing Rongyu Group, LYG Zhugang Coating, GZSTG, LYG BMHKMESRE EEBAMEMHREBRKRINE
Petrol-Fittings and PCKSP (Zhuhai) as awards for their (K8 Wmat  EREERBRRIEAERINT
products and PCKSP (Lianyungang) as awards for investment. Mg GEES) IRERE - 2SR ERER
There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to B E R B RS AFIE -
such subsidies.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA~ Hitlr A R WK ()
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHZRWA
(i) Disaggregated revenue information () DEHBEAEZH

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE-_Z_NM&E+-A=+—HLEE

Property
development
and
Steel pipes investment Total
LY/
wmE BB ERIRE Mt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR TR AR% T
Sale of goods/properties HERM,/ ME 2,677,869 151,362 2,829,231
Rendering of services RHRE 109,685 — 109,685
Total revenue from contracts with KEBP AL ZBIWA
customers 2,787,554 151,362 2,938,916
Geographical markets it & 45
Mainland China A 568,844 151,362 720,206
Africa FEM 1,569,378 = 1,569,378
Europe &M 5,951 — 5,951
Middle East PR 107,283 = 107,283
Other Asian countries HabmMER 326,624 — 326,624
South America EEF) 166,468 = 166,468
North America b =M 43,006 — 43,006
Total revenue from contracts with KEEPELD RN
customers 2,787,554 151,362 2,938,916
Timing of revenue recognition WA EZGE
Goods/properties transferred at a A/ MERE R
point in time ZheE s 2,677,869 151,362 2,829,231
Services transferred over time BE 5 1 RS 109,685 — 109,685
Total revenue from contracts with KEBP AL ZBIWA
customers 2,787,554 151,362 2,938,916
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% #R R Y &
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5, WA HW AR (@)
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) REEFEHNZWA (H)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (i) DERAEZHR (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-ZE-=f+-A=+—HLEE
Property
development
and
Steel pipes investment Total
/e
EiTR=y 8 BN F #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
Sale of goods/properties HER M/ 2,207,354 259,511 2,466,865
Rendering of services RHRE 183,501 — 183,501
Total revenue from contracts with KEBP AL ZBIWA
customers 2,390,855 259,511 2,650,366
Geographical markets it & 45
Mainland China A 1,020,362 259,511 1,279,873
Africa FEM 411,220 — 411,220
Europe &M 1,269 — 1,269
Middle East hER 534,549 — 534,549
Other Asian countries HAth G5 MBI R 319,666 — 319,666
South America EEJ) 103,789 — 103,789
Total revenue from contracts with REBP &R ZBWA
customers 2,390,855 259,511 2,650,366
Timing of revenue recognition WA TERRRE
Goods/properties transferred at a R R B
point in time ZheEis 2,207,354 259,511 2,466,865
Services transferred over time W& s 8 5 AR 75 183,501 — 183,501
Total revenue from contracts with RERFPALHZBIA
customers 2,390,855 259,511 2,650,366

-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in the current periods:

Revenue recognised that was included in contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting
period:

Manufacture and sale of seam welded steel pipes
and the provision of related manufacturing

5. WA~ HMW AR @)

REEFEHNZWA (H)

(i) DEUAEHR (&)
TRINTAAREHEERBRAFRGTAR
WEHVEHBERRNEBHEDEK
BHEARR R

2024 2023
—B-mE ST o=fF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARETT

FARBEHMAEN
BEZEEARA:

SUERHE A RN
B RIRHAMRE

services AR 7% 147,383 106,677
Sale of properties YIS 151,362 259,512
298,745 366,189

(ii) Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations
is summarised below:

Sale of steel pipes

For sale of steel pipes, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the
goods have been shipped to the customer’'s specific
location (delivery). Transportation and handling activities
that occur before customer obtain control are
considered as fulfilment activities. Following the
delivery, the customer has full discretion over the
manner of distribution and price to sell the goods, has
the primary responsibility when on selling the goods and
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to
the goods. Payment is generally due 30 days to 90
days from the invoice date, except for new customers,
where payment in advance is normally required.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA~ HMW AR @)
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) REEFEFEHZWA (&)
(ii) Performance obligations (Continued) (i) BHEME (&)

Sale of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied upon the
physical possession of the completed property is
obtained by the purchasers.

Manufacturing services

The Group provides manufacturing services to
customers. Such services are recognised as a
performance obligation satisfied over time as the Group
creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced. Revenue
is recognised for these manufacturing services based
on the stage of completion of the contract using input
method. Payment is generally due within 50 days from
the date of delivery or customer acceptance of the
product processed.

The Group generally offers one-year warranties for its
product. The Group recognised retention money as
contract assets as the Group’s entitlement to the
consideration was conditional on satisfactory completion
of the warranty period. The retention money will be
recognised as trade receivables at the end of warranty
period.

The Group does not recognise the warranty service as
a separate performance obligation in a single contract
as the warranty service is assurance type which based
on management’s best estimate on the Group’s
liabilities under the standard warranty terms granted
with reference to the prior experience for the defective
products, and the Group’s obligation to repair or
replace faulty products under the warranty terms is
recognised as a provision, if any.

“MEFERE

Y FEHE
BHOBETRESTESCZIMENEY
P A RS K -

B R
AEBERFFIRHBERE - EAEEA]
EREARFPRAIESIEFEERE
MEER  ZEREHERABEZRME
BMEKNBHET %SEERBHUK
ATHIRIEE KR T2k B BR BR R 88 A A TERR o
NRBEAEINIEFESNIERZ
H#508 A e

AEBBRFREERRHR—FER K&
ERRECHEIRANEE RASEHE
BRRENENTYAERBOERTHK S
Gt - REEERERMERFER/E
ZIEWIRIR

AEBEYELERRBERSE-—GOT
B EOEE  HERREERERE
EERNEEERBEELGRGN  XE2
ZRERMNER  BAKBMAERE
MR ER  ARERBEREREEBR
EMmBERBERNEENERSEE (0
B) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA~ Hitlr A R WK ()
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) REEFEFEHZWA (&)
(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (iii) PHEEZEEFSXINE T BAYEEHN
performance obligation for contracts with XZE#
customers
Since most of the sales contracts of the Group are for HRAEEHRLHHEEES LR A —
periods of one year or less. The transaction price FRER TEBBEIEEZSRKETE
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. R 5B -
6. OTHER EXPENSES 6. HMEH
2024 2023
—ENE T4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B =E AR¥TT ARETT

Compensation EEE 1,497 31,995
Provision of claim arising from litigations FAREENREEE 27 7,757 4,536
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value iR 1E & = A £ 18 F (& — 3,812
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &M - BE M &E
Z B8 363 —
Written-off of property, plant and equipment Wi - BE REE 4,794 —
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 RWERFURE 19 12,662 66,715
Impairment of other receivables H e WK IB R E 20 = 11,814
Written-off of other receivables T 85 EL 4th B W Bk B 91,240 —
Others HAh 5,572 69,027
123,885 187,899
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BRI EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE
7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBANEF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AN @ /B B AT R DA R (BEA) THI &8
(crediting): BER
2024 2023
—E_ME —E-=4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR®T R ARBTT
Employee benefit expenses EEBAAX (BEES
(including directors’ remuneration): ) -
Fees, wages and salaries we - ITELRFTS 123,482 151,428
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRIE FIEH 23 5,453 5,539
128,935 156,967
Cost of inventories sold BEFEKA 2,139,845 1,758,440
Cost of services provided MR K A 153,135 118,990
Cost of properties sold BEMERAK 129,482 219,212
Auditor’'s remuneration 2% SR B & 1,395 1,332
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M WEREENE 13 65,142 25,881
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREEENE 15 15,875 15,656
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and LEWZE - BREREE
equipment Z e (W) 363 (1,101)
Written-off of property, plant and equipment W - BE R&E 4,794 —
Written-down of inventories to net realisable value 17 & Z= A &8 F (& = 3,812
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 R FRE 19 12,662 66,715
Reversal of impairment/(impairment) of Hh fE W R IE RLE
other receivables BmEORE) 20 (20,305) 11,814
Written-off of other receivables i 85 B b B U RIR 91,240 —
Written-off of other payables i 5 H At B A< 3RIE (127,794) —
Fair value loss on investment properties WEYE AN FEEBE 14 5,000 2,000
Research and development costs Tiff 25 Ak A 126,996 107,636
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MEMRAK
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEXADITHT ¢
2024 2023
ZECDNF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREEF T
Interest on bank and other borrowings (including 1T M EMEEF S
bonds and notes) (BEEHFLRER) 109,796 93,818
Interest on discounted bills BEMBERENE 345 678
Interest on lease liabilities HEABENE 79 52

110,220 94,548
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Details of directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange, section 383(1)(a),(b),(c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

9. EEHM

FR EEFMFBREBIAES LTR

D

Bl - ZB R EMUEMEE383(1)(a) ~ (b) * (c) K ()i
Al (BBEEEFZEER) RAIFE2WENT

2024 2023

—E-mEF —E=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AREET T

Fees we 603 594

Other emoluments: Hi 4 -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBREY

vl 1,620 1,943

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RURIE T B3R 45 76

1,665 2,019

2,268 2,613

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

(@) BIAFBITES

RER ENBIFNATEST 2R

2024 2023
—ENEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR¥ETTT
Mr Chen Ping PR oA 201 198
Mr Au Yeung Kwong Wah B 5 5 5T A 201 198
Mr Tian Xiao Ren (resigned on 1 September 2023) HEZFLTE(RZTZ=
FNA—HET) = 132
Mr Zhan Jian Zhou (appointed on 1 September 2023) ZEREHEA (R-T—=
FAR—BEZE) 201 66
603 594

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2023: Nil).
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B 7% #R R Y &
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE
9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 9. EEHFHMm@
(b) Executive directors (b) HITES
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
g EZUR RIREF
we BEWEF sHEIHtE Ed o
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥BTR AR®T T AR¥TR
Year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_—-ZT_[94F
+=—A=+-—8
LEE
Executive directors: WITES
Mr Chen Chang RS %4 — 1,036 — 1,036
Ms Chen Zhao Nian BRIk Zr & — 584 45 629
= 1,620 45 1,665
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions ~ remuneration
e EMR RIRAEH
we BEmEN sTElH R Frih s st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Year ended 31 December 2023 &HE T - =4
+-B=+—8
IEFE
Executive directors: WMITESE
Mr Chen Chang R & A& — 1,028 — 1,028
Mr Chen Guo Xiong (resigned  [R Bl 5t 4 (B
on 5 December 2023) —E-=F
+=-AHEAB
BHE) — 253 30 283
Ms Chen Zhao Nian BRI 2+ — 662 46 708
— 1,943 76 2,019
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 9. EEHFHMm@
(b) Executive directors (Continued) (b) BITEE ()
There was no arrangement under which a director RERIT BEMESRENXRBREEM
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the R HE
year.
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were FHHTEEFOH T ESPRBEEHNER
mainly for their services in connection with the ARBIRAEEEB A RS o LatsE
management of the affairs of the Company and the UFHTEFOMEETESRBEERE
Group. The independent non-executive directors’ NEIBEFMREORE
emoluments shown above were mainly for their services
as directors of the Company.
10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. AEBE¥HER
The five highest paid employees during the year included one AEEhEGaHEERE R (ZE_=F:
director (2023: one director), details of whose remuneration —R)EF BEFHFBEENR LXMFE - F
are set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for NS THE (ZZ =4 :N&)&=5MMEE GE
the year of the remaining four (2023: four) highest paid ARBIEEFRETEZTHAS)NHFHFBEEHI W
employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of I
the Company are as follows:
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBEF T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEREYEF 3,874 3,921
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRAE T T B3R 33 —
3,907 3,921
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 £ %= —

10.

1.

ZHWHE+TZA=Z+—HIEFE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration which fell within the
following band is as follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

10.

Z£%1,000,0007% 7T
1,000,001E7T% 1,500,000 7T -
1,500,001 7T % 2,000,000 7T

TEBEHER ®
TIFHBENIFEEMIFER
BEAZLT

TBRAB&=H

Number of employees

BEAR
2024 2023
—F-@mF —F_=F
3
1 J—

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to
the directors or any of the five highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

Corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Company, which was incorporated in the Cayman

Islands, is not subject to CIT.

Lessonstart and Lucknow, which were incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, are not subject to CIT. Crown Central,
CKSPG and View Sharp International Limited, which were
incorporated in Hong Kong, were subject to profits tax at the
rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of the
Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The first HK$2,000,000 (2023:
HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of this subsidiary are
taxed at 8.25% (2023: 8.25%) and the remaining assessable
profits are taxed at 16.5% (2023: 16.5%).
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 £ %= —

1.

ZHWHE+TZA=Z+—HIEFE
INCOME TAX (Continued)

Corporate income tax (“CIT”) (Continued)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profits derived from or earned in
Hong Kong during the year.

PCKSP (Zhuhai), as a High and New Technology Enterprise
(“HNTE”) qualified on 30 September 2015 and with the
qualification renewed in 2021 and 2024, is entitled to a
reduced tax rate of 15% January 2021 to
31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2026 as a HNTE
qualified on 5 December 2019 and with the qualification

from 1
respectively. PCKSP (Lianyungang),
renewed in 2023, is entitled to a reduced tax rate of 15%

from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025.

According to the PRC corporate income tax law and its
in 2019 and
issued in 2023, entities that qualified as Small and Micro

relevant regulations issued renewed policy
Enterprises are entitled to a preferential income tax rate of
5% for taxable income less than RMB3,000,000 (2023: 5%
for taxable income less than RMB3,000,000). During the year
ended 31 December 2024, 11 (2023: 13) subsidiaries of the
Group are qualified as small and low profit enterprise and
enjoyed a preferential tax rate of 5% (2023: 5%), whereas
applicable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 £ %= —

1.

ZHWHE+TZA=Z+—HIEFE
INCOME TAX (Continued)

Corporate income tax (“CIT”) (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC CIT Law and the respective regulations,
except for the above-mentioned preferential tax treatments,
the companies of the Group which operate in Mainland China
were subject to CIT at a rate of 25% on their respective
taxable income for the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023.

Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China have been
calculated at the prevailing tax rates, based on existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT effective from 1 January 1994 and the
Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT effective from 27 January 1995, all
income from the sale or transfer of state-owned land use
rights and buildings in Mainland China (being the proceeds
from the sale of properties less deductible expenditures
including borrowing costs and property development
expenditures) is subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% of the appreciation of land value with an
exemption provided for property sales of ordinary residential
properties if their appreciation values do not exceed 20% of
the sum of the total deductible items.

The Group estimated and made provision for LAT according
to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the
determination by the tax authorities upon completion of the
property development projects and the LAT determined by the
tax authorities might be different from the basis on which the
provision for LAT is calculated.
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B 7% #R R Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX (Continued) 11. S @)
Long-term tax payable REEMBIE

Certain subsidiaries of the Company relocate their factories
and offices during the year ended 31 December 2020. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, the tax authority in the
PRC agreed their CIT and LAT payables can be paid within 5
years or upon completion of the relocations, whichever is
earlier. In the opinion of the directors, the relocations will be
completed within 1 year from the reporting date. Therefore,
the relevant tax payables amounted to approximately RMBNil
(2023: RMBA486,614,000) as at 31 December 2024 are
classified as non-current liabilities.

The major components of the income tax (credit)/expense for
the year are as follows:

RAABNETHEBRARCRBE_TE-_TF+=
A=+ HLEFEARBEIBENRLAE - RE
BT F+-A=+—HALFER " HEMK
BHERZEENNCERSH kI tIgER A
EFRFANEMBRRE (UREERE) SN &
ERE REBERSABHBT —FARTA -
e RZFZNFEFZA=+—HB B@EESH
BHNRARBZET(ZZEZ=ZF: ARK
486,614,0007T) - WHIEAIEREDEE -

FAMGH(EL)  EROTEEARBAWT

2024 2023
—E-mEF —EZ=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBEF T
Current — Mainland China BNEf — R EI N

PRC CIT charge for the year FRRETCERSH I 13,504 9,085

PRC CIT overprovision in prior years WMAFEPBEDEMSH
R (52,018) (51,050)
PRC LAT oD 4 (A R 4,541 7,785
Deferred tax (note 28) EFERIE (P 7128) (12,189) (110,519)
Total income tax credit for the year FAFRGHELAE (46,162) (144,699)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX (Continued) 11. S @)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before BARFTERTAENOTIEER (REARE R
tax at the statutory tax rates for the countries in which the HABOMBRAMENBERAEEREAE
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to HAEEERERBEFENRIEERANEERLE
the tax expense at the Group’s effective tax rates, and a AR EEERTENYRAT :

reconciliation of the applicable rates to the effective tax rates,
are as follows:

2024 2023
—E-NF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Profit before tax B A5 B )t ) 166,509 39,079
Tax at the statutory tax rates BEEMEFTENTIA 40,060 10,828
Tax effect of: MG
Lower tax rate enacted by local authority E R A A 2 B
e (12,578) (6,032)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR A 68,004 20,427
Income not subject to tax BERBBA (138,027) (40,169)
Utilisation of tax loss not recognised in prior years BABTFERER
B 750 18 5 18 (59,012) (185,214)
Provision for LAT o b 1B (E T R 4,541 7,785
Tax loss not recognised in the current year NFERERTIE
18 50,850 47,676
Tax credit at the Group’s effective tax rate BRAEEERMEGE
ZIEE R (46,162) (144,699)

—ECMEEERE WImmAAREEERERAE 213



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. XRBEEARLERER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on BRERBINTIBRBEARTEE ABEER T
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company REANBEITT MR INETH201,011,142,000 %
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of (ZEZ=4 :1,011,142,000%) 5T & -
1,011,142,000 (2023: 1,011,142,000) in issue during the year.
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue AEBTERBE_Z-_NFR-T_=F+=
during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. A=+—BLFEHETECHETLERK -
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. MI% - BMERRE
Office and
Plant and other Motor Construction
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BAER
BT HBEREE  EtRE RE  EEIR FoH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTR ARETR AR%TR AR%TR AR%T:n
As at 31 December 2024 R-ZE_-_E
+=A=+—-~
At 1 January 2024 RZE-—MF—A—H
Cost (BN 749,854 2,036,741 20,492 28,348 95,764 2,931,199
Accumulated depreciation and impairment R ITERRE (187,230)  (864,865) (17,57) (22,106) —  (1,001,772)
Net carrying amount IREFE 562,624 1,171,876 2,921 6,242 95,764 1,839,427
At 1 January 2024, net of accumulated R-ZE-_WFE—F—H
depreciation and impairment MR RFITE RRE 562,624 1,171,876 2,921 6,242 95,764 1,839,427
Additions nE — 7,755 940 2,244 51,394 62,333
Disposals HE - - - - (1,683) (1,683)
Depreciation provided during the year FRWERE (26,519) (35,141) (348) (3,134) - (65,142)
Transfers from construction in progress HEaERETIRR - 10,607 - - (10,607) -
Write-off i 5 - (1,487) - ) (3,299) (4,794)
At 31 December 2024, net of accumulated RZTZMF
depreciation and impairment +=ZA=+—8"
H& 2 ERRE 536,105 1,153,610 3,513 5,344 131,569 1,830,141
At 31 December 2024 R-ZZmE
+=-A=+—8H
Cost (BN 749,854 2,000,810 21,321 30,467 131,569 2,934,021
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2R ERRE (213,749)  (847,200) (17,808) (25,123) —  (1,103,880)
Net carrying amount BREFE 536,105 1,153,610 3,513 5,344 131,569 1,830,141
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ BERKXE@E

(Continued)

Office and
Plant and other Motor  Construction
Buildings machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BOER
BT HBERES itk "E EEIR it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETn ARETR AR%ETn
As at 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F
+-A=+—H”
At 1 January 2023 RZBE-_=F—H—H
Cost (BN 674,320 2,016,014 20,076 26,570 99236 2,836,216
Accumulated depreciation and impairment REtITERRE (174,088)  (853,447) (17,482) (21,205) —  (1,066,222)
Net carrying amount REFE 500,232 1,162,567 2,594 5,365 99,236 1,769,994
At 1 January 2023, net of accumulated RZTE_=F—H—A8"
depreciation and impairment kR REHTE KRE 500,232 1,162,567 2,594 5,365 99,236 1,769,994
Additions NE — 4,426 540 1,780 89,514 96,260
Disposals & — (46) (1) — (887) (944)
Depreciation provided during the year FNTERE (13,142) (11,636) (200) (903) - (25,881)
Transfers from construction in progress EEATEEIR 75,534 16,565 — — (92,099) —
Write-off LS - - () — — ()
At 31 December 2023, net of accumulated RIEBE_=%F
depreciation and impairment +=—A=+—8"
& 2FHERRE 562,624 1,171,876 2,921 6,242 95,764 1,839,427
At 31 December 2023 R-T =4
+=-A=+—H
Cost AR 749,854 2,036,741 20,492 28,348 95,764 2,931,199
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2R ERRE (187,230)  (864,865) (17,571) (22,106) — (1,091,772
Net carrying amount BREFE 562,624 1,171,876 2,921 6,242 95764 1,839,427
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 £ %= —

13.

ZHWHE+TZA=Z+—HIEFE
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Details of the Group’s property, plant and equipment pledged
to secure the Group’s bank loans and other borrowings are
set out in note 26.

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain buildings of the
Group located in Lianyungang with a total net carrying
amount of approximately RMB13,079,000 (2023:
RMB13,079,000) as at 31 December 2024 have not yet been
issued by the relevant PRC authorities. As at the end of the
reporting period, the directors of the Company were still in the
process of obtaining these certificates.

Impairment testing of CGU

When any indicators of impairment are identified, property,
plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment based on
each CGU. The CGU is an individual plant or operating
entity. The carrying values of these individual plants or
entities were compared to the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs, which were based predominantly on value in use.
Value in use calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a 5-year period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated using the same cash flow projections
of the fifth year.
impairment tests include the expected product price, demand

Other key assumptions applied in the

for the products, product cost, finance costs and other related
expenses, with the consideration of the possible significant
decrease in finance costs following the measures adopted by
management.
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R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

13.

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W% BERRE @
(Continued)
Impairment testing of CGU (Continued) ReEEBENZRENR (&)
Management determined that these key assumptions were ERERAZTHEREDNATRREEESM
based on past performance and their expectations on market HER AR RBEKE - I AEERBEHR
development. Further, the Group adopts a pre-tax rate of H%*Ef'aiﬁiFi 8 BB Z%ﬁi’ﬁfﬂ%w%(—
15% (2023: 15%) that reflects specific risks related to CGUs Z=F 15%) ERERIREK o FIlfRERTIBRS
as the discount rate. The assumptions above are used in W%M“*Wﬂfﬁ@?EEEMZ—JLBZ@@%E
analysing the recoverable amounts of CGUs within the
operating segments.
As a result of the impairment assessment, no impairment loss BBERET A ER BE T _NER-_F=
had been recognised against the property, plant and ZFEF+Z A=+ —HLFE  WERREED I
equipment in the steel pipes segment for the years ended ZWME BB RRERERS -
31 December 2024 and 2023.
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REYWH
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBEF T
Commercial properties in Mainland China, the PRC  FA R B A3 2 i A ) 3
Carrying amount as at 1 January R—RA—BZEHEE 360,000 362,000
Net loss from fair value adjustments NEERAEZFEHIE (5,000) (2,000)
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+ZA=+—BZkHE 355,000 360,000

The Group’s investment properties consist of commercial
properties in Mainland China, which are held under medium
term leases. The directors of the Company have determined
that the investment properties are commercial assets, based
on the nature, characteristics and risks of the properties.
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R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Based on the valuation by RHL Appraisal Limited, an

independent professional qualified valuer, as at 31 December
2024, the fair value of investment properties of the Group,
which were mainly shops of Golden Dragon City Fortune
Plaza (&8 & &%) (‘GDC”) Phase | shops, was
RMB355,000,000 (2023: RMB360,000,000). The Group’s
property manager and the chief financial officer decided, upon
approval from the audit committee of the Company, to
appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the
external valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection
criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained. The
Group’s property manager and the chief financial officer have
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results twice a year when the valuation is performed
for interim and annual financial reporting.

14.

REWE @)
$ETF§*‘%4$¥/\éf*%ﬁﬁﬁﬂii%ﬂﬁﬁ{ﬁ@?ﬂEBE

REIZMEE R-Z-_MF+-A=+—B K«
SEMRENE DBV ERS (28R
F-—HERONIEEH EQAFERARY
355,000,0007T (ZZ==4 : AK¥360,000,000
TT) » REBRYRKE RIS EEIREINEME
Az A& RESARRERZZBEEHAER &
TEABAKEME I BEE - BERTFERRE
MSME - BE BUUERESHEFSERENRE-
AEENMELENYBAESFRIARFE
M mELTHER  BEEMREERR LG
BRERETRRE W -

Maturity analysis of lease payments from REMEHRESRNBHER DN
investment properties

2024 2023
—E-_mF B =4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBEF T
Within one year —FNR 960 960
In the second year F_F 800 960
In the third year F=F = 800
Total wEt 1,760 2,720

Rental income received from investment properties for the
year ended 31 December 2024 was approximately
RMB960,000 (2023: RMB486,000) which was included in
revenue (note 5). There were no direct operating expenses
(including repairs and maintenance) included in cost of sales
for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. Profit
arising from investment properties carried at fair value for the
year ended 31 December 2024 was approximately
RMB960,000 (2023: RMB486,000).

The Group has no restrictions on the realisability of its
investment properties and no contractual obligations to
purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for
repairs, maintenance and enhancements.
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R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

DFEER

14. REWE @)

TRHUAAEERANE L AT HBER -

Fair value measurement using

ERBAEFEZATE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs input
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RIERBT 5 EXAEE BEAFUERE
FR R B A% WAE WAE
(B—4) (B=#) (B=#) -
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR AR¥T T
As at 31 December 2024 N-ZE_WE
+=-A=+—H
Recurring fair value LEERNFEFE
measurement for:
Commercial property EhERZES = — 355,000 355,000
Fair value measurement using
ERHABTE2 R TE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs input
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
R BT 5 BRAHER FEARIAEBE
PR B wAE BWAE
(=) (F=4) (B=%) #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETTT AREETTT ARBTT
As at 31 December 2023 RZEZ=%F
+-A=+—H
Recurring fair value LEM QT ERE
measurement for:
Commercial property [EREERZES — — 360,000 360,000

RERN BE—REF_FzBEIEAFEFEZ
HE TEABF-ABARBH(ZT_=F:
&) -

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2023: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. BEYE (@)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) ATEER (E)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

AFEBRE=RAZ AFET BHE

2024 2023

—B-mE —Eo=%

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBTT

Carrying amount as at 1 January W—A—BZEmE 360,000 362,000
Net loss from fair value adjustments ANFERAEZFER (5,000) (2,000)
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+ZA=+—HBZEHEE 355,000 360,000

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the
key input to the valuation of investment properties:

Valuation technique

fhER M

Significant unobservable input

EXRTABERBAE

Commercial Direct comparison method Market unit sale rate
properties (RMB/sq.m.)
Eliik/ES HELEUE miHEAERE
(AR¥/BFFHXK)

The valuations of investment properties were arrived at using
the direct comparison method with reference to the
comparable sale prices in the relevant locality, adjusted for a
premium or discount specific to the quality of the Group’s
properties compared to recent sales of comparable
transactions. A higher discount for lower quality properties will

result in a lower fair value measurement.
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HEREMEGEMEANBERMTREEZERGAE
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Range or weighted average

EE R ME T
2024 2023
GDV GDV
Phase | Phase |
Shops Shops
—E-_ME —E-=4F
GDV GDV
E—HEH E—HEH

21,511-22,912

21,511-22,912

20,170-24,619

20,170-24,619

BREMENHEDRAERLBOEAL 2 RE @i
EALLERHEEERMER  BECRAAEEME
HEZRERERTE(RANATEREERS
HWEMB)ELRE - RIEERMEZ RS ITES
BHREZAFEFEHE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE

15. LEASES 15. &
The Group as a lessee AEBERAEABA
The Group has lease contracts for office premises used in its REEFAREEBEENNAEMENEES
operations. Leases of a factory and office premises generally B TRAMMPAIGFHHEERTEF2FNHEE -
have a lease term of 2 years. Generally, the Group is —RmE  AEETE WZKEIM\:'W?}’“ S
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets HEEE - I BREAEE — R A
outside the Group. In addition, lump sum payments were EAWEBHE L *E,HHZ%SOE MRS
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with ARG - ST FRE N EMFRIE o

lease periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be
made under the terms of these land leases.

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) RAREE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets FRNAEEFEREEENREERERH
and the movements during the year are as follows: T -
Leasehold land Buildings Total
HE L - L
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ETTT ARETT ARBTT

At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-_=F—H—H 645,318 695 646,013
Lease modification HEEE — 937 937
Depreciation charge TERS (15,066) (590) (15,656)
Exchange realignment ME W R 539 (3) 536
At 31 December 2023 and RZB-=%+-HA=+—H

1 January 2024 ;=T FE—H—H 630,791 1,039 631,830
Transferred to assets held for BEZFIEHE X EE

sale (28,966) — (28,966)
Depreciation charge EMX (15,352) (523) (15,875)
Exchange realignment HE 5, 38 2 2,103 15 2,118
At 31 December 2024 RZZEZNFE+=—A=+—H 588,576 531 589,107
Note: B 5
As at 31 December 2024, certain of the Group’s leasehold R-IE-_WNFE+-_A=+—8 A£EETEA
land with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately BIEH A NREA464,673,0000T (T =-=4F: A
RMB464,673,000 (2023: RMB481,645,000) were pledged to R#481,645,00070) 2 E LHE AERKE - A
secure certain bank loans granted to the Group (note 26). PSR TAEE & TRITER (FHFE26) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE

15. LEASES (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities

15. #HE @)
REBEAEAREA (#E)

(b)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings) and the

movements during the year are as follows:

HEERE
FR - HERENKREE GIAFRRITR
HEERT) REFHWT

2024 2023

—E_ME B4

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR AREEF T

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 995 722

Accretion of interest recognised during the year FRHERHET TS 79 52

Payments (BN (545) (713)

Lease modification MEEET — 937

Exchange realignment PE 3 & 15 (3)

Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—BZKHEE 544 995
Analysed into: BUATH A

Current portion BVHEREB 516 463

Non-current portion FEBNERED 7 28 532

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in

note 39 to the financial statements.

HE & &2 BB R DR B ISR I &
394K EE -

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in (c) BHEEREZBRERZFELT .
relation to leases are as follows:

2024 2023
—E-mF —EZ=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBTT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNR 79 52
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEENERS 15,875 15,656
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIETER 2 LT 15,954 15,708
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

16. LONG TERM PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS 16. RPFESREREZRS
2024 2023
—E-NE —ET =4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETT

Prepayments for property, plant and equipment W BE k&2 BN HIE 43,351 58,772

Deposits paid BffiEe 2,778 2,778
46,129 61,550

17. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 17. BREEYR

The Group’s completed properties held for sale are located in REBMEREEMEANNFREANM - FTE%

Mainland China. All completed properties held for sale are RiEEYEHER AL IR FTEREEZS o

stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. No write- BRI EHENE B MENTERFESNE

down of completed properties held for sale has been made as BREE - M EMRZEmE -

the net realisable value of the properties was higher than
their carrying amount.

As at 31 December 2024, certain of the Group’s completed RZZE-_WNF+_A=1+—H AEEETER
properties held for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of BELH A AKRE1,001,224,0000 (—Z T - =4 :
approximately RMB1,001,224,000 (2023: RMB1,002,989,000) AR #1,002,989,0007T) 2 EMAFEMED AE
were pledged to secure certain bank loans granted to the EHR LIRBETAEBRZ2EFTRITER
Group (note 26). (fg7E26) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE
18. INVENTORIES 18. FE&
2024 2023
—EoNE —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBTT
Raw materials R # 231,617 247,949
Work in progress R 379,594 72,886
Finished goods RUEY oA 218,763 276,300
829,974 597,135
Less: Provision against slow-moving and W OB RRETERE
obsolete inventories (13,661) (13,661)
816,313 583,474
19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 19. EFRWRRREWERE
2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
Trade receivables H 5 BRI 448,739 371,628
Impairment allowance VERERE L (95,821) (83,159)
Trade receivables, net BRI FEE 352,918 288,469
Bills receivable eSS 18,813 23,484
371,731 311,953
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on FAEEREXFPFNESRREIEREE EHE
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance F—REEBBNERRIN - EEH—RABH30H

is normally required. The credit period is generally 30 days to
90 days. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19. ESRUERRERERE @
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of RE|EMR EREZAHRDNREBEEREED
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of B IREBERERRATOT ¢

loss allowance, is as follows:

2024 2023
—E-E T4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

Within 60 days 60H A 189,852 140,259
61 to 90 days 61HE90H 15,399 43,639
91 to 180 days 91HZ180H 48,738 5,209
181 to 365 days 181H £365H 17,383 31,848
1 to 2 years 15226 40,080 58,664
2 to 3 years 2E34F 41,466 8,850

352,918 288,469
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade EORWEFREBEREBEZHNT

receivables are as follows:

2024 2023
—E-mE —E =4
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

=3 AR¥TT ARETT

At 1 January ®n—A—H 83,159 28,853
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 6 12,662 66,715
Amount written-off as uncollectible G P b N El — (12,409)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 95,821 83,159
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 £ %= —

19.

ZMFE+ZA=+—HILEFE
TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group applied the provision matrix method
assessment of the ECLs on trade receivables at each
reporting period. This method studies the probability of default
to arrive at the ECLs of trade receivables. The process
involves a review of, among others, the Group’s historical
sales recordings and trade receivables, in order to determine

in the

the default rate of the debtors.

The Group have considered and conducted, among other
things, the following key steps:

. Define a period of sales and bad debts relating to those
sales;

. Collect the historical data of trade receivables;

. Calculate the historical default loss percentage; and

. Calculate the ECL using the default rate determined

aforementioned.

The provision matrix method involves the definition of an
appropriate period of time to analyse the proportion of
receivables written off as bad debts. Based on the best
estimation of the management, over 3 years unpaid trade
receivables as at each reporting date have been defined in
this exercise.

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, all the
trade receivables of the Group have been reasonably
investigated and assessed for ECLs after management
considered the economic situation. Based on management’s
experience and best estimation, an amount payables held by
a subsidiary due to a debtor (the “Debtor”’) had a relatively
high likelihood to loss. Therefore, impairment loss of 100% on
the trade receivables from the Debtor had been recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19. ESRWERRRERRERE @
Based on the provisional matrix method, the Group has REBEBEEREEL  AREESNM_TE—HFEZ
analysed the historical observed default rate from 2015 to TMFNERBRENE  BRMHEEEBHRE
2024, assuming outstanding payment 3-year after credit terms SERHAREENRE ARV EETERRER
is written-off. The amount of outstanding receivable amount at B AR EERURER SR ERERMHE -

the end of each time bucket could then be determined until
the point the bad debt is written off.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk UWTHIEAAEEEBABREERLTENES
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using the provision YRR EERBRER

matrix method:

As at 31 December 2024 R-ZE-_WE+=ZA=+—H

Age of trade receivable

B 5 EWRTIRR
Within 1to 2 to Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
—FR —EME ME=F BB=F @t
Expected credit loss rate BHEEEEX 2.8% 14.1% 26.3% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BEmE/A2E (AR¥ETIT) 279,931 48,253 53,526 67,029 448,739
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) FEHA{ZE &8
(ARBFTT) 7,899 6,822 14,071 67,029 95,821
As at 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+=-A=+—H
Age of trade receivable
B 5 YR TR IR
Within 1 to 2 to Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
—¥% —EMF WEZF BBZF st
Expected credit loss rate HHEEEEX 3.7% 12.2% 33.7% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BREAAE(ARET L) 229,513 66,837 13,353 61,925 371,628
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) FEHIZE &R
(ANREFT) 8,559 8,173 4,502 61,925 83,159
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE
19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China (the
“Derecognised Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in order to
settle the trade payables due to such suppliers with an
aggregate carrying amount of RMB22,418,000 (2023:
RMB64,975,000). The Derecognised Bills had a maturity of
one to nine months (2023: one to nine months) at the end of
the reporting period. In accordance with the Law of
Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the
Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse against the Group
if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating to the
Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full
carrying amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the
associated trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss
from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised
Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognised Bills was equal to their carrying amounts. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values of the
Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills
were not significant.

December 2024 and 31
December 2023, the Group had not recognised any gain or

During the years ended 31

loss on the date of transfer of the Derecognised Bills. No
gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing
Involvement, both during the year and cumulatively. The
endorsement had been made evenly throughout the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iE E E
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE — T _NFE+_A=+—RHILFE
20. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20. ERRE - HWEKRREREMEE

OTHER ASSETS

2024 2023
—E-ME —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTT

Prepayments TE A 5RIE 320,300 327,446
Deposits and other receivables e K& H b fE W EKIE 243,909 265,139
Tax recoverable A Y [B] % 18 4,927 16,618
569,136 609,203
Impairment allowance Ve RERE L] (16,310) (36,615)
552,826 572,588
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of e MNEMEWGRERERBEBREEZSH DT

deposits and other receivables are as follows:

2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

=3 ARBT T ARETT

At 1 January ®n—A—H 36,615 24,801
Impairment losses (reversal)/recognised (#E),/ ERERARE

518 5 6 (20,305) 11,814
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 16,310 36,615
Based on management’s experience and best estimation, REBEENERERERGRT  REHREHBE
other receivables grouped by nature as at each reporting B SRR E MR IBE R A W B/ T
date have been separately assumed in the assessment of the HEEEET AP EBRR -

ECLs on other receivables.

The financial assets included in the above balance were ALMEBRNEREER T _NFR-_F=
categorised in stage 1 as at 31 December 2024 and 2023. =F+TZA=tT—HYEEE—RE -KREXE
Except for the default receivables, the Group estimated that Wk sh - AEB G HaEWRENEBREE
the expected credit loss rate of other receivables is minimal. BB R R/ o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 21. RERBEEEBYURBIEBRRZ R
PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK IRITHER
BALANCES
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B =E AR¥TT ARETT

Cash and bank balances B MIRTT4 6 53,323 32,191
Pledged and restricted bank balances B R REIRT
e 52,953 5,730
106,276 37,921
Less: Ve
Pledged and restricted bank BEHEMRZREIET
balances — current @Eer — BE
— Restricted cash — ZREEe (a) (929) (3,514)
— Pledged for bank acceptance notes — BRIRITHEH EE
2 (49,900) (2,200)
— Pledged for letters of guarantee — BERKEER (2,124) (16)
(52,953) (5,730)
Cash and cash equivalents RekRSEFEY (b) 53,323 32,191
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 21. BEeERBAESEEYURCEFRZIRE
PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK SRITH &R (@)
BALANCES (Continued)
Notes: B -
(@)  Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property (a) IREBEHEMBERY  KNEEETYEERLQGFA

development companies of the Group are required to place at
designated bank accounts certain amounts of pre-sales
proceeds of properties as guarantee deposits for the
construction of the related properties. The deposits can only be
used for purchases of construction materials and payments of
construction fees for the relevant property projects. As at
31 December 2024, such guarantee deposits amounted to
approximately RMB930,000 (2023: RMB984,000).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents denominated in US$ amounted to approximately
RMB4,091,000 (2023: RMB1,051,000) and denominated in
RMB amounted to approximately RMB48,949,000 (2023:
RMB30,627,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

“MEFERE

RIEERITELPFALETEENREEMEMER
REREREMMENRES - ZFXEABR
HREMYEREBERRM AR INEZRER -
RIZ-ZWNF+_A=+—H ZRESHRBA
R #930,000c (ZZT = =4 : AR % 984,000
o) e

RZE-_WNFE+=-A=1+—8  KNEBEUET:
BENRSRREESEDLH A ARK4091,0007T
—T-=4F: AR¥1,051,00000) RIAARE
SHEMER € RIS EEWLH A AR48,949,000
T(ZEZ=%: AR¥30,627,0007T) - AR¥
R ERLBRAEMER - EREFBEANMAIN
MBI IR0 R AELE - S RMEBTEHRTE A&
R B B IR TINE RS RITIEARE S
BAEHMEE -

RITR SR RRITFRN X REENZEB A X
RIAE - RITEBRERBEEREFRDEFEREE
=3 BT Y S R AL SR IRAT o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

22. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 22. EZRNRARENRE
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the RBEMKR BRIEEHEAHPAENE SFEMNER
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as RENZBEERRTHET
follows:
2024 2023
—E_ME —E - =4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTT
Trade payables B OREMNER
Within 90 days 90H A 601,752 627,595
91 to 180 days 91HZE180H 48,251 55,490
181 to 365 days 181H £365H 114,183 64,566
1 to 2 years 155225 45,581 35,642
2 to 3 years 2FEIF 16,282 31,463
Over 3 years 3FA F 127,756 68,786
953,805 883,542
Bills payable S R I& 109,561 59,051
1,063,366 942,593

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally

settled within a year. The maturity dates of all the bills

payable are within 365 days.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE
23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. HtEANRERETER
2024 2023
—E_mE —E-=4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® T AREET T
Deposits received B Wiz e 9,558 12,606
Other payables H th fE K08 (a) 472,779 373,132
Payroll payables JE 1< 5 EM 27,428 30,558
Accruals and other liabilities EEERREMEE 183,184 171,842
Other tax payables HhEHiia 27,560 13,476
720,509 601,614
Note: P E -
(@)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average (a) EMENFIEATFHERFEHHRAME=(EA -
term of two to three months.
24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 24, EHNEE

Details of contract liabilities at the end of the reporting period RBEBR GHBEFBOT :

are as follows:

2024 2023
—E_ME —E-=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREETF T
Short-term advances received from customers EBWEFHNEHENR
Manufacture and sale of seam welded steel pipes ZiERMEGREERE X
and the provision of related manufacturing REAEARERS
services 414,647 439,159
Sale of properties HEME 140,861 303,625
Total contract liabilities EHaEESE 555,508 742,784

Contract liabilities include sales proceeds received from
buyers in connection with the Group’s pre-sale of steel pipes

and properties.
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W ER B 35 55 P S BOR -

WIAAXARMEEREBRAT 233

AHEERREREEEENERMEMBET



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE
24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 24. EHEE®@
Changes in contract liabilities during the year are as follows: FAEGHNBEZEFHNT
2024 2023
—ENEF —E-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARET R ARBEF T
At 1 January n—A—H 742,784 704,255
Revenue recognised that was included in the AAFVIEHNBEZ
contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 2R A (298,745) (366,189)
Increases due to cash received, excluding amounts & U35 4 & B ) 45 A1
recognised as revenue during the year (TBEFREHRE
WAZ &%) 111,684 404,718
Transferred to liabilities associated with assets EREESBARFERE
classified as held for sale ZEEHEZARE 32(a) (215) —
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 555,508 742,784
25. FIXED RATE BONDS AND NOTES 25, ERESFRERE
2024 2023
—Bo@E ZZZ=H%
Principal at  Contractual Principal at ~ Contractual
original interest original interest
currency rate (%) currency rate (%)
‘million  per annum Maturity RMB’000 ‘million per annum Maturity RMB'000
AEHE GHENR%) AMA ARETR KEHE ANFFE%) H#ME  ARETR
Current TE
2017 Bonds A —E—+F N/A N/A N/A - US$0.25 7.0 2023 1,867
BEHA TER TER TER 0.25% 7T —E-=F
2020 Notes —EC-EE HK$59 12.0 2024 54,636 HK$61 12.0 2023 55,280
£ 59T “ECIQNE 6187 —T=H
2022 Bonds B —Z-F HK$2 8.0 2025 1,852 HK$2 8.0 2025 1,812
&%B 25T —EoRf 28T —Z-RF
2022 Bonds C T F N/A N/A N/A - HK$3 8.0 2024 2,719

ExC TER TER TER 3BT —EomE

56,488 61,678
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25,

TE+ A=+ —HIEFE

FIXED RATE BONDS AND NOTES (Continued)
US$3,000,000 7% bonds due in 2023 (2017 Bonds A)

On 28 April 2017, the Company issued bonds with a principal
amount of US$3,000,000 to an individual investor (the “2017
Bonds A”). The bonds should be repayable in full by 28 April
2020 but the expiry date had been extended to 30 June
2022 and further extended to 31 March 2023 and 30
September 2023 by the Company and the investor. The
bonds beared interest at a fixed coupon interest rate of 7%
per annum, payable semiannually in arrears commencing on
28 October 2017. The bonds were unsecured. The 2017
Bonds A matured on 30 September 2023 and was not repaid
by the Company upon the maturity date. Interest on the 2017
Bonds A carried interest at 7% per annum was recognised
in the profit and loss of the Group and the related interests
payable were included in other payables and accruals. As at
December 2024, the Company had fully redeemed the 2017
Bonds A.

HK$140,000,000 12% notes due in 2023 (2020 Notes)

On 27 April 2020, the Company issued 12% notes due on
27 April 2022 but the expiry date could be extended to
30 September 2022 with a principal amount of
HK$140,000,000 to an investment fund (the “2020 Notes”).
The notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 12% per annum,
payable semiannually in arrears. Pursuant to the purchase
agreement, specific performance obligations are imposed on
the controlling shareholder of the Group. Any breach of the
specific performance obligations may constitute a breach
under the note purchase agreement, pursuant to which the
investment fund is entitled to redeem the 2020 Notes in
accordance with the terms and conditions. The Company and
the noteholder mutually agreed to extend the maturity date to
22 December 2023. The 2020 Notes matured on 22
December 2023 and was not repaid by the Company upon
the maturity date. Interest on the 2020 Notes carried interest
at 12% per annum was recognised in the profit and loss of
the Group and the related interests payable were included in
other payables and accruals (note 23). As at December
2024, the Company had partially redeemed the 2020 Notes
with a principal amount of HK$81,000,000. At the end of the
reporting period, the 2020 Notes with the principal amount of
HK$59,000,000 remained outstanding. On 19 December
2024, the Company entered a settlement deed with the
noteholder. The Company covenanted and agreed to pay a
sum of HK$54,000,000 (the “Settlement Amount”’) to the
noteholder into the noteholder’s bank account, in full and final
settlement of all liabilities and obligations at any time due.
Subsequent to 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
report, the Company had fully redeemed the Settlement
Amount and the noteholder had surrendered the entire 2020
Notes and released and discharged the Company from all its
obligations pursuant to or under the above transaction
documents.
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25,

FIXED RATE BONDS AND NOTES (Continued)
HK$2,000,000 8% bonds due in 2025 (2022 Bonds B)

On 8 January 2022,
principal amount of HK$2,000,000 to an individual investor
(the “2022 Bonds B”). The bonds should be repayable in full
by 9 January 2023 but the expiry date has been extended to
9 January 2024 and further extended to 9 January 2025 and
concluded during the year by the Company and the investor.

the Company issued bonds with a

The bonds bear interest at a fixed coupon interest rate of 6%
per annum, payable monthly in arrears. From 9 January
2023, the interest rate of the 2022 Bonds B increased from
6% per annum to 8% per annum. The bonds are unsecured.
Subsequent to 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
report, the Company had fully redeemed the 2022 Bonds B.

HK$3,000,000 8% bonds due in 2024 (2022 Bonds C)

On 8 January 2022,
principal amount of HK$3,000,000 to an individual investor
(the “2022 Bonds C”). The bonds should be repayable in full
by 9 January 2023 but the expiry date had been extended to

the Company issued bonds with a

11 April 2024 by the Company and the investor. The bonds
beared interest at a fixed coupon interest rate of 6% per
annum, payable monthly in arrears. From 9 January 2023,
the interest rate of the 2022 Bonds C increased from 6% per
annum to 8% per annum. The bonds are unsecured. As at 31
December 2024, the Company had fully redeemed the 2022
Bonds C.
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 26. FFEBITREAMBEE
BORROWINGS
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
BBRFIE(%) FHE  ARETR EBEANE%) e ARETR
Current RE
Lease liabilities (note 15) HEBE (ME15) 9.13 2025 516 9.13 2024 463
—E-RE B NE
Bank loans RITER
— secured — BHEM 4.50-5.66 2025 450,300 7.00 2024 489,110
—E_RE —E
— unsecured — EEA 3.55-5.44 2025 150,370 4.70-5.44 2024 57,500
—E_RE —EMF
Other borrowings Hifg &
— secured — AR 5.00-9.09 2025 111,268 6.40-9.09 2024 71,734
—E-RE —ET-ME
— unsecured — K 11.20 2025 200,827 11.20 2024 202,419
—E-RE —E-MEF
Current portion of long term RHBOTERRD
bank loans 52
— secured — BEM 3.41-4.90 2025 54,000 4.90-5.39 2024 795,634
—EC-RE —ENE
Subtotal et 967,281 1,616,860
Non-current Bk
Lease liabilities (note 15) HEBE (ME15) 9.13 2026 28 9.13 2026 532
—ECRE TECRE
Other borrowings Hihfg &
— secured — BER 5.00-6.80 2026 33,002 6.40-9.09 2025 27,284
—ZECRE —E-RF
Bank loans RITER
— secured — HiKH 490  2026-2028 808,134 4.90-5.39  2025-2028 126,000
—EDREE —E-RF
—EN\F ETNF
Subtotal PN 841,164 153,816
1,808,445 1,770,676

“MEFERE
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 26. FFERITREMEE @)
BORROWINGS (Continued)

2024 2023
—ENF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

Analysed into: BT A

Bank loans repayable: AR THREEMRITER
Within one year —F R 654,670 1,342,244
In the second year F_F 690,134 4,000

In the third to fifth years, inclusive FFEERF

(BEEEMT) 12,000 12,000
Beyond five years BRAF 106,000 110,000
1,462,804 1,468,244

Other borrowings repayable: ARATHREENEMES :
Within one year —FR 312,095 274,153
In the second year F_F 33,002 27,284
345,097 301,437

Lease liabilities repayable: ARUATHREENHERRE
Within one year —FR 516 463
In the second year F_F 28 532
544 995
1,808,445 1,770,676
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE
26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 26. FTE4R Hi & & (3
BORROWINGS (Continued)
Certain of the Group’s bank loans and other borrowings are REEETRTEXREREMEER TIEBEER
secured by: T
(a) the pledge of certain of the Group’s property, plant and (@) ERALEERBFEHRREMFEOAAR
equipment with a net carrying amount of approximately #662,261,000L (T =Z=F: AR
RMB662,261,000 (2023: RMB696,393,000) as at the 696,393,0007T) HI % :F'}F@i BB M

end of the reporting period;

(b)  the pledge of certain of the Group’s leasehold land with (b) HEHAEERBMERREEFENAAR
a net carrying amount of approximately #464,673,000C (T -=F: AR¥
RMB464,673,000 (2023: RMB481,645,000) as at the 481,645,0007T) )& THE L

end of the reporting period;

(c) the pledge of certain of the Group’s completed properties (c) HERAFERBERREEAENAAR
held for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of #1,001,224,000C(ZE=Z=F : ARK
approximately RMB1,001,224,000 (2023: 1,002,989,0007T) #)& T AKX FEWE -
RMB1,002,989,000) as at the end of the reporting
period.

Except for the bank loans and other borrowings of RZZZWEFE+ZA=+—H0  AEEBEKRETE

approximately RMB85,000 (2023: RMB2,950,000) as at HEHMEEHARES5000T(ZE=-=F:

31 December 2024, which are denominated in HK$, the AR #2,950,0007T) LA TLHNESN - 2 EBEEH

borrowings of the Group are denominated in RMB. AARBIE -

The Group had the following undrawn banking facilities: REBEBTHEHARRERITRE -

2024 2023
—E-NE —E=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B = AR¥TT ARETT

Floating rate F B A

— expiring within one year — —F NI H 252,290 103,290
— expiring beyond one year — —F1& 35 797,865 738,366
Total undrawn banking facilities RIZEVRITRAE 4858 (a) 1,050,155 841,656
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 26. sFER HibEE @)
BORROWINGS (Continued)
Note: B 5
(a)  Pursuant to the relevant contract, certain of the Group’s undrawn @ BEBHEEGYN AXEELBEHNAARE
banking facilities of approximately RMB763,866,000 (2023: 763,866,0007C (= F = =4 : AR# 708,366,000
RMB708,366,000) can only be used for property development T ZETARERRITREETARMERRE
projects and are repayable based on the pre-sale progress of B WIEEMMEZTEEEREE-

such properties.

27. PROVISION 27. B
2024 2023
—F-pmFE T o=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

k=3 AR¥TT ARETT

Legal proceedings: SRR
At 1 January n—A—H 49,964 49,283
Provision for the year REZHEAE 6 7,757 4,536
Utilised during the year FASHA (11,004) (3,855)
Transferred to liabilities associated with assets EREESBARFERE

classified as held for sale ZEEHEBZzARE 32(a) (1,887) —
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 44,830 49,964
Certain subsidiaries of the Group are defendants in lawsuits REBETHBRARAASE = TREMFAZHE
brought by third parties alleging that the subsidiaries & RECHEBRENBRARERKTETS
breached and repudiated certain purchase and construction THEMEEAN ZBERAFAVAHERTT
contracts. The claims are subject to the legal arbitration and AEREHBER T RAFET HE-T -
are expected to be finalised in 2025. During the year ended FT+ZA=+—HLEFE REESMHETNES
31 December 2024, a provision of approximately AgEER  ERBEETEROARE7,757,0000T
RMB7,757,000 (2023: RMB4,536,000) (including related (ZZE=—=%F : AR"4,536,0007T) (& 87 F
interest) was recognised in profit or loss based on directors’ B 2B -

estimation of the expected probable outcome.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE
28. DEFERRED TAX 28. EEBIIE
Deferred tax liabilities EEHRESE
Changes in/
realisation of
fair value of  Accelerated
GDC tax  Withholding
properties®  depreciation tax Total
SEBWE
ZAVE
B BH MEFERE BB Hat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARBF T ARBF T ARBF T
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-_=%F—HF—H 287,660 4,364 2,265 294,289
Deferred tax credited to the FARGEBERITA
consolidated statement of profit B3R E A 18
or loss during the year (110,519) — — (110,519)
At 31 December 2023 and RZEZ=
1 January 2024 +ZR=+—8K
—E-NF—HF—H 177,141 4,364 2,265 183,770
Deferred tax credited to the FARGREBERITA
consolidated statement of profit Y IR IE 71 18
or loss during the year (12,189) — — (12,189)
At 31 December 2024 RZZTZAF
+ZA=+—8” 164,952 4,364 2,265 171,581
* GDC properties include investment properties, properties under * CRBMERSEEME BERTPMERENGF
development and completed properties held for sale. LEX
Pursuant to the PRC CIT Law, a 10% (or a lower rate if there 7FETJ§':F‘ Bl b ZATSRE » (MR AR B R b A SZ B9 50
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of TEREBIMTEETIRKRE - HHA10% (S
the foreign investors) withholding tax is levied on dividends EPIWﬂ’EEEM\.&ﬁ%?)’TE ALERE R B BB G
declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment MERERE) BRI - WAER_ZZNF—A
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is —BEXR WEARZZZELF+=A=+—H
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after BRI AT o Bt - ANEBEER R E R
31 December 2007. The Group is therefore liable for ZHREMBRARAR_ZTENF-—A—HRBELZ
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those BN DIk IR BB AR TEI0 A -

subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.
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28. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 28. EFEBLIE (&)
Deferred tax liabilities (Continued) IEERIE & E ()
Since 2011, no deferred tax has been recognised by the A-E——F8 A5EREREZNENRZ
Group for withholding taxes that would be payable on the ZEWEB R T 2 RE L BT 2 EHMTERTER
unremitted earnings of those subsidiaries that are subject to BEHE BRAEEERAZSNBARTKRA
withholding taxes as management considered that it is not A RAR R D IR AT -
probable that those subsidiaries will distribute any earnings in
the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets ELERIBEEE
As at 31 December 2024, the Group had tax losses arising in RZZE_ME+A=+—80 KXEHER %Cf%
Hong Kong of approximately RMB653,565,000 (2023: EEBIBEEBELHAR653,565,000C (===
RMB641,251,000), which are available indefinitely for F: AR ¥641,251,0007T) » ZSHIEEET
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in EERHAAFEEFEHRBEN QN RRERY
which the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses wmH e AEBITARFPRAMEEREEED
arising in Mainland China of approximately RMB1,594,172,000 ARM1,594,172,000c(Z T =Z=F : ARH
(2023: RMB280,150,000) that will expire in one to five years 280,150,0007T) - H%F’\‘ ERAFAEIE - UIKH
for offsetting against future taxable profits. No deferred tax RRERTER c RZTE-MFR T -_=F+
assets were recognised in respect of the tax losses of the —A=+—8" ﬁ%l*ﬁﬂﬁﬁ‘ﬁ?ﬂlﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁauﬁk
Group as at 31 December 2024 and 2023. MIAERE -
29. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 29. BUAT#HEBL
2024 2023
—E_ME - =4F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR® TR ARBTT
At 1 January n—A—A 146,788 102,593
Grants received during the year G A 7 % G 5,193 50,858
Recognised as income during the year FANERBWA 5 (10,840) (6,663)
At 31 December W+ZA=+—8H 141,141 146,788

Government grants have been received as encouragement for
technological innovation and improvements, the construction
of production plants and rewards for investment
encouragement. There are no unfulfilled conditions and other
contingencies attaching to these grants that have been
recognised as income during the year. Related assets
associated with the above grants have not yet been

completed.
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B 7% #R R Y &
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE
30. ISSUED CAPITAL 30. EBRTRAE
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
Authorised: JATE
10,000,000,000 (2023: 10,000,000,000) 10,000,000,0007%
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (2 =-=%:
10,000,000,000/%)
SREE0E L LR 878,335 878,335
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
1,011,142,000 (2023: 1,011,142,000) 1,011,142,000%
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (=%
1,011,142,000 %)
FREEI0E Ty EiBR 88,856 88,856
31. RESERVES 31. fRAfE
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements REBRAFERAGTFENHRESEREHE
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the DR BRER AR EEHRA -
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.
32. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS 32. PEAREHEZEERER
HELD FOR SALE
(a) On 30 December 2024, the Group and EMBEHREAR (@) RZZE-_WMF+-—A=+H A£EEHHERE
fR’A7A] (the “Purchaser’), entered into a sale and MBIEREERAG(ERDIFLEEW
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Group has BB AEEERKHRELRE MER
conditionally agreed to sell, and the Purchaser has BiERMRERBEERTESILEEHBRA
conditionally agreed to acquire the entire paid-up capital B(EERARD2HMHURRE  REHA
of MRMMELEMAR AT, at a consideration of AR #300,0007T °

approximately RMB300,000 (the “Target Company”).

The directors of the Company are of the view that the KRBIEZRAE  BERARKRFERRK
Target Company will be disposed of within twelve BT_EAANHE - Bt BEEAFMNE
months from the end of the reporting period. BAHNEEEERBECD O BARBELE -
Accordingly, corresponding assets and liabilities WREREMBARRARRNE L2 (R TX) °

associated with the Target Company have been
classified as held for sale and are presented separately
in the consolidated statement of financial position (see
below).
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32, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS

HELD FOR SALE (Continued)
(@) (Continued)

32. PERFELHEZEERERE®@

(a)

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the Target

Company classified as held for sale are as follows:

(%)

pa

BT

NERFKEFLENERAREIREERSA

Notes RMB’000
M5 AREET T
Inventories = 269
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets JBINFUIE « H b e Uk 718 & H b B & 1
Total assets classified as held for sale DEARBIEHENEERE 270
Trade and bill payables ZORNRBRENZER 34,985
Other payables and accruals H B RIB R ERT B R 236
Contract liabilities AHaE 24 215
Provision B 27 1,887
Total liabilities associated with assets classified H 9 AFELENEERBEN
as held for sale BERE 37,323

The loss for the year from the Target Company, which

are included in consolidated statement of profit or loss

of the Group, are disclosed as follows:

FFAREEGSBEERNKE BRARN

FEEEEBNT

2024

—ENF

RMB’000

AR% T

Administrative expenses THER (3,124)
Other expenses HEtER (11,085)
Loss before income tax BRETISBIATE B (14,209)
Income tax expense FIEBiA= —
Loss for the year FANEIE (14,209)
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32. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

(b)

On 27 December 2024, CKSP (Yunfu), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the disposal agreement with Yunfu City Yun’an Land
Reserve Centre, pursuant to which Yunfu City Yun’an
Land Reserve Centre has agreed to purchase, and
CKSP (Yunfu) had agreed to sell, the Land at the
consideration of RMB30.25 million. After Completion,
the Group ceased to hold any interests in the Land. For
details, please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated 25 February 2025 and 5 March 2025
respectively. The interest in the Land with carrying
amount of approximately RMB28,966,000 was classified
as assets classified as held for sale as at 31
December 2024.

The consideration of RMB30.25 million shall be paid in
cash by Yunfu City Yun’an Land Reserve Centre by
way of six instalments from 31 December 2024 to
30 June 2027 per semi-annually (the
Schedule”). If during the Payment Schedule, Yunfu City

“Payment

Yun’an Land Reserve Centre were able to sell the Land
Yunfu City
pay all the

to another party through public tender,
Yun’an Land Reserve Centre shall
outstanding balance of the consideration to CKSP
(Yunfu) within 30 days after collection of the sales
proceeds from the public tender.

On 30 December 2024, CKSP (Yunfu) had received the
first instalment of RMB4 million of the consideration and
up to date of this report, CKSP (Yunfu) had provided
the land certificates and state-owned land use right
assignment contracts to Yunfu City Yun’an Land
Reserve Centre, deregistered the real property
ownership certificate of the Land, practicable delivered
the Land to Yunfu City Yun’an Land Reserve Centre
and has not yet received remaining five installments of

the consideration.

TR NEFEHRE

32.

vk

(b)

ABFELHEZEERAE @)
RZEZWNF+ZA=Z++EH KXRFZ

ME2ENBARKINE (%) HEF
TMELZE T HEEP LT L EHE &
It EXmEZRIWHETLOABEE
MHIME(RR)RABHEL M REAR
AR #30,250,000T c RE % - A% E
THERFE LW EMEZR FHEFE &
2HBARABHSN AT -_AF=_A=
+THERZZE-Z_RAF=ARAMHIE R
ZZIMF+ZA=+—8 " REEEY
A R #28,966,0007T 1) + b 2 w5 5A
AFIELEZEE -

REARY30,250,000 L EREFHER
ELEEHEROR T _METZR=T
—HEZZLERNA=ZTHEXES N
HUReXN(XHREHR]) - EEX
NREHRAN  EFHELR T MEET
DAAEBARBES G L HEE TS
— 77 RIEFWERR I MHEERLEE
WU PR IR 8H & FRIR12 30 H A @) BT 39
E(BR)XRNARNREERE-

RZZZWNF+ZA=1H " HWIHE(E
%) B R E B E A R 4,000,000
T REEARERH  HTEE (25%)
CAEFTELR T HEHER OIREZ L
WA REAE L EAELEAR
RO T EMBESE  BLE
BRI FEEFTELZRRB I MEES L &
M AR B E SR R HIRERK -
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32. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

(c)

On 26 April 2022, PCKSP, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the disposal
agreement with the joint venture partner, Abdel Hadi
Abdullah Al Qahtani & Sons, Co. (the “AHQ”), pursuant
to which AHQ has conditionally agreed to purchase,
and PCKSP had conditionally agreed to sell, the 50%
equity interest in the JV Company. The consideration
paid by AHQ was SR41.5 million (or equivalent to
approximately RMB76,053,000 of which approximately
RMB41,378,000 received in 2022). After Completion,
the Group ceased to hold any interests in the JV
Company. Investment in a joint venture was classified
as assets classified as held for sale as at 31
December 2022.

The transaction for disposal of investment in the JV
Company had been completed during the year ended
31 December 2023 as all conditions fulfiled and the
Group recognised a gain on disposal of investment in a
joint venture of approximately RMB73,790,000, after
deducting costs of disposal
RMB2,263,000.

of approximately
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RZTBE-_—FWMA_+"A  KXATFZMH
E2EMBARBRIMEEAE AR
& % AAbdel Hadi Abdullah Al Qahtani &
Sons, Co.([AHQ) FT 7 & ek - K1kt -
AHQE (M HFAEEE  MESHIME
FIEFHRELE S 2 R RIH50%A% #
AHQIE 1 2 (R B &Y 1 £ T2 f141,500,000
TL (S AR E R4 AR #76,053,0007T © H A
HWARMA41,378,000tER T - =—F ¢
B) - REfE  AEBTHFEEE AR
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HRFERKEAERR  MEER—EE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 765 3 7% B =
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE
33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 33.

OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities

RERERERWE

(a) MEEZHELE-EEED

Bank and
other
borrowings
BE-ZT-WmF (other than Fixed rate
+=H=+-—H Lease lease bonds and Due to a
Year ended 31 December 2024 IFEE liabilities liabilities) notes director
RITRHA
BE(HEAE EREH
HESE BR4M) EE EAEERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBT R ARBT R ARET R
At 1 January 2024 N_ZT_MF
—H—H 995 1,769,681 61,678 64,353
Changes from financing cash MERSME
flows % (466) 38,175 (6,413) (56,652)
Interest expense M EFX 79 — — —
Interest paid classified as DERBERS
operating cash flows mEZ B
ME (79) — — —
Foreign exchange movement HINE B & 15 45 1,223 —
At 31 December 2024 RZZ e
+=-—A=+—8H 544 1,807,901 56,488 7,701

ZECFFERE
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33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 33. ZEBEEREXRMT @
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (a) BMETBELEZEEBEZFH (A

activities (Continued)

Bank and
other
borrowings
HE-_ZT-=#F (other than Fixed rate
+=ZRA=+—H Lease lease bonds and Due to a
Year ended 31 December 2023 |t E liabilities liabilities) notes director
RAT R EH A
BE(HERE EEER
HEAE BRAM) REE RENEZIE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT ARETT ARETTT
At 1 January 2023 RNZZE=Z=F
—H—H 722 1,689,926 85,330 390,195
Changes from financing cash BRSNS
flows 8 (661) 79,689 (24,723) (325,842)
Lease modification MEEET 937 — — —
Interest expense FERX 52 — — —
Interest paid classified as DERIKEERS
operating cash flows mEZEN
AME (52) — — —
Foreign exchange movement 41 b (3) 66 1,071 —
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=%F
—A=+—8 995 1,769,681 61,678 64,353

248 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2024



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE
33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 33. ZEBEREBRMTE @
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HERESRHALRE
The total cash outflow for leases during the reporting RmEHEFTAGEREeRER2HER
period included in the consolidated statement of cash BmEHARELT

flows is as follows:

2024 2023
—E-NE —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETT

Within operating activities B E B (79) (52)
Within investing activities % B & B = —
Within financing activities B & & & (466) (661)
(545) (713)
34. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 34. BIIER
The financial guarantee contracts are measured at the higher MBEREQODEEREEEEREHMETRER
of the ECL allowance and the amount initially recognised less SHEBEERZZFRACEZRBEETA
the cumulative amount of income recognised. The ECL 2 -EHEEBEREDRBMGITREERBA
allowance is measured by estimating the cash shortfalls, FEAEEBENEFFBERAISEETEER
which are based on the expected payments to reimburse the ABHER BB ERETE YIBERS
holders for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that BIER VIR B EREN A TE -

the Group expects to receive from the debtor. The amount
initially recognised represents the fair value at initial
recognition of the financial guarantees.

At the end of the reporting period, financial guarantees not RB|ER - MEREPRTTIREE 2 B HER
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: mr
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETT

Guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities provided FtIZIBENE AAREE Y
for certain purchasers of the Group’s properties & TERREMNER 17,861 27,430
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34.

ZHWHE+TZA=Z+—HIEFE
FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group provided guarantees in
respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks
relating to the mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers
of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the terms of the
guarantees, in the event of default on mortgage payments by
these purchasers before the expiry of the guarantees, the
Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage
principals together with the accrued interest and penalties
owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks, net of any
auction proceeds as described below.

Pursuant to the above arrangement, the related properties
were pledged to the banks as collateral for the mortgage
loans, and in the event of default on mortgage repayments by
these purchasers, the banks are entitled to take over the
legal titles and will realise the pledged properties through
open auction. The Group is responsible for repaying the
banks when the proceeds from the auction of the properties
cannot cover the outstanding mortgage principals together

with the accrued interest and penalties.

The Group’s guarantee period starts from the date of grant of
the relevant mortgage loans and ends upon the issuance of
real estate ownership certificates to the purchasers, which will
generally be available within one to two years after the
purchasers take possession of the relevant properties.

The fair value of the guarantees is not significant and the
directors of the Company consider that in the event of default
realisable value of the related

on payments, the net

properties can cover the repayment of the outstanding
mortgage principals together with the accrued interest and
penalties, and therefore, no provision has been made in the

financial statements for the guarantees.
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35. COMMITMENTS 35. FEiE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end RB|EIR  REEFUAFERAE

of the reporting period:

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETT

Contracted, but not provided for: BRI AEREHR B -
Construction of buildings EEEF 80,848 80,885
Construction of plant and machinery B 7 R S Mo B3 30,804 30,230
111,652 111,115
At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have RIRE IR AR 7)) H fth 8 KA -
any other significant commitments.
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BEBAERS
(a) Name and relationship of related parties (a) BABEL EWMRER
The directors of the Company are of the view that the RAREERBATAG BT

following companies are related parties:

Name of related parties Relationship
BEE AR RES

Guangzhou City Pearl River Machine Tool Works GZMT is a company of which Mr Chen Chang is the
Co., Ltd. (“GZMT”") ultimate equity owner
JE& M TR TR M PR BB R 2 B ([ BT MR 1) WIWATDHRE RERZKEBEREE AZ QR
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 36. BB AERS (@)
(b) Transaction with related parties (b) HEEIZXS
The Group had no transactions with related parties REEZZ-_NF+=-A=+—HLFE
during the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil). REBMERAE TS (2T =F ) -
(c) Balances with related parties (c) EHEAEER z4E8R
Outstanding balance at the end of the reporting period RBERARERARFTNES AN &%
with a director of the Company is as follows: R
2024 2023
—EBNEF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

Due to a director JETE B FRIE
Mr Chen Chang BRE % HE 7,701 64,353
The outstanding balance with a director is unsecured, HERENAINERDEER 220K
interest-free and repayable on demand. EREE -
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the (d) FAXEEFEEBASNHMOT :
Group during the year is as follows:
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AREEFTT
Fees, salaries, allowances and benefits in kind #&  F&  EZB N EWREF 3,295 3,599
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRAE N E & 5K 61 92
Total compensation paid to key management ¥ EEEIE A 8 F &%
personnel 3,356 3,691
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in EEMEnE —THFBART BRI ZM

note 9 to the financial statements. F9 e
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

37. 2®MIT AN
RBEF  SEASHTANERENT -

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:
Financial assets EWMEE
2024 2023
—E-OE —EZ=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETIT
Financial assets at amortised cost: BBEKNATENEREE -
Financial assets included in long term AARBEBEBNFEREZESHN
prepayments and deposits ERMEE 2,778 2,778
Trade and bills receivables B 5 BRI E W R R 371,731 311,953
Financial assets included in prepayments, other FTATERRIA - HAibEWEIE
receivables and other assets LEMEENERMEE 227,599 228,524
Pledged deposits EEMZE 52,953 5,730
Cash and cash equivalents BehAEEEY 53,323 32,191
708,384 581,176
Financial liabilities cRBaE
2024 2023
—E-NE —E =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: R#BEKNIFTENSREE
Trade and bills payables B HRNERRENRE 1,063,366 942,593
Lease liabilities HEBE 544 995
Financial liabilities included in other payables and AT AE AL R FRIE K
accruals EsrERAMESRasE 655,963 544,974
Due to a director BT EFEHE 7,701 64,353
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ERITRAMEE
(other than lease liabilities) (HE B ERIN 1,807,901 1,769,681
Fixed rate bonds and notes EEEAEREER 56,488 61,678
3,591,963 3,384,274

ZECFFERE
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 3. TRTEAEZAFERAFEER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial BREEEEREEATECEBEENSRIAN K
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that SERITANKREERATFTEBAT

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair value
IREE ATE
2024 2023 2024 2023
—E-NE —T-=%F “E-mF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARBETTT ARBTR ARETT

Financial liabilities: TRAE -
Interest-bearing bank and AFERITREMER
other borrowings (other (HEA AR
than lease liabilities) 1,807,901 1,769,681 1,816,916 1,707,908
Fixed rate bonds and EEEFLRER
notes 56,488 61,678 56,488 61,678
1,864,389 1,831,359 1,873,404 1,769,586
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and EREDTRReRREFEY SEBEFR
cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills ZOMNERREWRE B2 ENERRRERN
receivables, trade and bills payables, financial assets included F1E - FEATERRIE - B E Y RIE R H A E E
in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, financial NEeMEE TAHMENRIERESEBR S
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, lease BEE HEABMENEEREZATE H
liabilities and an amount due to a director approximate to HIFMERS  FZ2ZRARSIARNEERIE -

their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities
of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are TRMEERABGBZAFEUBERR S (AEK
included at the amount at which the instrument could be BEHERINENRZIPZIAZAR SR
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, AR o oA ERBZANGGTATEE :

other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:
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38.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair values of the interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and fixed rate bonds and notes have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The changes in
fair value as a result of the Group’s own non-performance
risk for interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and fixed
rate bonds and notes as at 31 December 2024 and 2023
were assessed to be insignificant. The carrying amounts of
these financial instruments carried at amortised cost were not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 December
2024 and 2023.

The fair value of warrants was estimated as at the date of
grant using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the warrants were granted.

Fair value hierarchy
The Group did not have any financial assets measured at fair
value as at 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2023: Nil).

TR NEFEHRE

38.

ERMITECZAFERLAFEER @)

AERITREMEEREREFREBZAYF
B TAMER - EERREGTHRENZTA
BEABGIRE - IRBHRIRDIRTE -
R-E-_MER-_T-_=Ff+_A=+—H ' &
SEMFARRTLEAMEBEERESESFMNERZ
BETETRRER Z AFEEHFEASTE
K°%_ THOER-E_=ZF+-A=+—
P REREBHERAAR 2SR T A2 RE(E A
AA$ﬁﬂﬁ$K§£°

RIEE DT BRI B B 9B 5
fi e 2 1 SRR BB A K R IRt 21 o

DNFEER
R-FT_ME+-_A=+—8" $EIIEET
BAVEFEZERMEE(ZT_=F &) -

A\ WNF+ZA=Z+—H  NEBEWELM
EAFEFEZSMAEB(ZE=F &) -

FR F-BERE_GZEAREERSREER
ERABZATEFEER  TEEAFZ=HX
BE-MREBH(ZT_=F:8)-
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 38. ERMITAZAFERAFEER @
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

&

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AFEEH (E)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: EAFERENERE

Fair value measurement using

ERBAEFEZATE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant

active observable unobservable

markets inputs input
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BB S EXTEE BEAFITEE

PR E A% W AE W AE

(B—%) (B=#) (B=#) Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMETTT ARBETTT ARETT ARETT

2024 —E-—mE
Interest-bearing bank and TERITREMEES

other borrowings (other (HEAaR’RIN

than lease liabilities) = 1,816,916 = 1,816,916
Fixed rate bonds and notes EBE5NZE — 56,488 — 56,488
2023 —_E =
Interest-bearing bank and ATERITREMEE

other borrowings (other (HEAa’RKRIN

than lease liabilities) — 1,707,908 — 1,707,908
Fixed rate bonds and notes B EHMEE — 61,678 — 61,678

256 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 £ %= —

“OEF A=t HIEFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include bank and

other borrowings, fixed rate bonds and notes, cash and short

term deposits. The main purpose of these financial

instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.

The Group also has various other financial assets and

liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which

arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments

are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and

liquidity risk. Generally, the Group introduces prudent

strategies on its risk management. The board of directors

reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks

and they are summarised below:

(@) Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank loans
and government loans with floating interest rates. The
Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank and other borrowings.
The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of
fixed and floating interest rate borrowings in order to
manage its interest rate risk. Interest-bearing loans,
cash and short term deposits are stated at amortised
cost and not revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate
interest income and expenses are credited/charged to
the statement of profit or loss as earned/incurred.
If there was a general increase/decrease in the interest rate
of bank and other borrowings with floating interest rates by
one percentage point, with all other variables held constant,
the consolidated operating results would have decreased/
increased by approximately RMB12,449,000 (2023:
RMB12,559,000), and there would have been no impact
on other components of the consolidated equity, except
for accumulated losses, of the Group.

—ENMFFERE

39.

MERBREEREERBEE
FEEIENSMTAGERTRAGES &
BESRERE REREHER - ZSLBTA
MEBAMREEAEEOELERME - AEE)
BEBEAMEMAERAR NEBREEES
ME 2 R R 5 IR -

mﬁﬁlmﬁﬁﬂiﬂﬁié’qigmﬁﬁﬂmﬂ
CHNEER - FEERRERBESER - —
imE '$%IEEH ﬁEi@ﬂP%\)\%'Iﬁ%a@ g
EFeEHNTHEEEZERARZTENEE
T

(a) F=mEBz
AEBAZNTISNEEHRARKREBER
SERF ARG RN RITERLBTE
KA - AEBNHEEABESRTRE
EEN DT EMNERRE

AEBTERESL EREERFBNEER
BfEE  NERANERRR - sHEER B

& RAEMEFIREERATIE - A EH
Bk o F BRI R A S A R IRERE
EERERERI AR -

ERFHFEAENRITRAMEEER

ME/BE—EELH MAABEMES
TE - BREEEEEBRD LM A
R#12,449,000L (ZZE=Z=F: AR¥
125590007‘5) HAREEGERERNEM
oI EFE (M RFTEIBRIN) o

WIRHRARRMELZRERAT 257



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE
39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. MXRERKREEBEREXK (@)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Foreign currency risk (b) SR
The Group has transactional currency exposures. These REBEBRZEBRAR - ZERABKE
exposures arise from sales by operating units in REBMABUMNNEEE LI EEE
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies. ITEVHE - REBIHEDRNT74% (ZT =
Approximately 74% (2023: 52%) of the Group’s sales F:52%) EELNEITHENKE BN
were mainly denominated in United States (“US”) BRI BT ([ET))EHE -
dollars, which is other than the functional currencies of
the operating units making the sale.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currencies RBEMRRNEEUIINEAENEEEE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at LEBaEMNREERT
the end of the reporting period are as follows:
2024 2023
ZEZNF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBEF T
Assets BE
US dollar e 127,173 27,764
Liabilities afE
US dollar E7T 224,986 309,420
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity as at TRETRIRE AR & B BB A & M1
the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible FIBEEMmEERFTIEBERTHNETE
change in the US dollar exchange rate, with all other EMEEAEEHNGRE -
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
tax.
Effect on profit before tax HIBRB AT
2024 2023
—E-_ME - =4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
Increase in the US dollar rate of 3% FEIUIE EIZIN3% (2,933) (8,449)
Decrease in the US dollar rate of 3% FETTE R A 3% 2,933 8,449
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. BI¥EKREEBZERBEEK @)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (c) EERB

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. For transactions that are not denominated in
the functional currency of the relevant operating unit,
the Group does not offer credit terms without the
specific approval of the Head of Credit Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 December.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for
financial assets and the exposure to credit risk for the
financial guarantee contracts.

“MEFERE

AEEEEERTREBRIEFZFE=7E
TRG - AKRBZBRERABRIAEES
NETRF 2 EFPHABBEENZEFF -
BESN - BUGRIRESRERFEEEM AR
EeiERERI NEKX - BT AEEEE
BUMNMEEBHENRSIME A&H
EREFREEZIERFHNBR T REHR

EEH-
RERBRFAREER

TRETREAEEEERK (E2ERA
HER - BRIFHAREBERASE L
ARGEMER MEEEREEREER
B UER+T A=+ —HBENFREERD

FEIHNeRReMEENREAENRS
BB EREANFAENEERR -
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. MEEKREEBZERBEE @
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) FERB (&
Maximum exposure and year-end staging BEEBERFERER (&)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2024 R-B-OFE+=A=+—H

Lifetime ECLs

12-month Simplified
ECLs Stage 1 approach Total
128 A7 ZHEHY
FEEE FEBE
E—RE 1L @t
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
i AR¥ET R AR¥TR AR¥ T
Financial assets included in FFARMBENFERLZS
long term prepayments and ZEMEE
deposits 2,778 — 2,778
Trade receivables B 5 BRI (i) — 448,739 448,739
Bills receivable L e = 18,813 18,813
Financial assets included in FPATERFIE - Htb R
prepayments, other RERHMEE, &/
receivables and other EE—LF
assets — Normal (i) 243,909 — 243,909
Pledged deposits — Not yet B LS — MKk
past due 52,953 — 52,953
Cash and cash equivalents BekBReEEY
— Not yet past due — WARBEH 53,323 — 53,323
Guarantees in respect of RETAEEYMEBES
mortgage facilities provided Rt 2 IRIBRVE R
for certain purchasers of the ER
Group’s properties
— Facilities drawn by — ETAEEYE
certain purchasers BEECDRRZ
of the Group’s mE
properties 17,861 — 17,861
370,824 467,552 838,376

260 chu Kong Petroleum and Natural Gas Steel Pipe Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. BMEREMEEEERBUR (@)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) EERRG@E
Maximum exposure and year-end staging BEEBERFERER (&)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+-_A=+—H

Lifetime ECLs

12-month Simplified
ECLs Stage 1 approach Total
1218 AT 2 HTE
FEEER EEBE
Rl EEAZ3 HEt
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
i ARETFT ARETT AR®F T
Financial assets included in FFARMBENFERLZS
long term prepayments and ZEMEE
deposits 2,778 — 2,778
Trade receivables B 5 BRI (i) — 371,628 371,628
Bills receivable e — 23,484 23,484
Financial assets included in FPATERFIE - Htb R
prepayments, other REREMEEZ R
receivables and other EE—LF
assets — Normal (i) 265,139 — 265,139
Pledged deposits — Not yet B LS — MKk
past due 5,730 — 5,730
Cash and cash equivalents RBekBReEEY
— Not yet past due — WARBEH 32,191 — 32,191
Guarantees in respect of RETAEEYMEBES
mortgage facilities provided Rt 2 IRIBRVE R
for certain purchasers of the ER
Group’s properties
— Facilities drawn by — ETAEEYE
certain purchasers BEECDRERZ
of the Group’s mE
properties 27,430 — 27,430
333,268 395,112 728,380
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

(Continued)
Notes:

(i) For trade receivables to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment, information based on
provision matrix is disclosed in note 19.

(ii) The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of
the Group’s trade receivables are widely dispersed in
different sectors and industries.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure continuity of
sufficient funding and flexibility by utilising a variety of
bank and other borrowings with debt maturities
spreading over a range of periods, thereby ensuring
that the Group’s outstanding borrowing obligation is not
exposed to excessive repayment risk in any one year.
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group’s
businesses, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity

requirements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% #R R Y &
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE
39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. MXRERKREEBEREXK (@)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) REBEZRER ()
The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its REBMRBDESETEMRBEEBERSR
ability to maintain adequate cash inflows from MRS MANERNIHENEE - AKRE
operations to meet its debt obligations as they fall due, BHIRESBNEAEAENERNFE A
and its ability to obtain external financing to meet its ﬁ 77 o R NEE [ A 18 B AN A AN H th Bl
committed future capital expenditure. With regard to its EFRE RZIZE-ZWNF+=A=+—8"
future capital commitments and other financing $ SEERNBSEZRBITREEHNDARE
requirements, the Group has already obtained banking 2,512,960,000 T A ERITREE - HRHAR
facilities with several banks of up to an amount of #1,462,805,000 T2 W o
approximately RMB2,512,960,000 as at 31 December
2024, of which an amount of approximately
RMB1,462,805,000 has been utilised.
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as RI|EBR  NEBERSITHORTRA
at the end of the reporting period, based on the PR RBENIEBBRAT
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:
31 December 2024
—E-_NE+=-A=+-—H
Less than Over
On demand 1 year 1 year Total
RER DPR—F —FUE 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBT R ARBT R ARBT R
Trade and bills payables 2 5 RENERR
e E i — 1,063,366 — 1,063,366
Other payables H b FE T FUE — 655,963 — 655,963
Due to a director BN ERFIE 7,701 - — 7,701
Lease liabilities HEEE = 544 28 572
Interest-bearing bank and other T 23R71T R H A
borrowings (excluding lease Fi‘é (T EE
liabilities) E8E) = 1,033,501 983,138 2,016,639
Fixed rate bonds and notes EE\%%&%?‘J%‘? — 56,491 — 56,491
7,701 2,809,865 983,166 3,800,732
Financial guarantees issued: BB 2 BB ER
Maximum amount guaranteed BoEREE 17,861 — — 17,861
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R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE —_ T _NF+_A=+—HIL4F

I

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. MXRERKREEBEREXK (@)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) FRBELER @)
31 December 2023
—_ZE-_=F+-A=+—H
Less than Over
On demand 1 year 1 year Total
REX DPR—F —FME HBET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBTT ARBFT ARBTIT
Trade and bills payables BIRNERR
AL — 942,593 — 942,593
Other payables H &5 FRIE — 544,974 — 544,974
Due to a director ENEERIA 64,353 — — 64,353
Lease liabilities HEEE — 542 560 1,102
Interest-bearing bank and other &t 2 3R7T R H A
borrowings (excluding lease EE (TR
liabilities) HEAR) — 1,685,222 184,462 1,869,684
Fixed rate bonds and notes EREFLRER — 76,002 — 76,002
64,353 3,249,333 185,022 3,498,708
Financial guarantees issued: BB 2 R
Maximum amount guaranteed ERERERE 27,430 — — 27,430
(e) Capital management (e) BEXRER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is total debts divided by total assets. Total debts
include interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
fixed rate bonds and notes. The gearing ratio as at
31 December 2024 was 28.7% (2023: 28.5%).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BEZE - _NF+-_A=+—HILFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. XD F)ZB MR T
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the

ARBRBERR M BIRARERDT

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2024 2023
—E_mE —E - =4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIEE 49,591 49,591
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 49,591 49,591
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments TERT IR 254 213
Due from subsidiaries N ENGIE 194,459 206,336
Cash and bank balances R& MIRITH 38 57
Total current assets mEEELE 194,751 206,606
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBasd
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FFERITRAEMEE 85 2,969
Other payables and accruals L FE S FRIE R EET
ZH 14,536 4,813
Due to subsidiaries [ ANL N PNGIE 72,155 70,610
Fixed rate bonds and notes TFEEHFLERE 56,488 61,678
Total current liabilities e B EETE 143,264 140,070
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 51,487 66,536
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEHERARBERE 101,078 116,127
Net assets BEFE 101,078 116,127
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITIRA 88,856 88,856
Reserves (note) i (fsE) 12,222 27,271
Total equity 4B R 101,078 116,127

“MEFERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T _WF+_A=+—HIEFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. XD F)ZB AR T @)
COMPANY (Continued)

Note: MeE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARAZHEBRENOT -
Exchange
Share Contributed Accumulated fluctuation
premium surplus losses reserve Total
BRGEE BB ZitEE EXREHEE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTT ARBFT AREF T ARBTTT ARBF T
At 1 January 2023 R-B-=%
—A—H 824,219 1,712,731 (2,417,319) (32,681) 86,950
Total comprehensive income/  AFE2mE W,
(loss) for the year (B18) 858 — — (61,100) 1,421 (59,679)
At 31 December 2023 and RZBZ=F
1 January 2024 +ZA=+—8x%
R-T-MF
—A—H 824,219 1,712,731 (2,478,419) (31,260) 27,271
Total comprehensive income/ AT E2EWE,
(loss) for the year (B18) %8 = = (17,162) 2,113 (15,049)
At 31 December 2024 RZTZMF
+=A=+—8 824,219 1,712,731 (2,495,581) (29,147) 12,222
41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS M. HEMBEHE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for MBBHERCR_FT-_AF=A-1+/\HEESE

issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2025. Bl R R T8 -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEMBHRE

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years prepared on the basis
set out in the note below is as follows:

MBERME
AN S 4% T SO RE P B Y BB R BB 5 T RIBT B4R FE )
ERMEERAERABREEMNT :

Results E4
Year ended 31 December
BZ+-HA=t-HLEE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-ME —ZTZ=F T —E-—F C—ZT-ITF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTE ARBTIT ARBTIT ARETR
Revenue WA 2,939,876 2,650,852 2,362,015 1,813,370 1,141,807
Cost of sales and services S B BRAS KA (2,422,462)  (2,096,642)  (1,891,392)  (1,617,854)  (935,120)
Gross profit EF 517,414 554,210 470,623 195,516 206,687
Other income and gains HEp A TRz 197,871 15,979 238,743 1,580,778 1,911,272
Selling and distribution expenses HERHHHX (40,860) (65,500) (55,062) (52,906) (34,808)
Administrative expenses THEHR (284,375) (270,059) (245,826) (263,635) (287,638)
Other expenses H % (123,885)  (187,899)  (209,786)  (376,014)  (300,702)
Exchange gain/(loss), net 5 e (E18) -
FEE 15,564 15,106 16,416 (33,476) (120,098)
Finance costs B PR (110,220) (94,548) (44,643) (144,253) (475,384)
Impairment of property, plant and mE - BEEREZ
equipment WE = — — (596,765) —
Fair value loss on investment REWMEZATE
properties B8 (5,000) (2,000) (8,000) (17,000) (20,000)
Share of loss of a joint venture ElE—REERAZ
&8 - — — (15,020) (2,668)
Gain on disposal of investment ina  HER—HALARZ
joint venture K&z W — 73,790 — — —
Profit before tax B 5% B 166,509 39,079 162,465 277,225 876,661
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisfiEe,/ (BA) 46,162 144,699 569 (371,579) (253,750)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRERN, (K1) 212,671 183,778 163,034 (94,354) 622,911
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for R ERL H M2
the year, net of tax H(E18),/ W (49,615) (38,642) (57,611) 63,175 178,815
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for A2 MU/ (EiE)
the year B 163,056 145,136 105,423 (31,179) 801,726
Earnings/(loss) per share BREF/(FHB)
— basic and diluted — EAXR#E RMB AK¥%¥ RMB AR® RMB AR RMB AR® RMB AR
0.21T 0.187C 0.167T (0.09)7T 0.627T
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T FHMBERE

Assets and Liabilities

EEHAR

As at 31 December

R+t=B=+-RH
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
“E-ME ZEZ=F T ZE=—F ZT=ITF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Non-current assets FRBEE 2,820,377 2,892,807 2,850,413 2,966,975 4,034,502
Current assets MEEE 3,685,562 3,528,614 3,704,524 4,956,147 4,507,026
Current liabilities mEAE (4,112,922)  (4,374,358)  (3,627,690)  (4,809,986)  (5,457,229)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (1,153,886) (970,988)  (1,996,308)  (2,287,620)  (2,227,604)
Total equity B 1,239,131 1,076,075 930,939 825,516 856,695
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